Trico Bancshares 0000356171 false DEF 14A iso4217:USD tcbk:percent 0000356171 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 3 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:AggtChngPnsnValInSummryCompstnTblForAplblYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:AggtChngPnsnValInSummryCompstnTblForAplblYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:AggtChngPnsnValInSummryCompstnTblForAplblYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:AggtChngPnsnValInSummryCompstnTblForAplblYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:AggtChngPnsnValInSummryCompstnTblForAplblYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsSvcCstMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsSvcCstMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsSvcCstMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsSvcCstMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsSvcCstMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsPrrSvcCstMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsPrrSvcCstMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsPrrSvcCstMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsPrrSvcCstMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsPrrSvcCstMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregateGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableStockAwardsMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregateGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableStockAwardsMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregateGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableStockAwardsMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregateGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableStockAwardsMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregateGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableStockAwardsMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregatedGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableOptionAwardsMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregatedGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableOptionAwardsMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregatedGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableOptionAwardsMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregatedGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableOptionAwardsMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregatedGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableOptionAwardsMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:YrEndFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInCvrdYrOutsdngAndUnvstdMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:YrEndFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInCvrdYrOutsdngAndUnvstdMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:YrEndFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInCvrdYrOutsdngAndUnvstdMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:YrEndFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInCvrdYrOutsdngAndUnvstdMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:YrEndFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInCvrdYrOutsdngAndUnvstdMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:VstngDtFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdAndVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:VstngDtFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdAndVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:VstngDtFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdAndVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:VstngDtFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdAndVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:VstngDtFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdAndVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValOfOutsdngAndUnvstdEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValOfOutsdngAndUnvstdEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValOfOutsdngAndUnvstdEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValOfOutsdngAndUnvstdEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValOfOutsdngAndUnvstdEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValAsOfVstngDtOfPrrYrEqtyAwrdsVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValAsOfVstngDtOfPrrYrEqtyAwrdsVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValAsOfVstngDtOfPrrYrEqtyAwrdsVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValAsOfVstngDtOfPrrYrEqtyAwrdsVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValAsOfVstngDtOfPrrYrEqtyAwrdsVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:FrValAsOfPrrYrEndOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsFldVstngCondsDrngCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:FrValAsOfPrrYrEndOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsFldVstngCondsDrngCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:FrValAsOfPrrYrEndOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsFldVstngCondsDrngCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:FrValAsOfPrrYrEndOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsFldVstngCondsDrngCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:FrValAsOfPrrYrEndOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsFldVstngCondsDrngCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:IncreaseBasedUponIncrementalFairValueOfAwardsModifiedDuringYearMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:IncreaseBasedUponIncrementalFairValueOfAwardsModifiedDuringYearMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:IncreaseBasedUponIncrementalFairValueOfAwardsModifiedDuringYearMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:IncreaseBasedUponIncrementalFairValueOfAwardsModifiedDuringYearMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:IncreaseBasedUponIncrementalFairValueOfAwardsModifiedDuringYearMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:DvddsOrOthrErngsPdOnEqtyAwrdsNtOthrwsRflctdInTtlCompForCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:DvddsOrOthrErngsPdOnEqtyAwrdsNtOthrwsRflctdInTtlCompForCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:DvddsOrOthrErngsPdOnEqtyAwrdsNtOthrwsRflctdInTtlCompForCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:DvddsOrOthrErngsPdOnEqtyAwrdsNtOthrwsRflctdInTtlCompForCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:DvddsOrOthrErngsPdOnEqtyAwrdsNtOthrwsRflctdInTtlCompForCvrdYrMember ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:AggtChngPnsnValInSummryCompstnTblForAplblYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:AggtChngPnsnValInSummryCompstnTblForAplblYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:AggtChngPnsnValInSummryCompstnTblForAplblYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:AggtChngPnsnValInSummryCompstnTblForAplblYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:AggtChngPnsnValInSummryCompstnTblForAplblYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsSvcCstMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsSvcCstMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsSvcCstMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsSvcCstMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsSvcCstMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsPrrSvcCstMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsPrrSvcCstMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsPrrSvcCstMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsPrrSvcCstMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:PnsnAdjsPrrSvcCstMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregateGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableStockAwardsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregateGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableStockAwardsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregateGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableStockAwardsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregateGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableStockAwardsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregateGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableStockAwardsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregatedGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableOptionAwardsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregatedGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableOptionAwardsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregatedGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableOptionAwardsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregatedGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableOptionAwardsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:AggregatedGrantDateFairValueOfEquityAwardAmountsReportedInSummaryCompensationTableOptionAwardsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:YrEndFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInCvrdYrOutsdngAndUnvstdMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:YrEndFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInCvrdYrOutsdngAndUnvstdMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:YrEndFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInCvrdYrOutsdngAndUnvstdMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:YrEndFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInCvrdYrOutsdngAndUnvstdMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:YrEndFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInCvrdYrOutsdngAndUnvstdMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:VstngDtFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdAndVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:VstngDtFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdAndVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:VstngDtFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdAndVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:VstngDtFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdAndVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:VstngDtFrValOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdAndVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValOfOutsdngAndUnvstdEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValOfOutsdngAndUnvstdEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValOfOutsdngAndUnvstdEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValOfOutsdngAndUnvstdEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValOfOutsdngAndUnvstdEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValAsOfVstngDtOfPrrYrEqtyAwrdsVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValAsOfVstngDtOfPrrYrEqtyAwrdsVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValAsOfVstngDtOfPrrYrEqtyAwrdsVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValAsOfVstngDtOfPrrYrEqtyAwrdsVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:ChngInFrValAsOfVstngDtOfPrrYrEqtyAwrdsVstdInCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:FrValAsOfPrrYrEndOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsFldVstngCondsDrngCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:FrValAsOfPrrYrEndOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsFldVstngCondsDrngCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:FrValAsOfPrrYrEndOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsFldVstngCondsDrngCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:FrValAsOfPrrYrEndOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsFldVstngCondsDrngCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:FrValAsOfPrrYrEndOfEqtyAwrdsGrntdInPrrYrsFldVstngCondsDrngCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:IncreaseBasedUponIncrementalFairValueOfAwardsModifiedDuringYearMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:IncreaseBasedUponIncrementalFairValueOfAwardsModifiedDuringYearMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:IncreaseBasedUponIncrementalFairValueOfAwardsModifiedDuringYearMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:IncreaseBasedUponIncrementalFairValueOfAwardsModifiedDuringYearMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 tcbk:IncreaseBasedUponIncrementalFairValueOfAwardsModifiedDuringYearMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:DvddsOrOthrErngsPdOnEqtyAwrdsNtOthrwsRflctdInTtlCompForCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:DvddsOrOthrErngsPdOnEqtyAwrdsNtOthrwsRflctdInTtlCompForCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:DvddsOrOthrErngsPdOnEqtyAwrdsNtOthrwsRflctdInTtlCompForCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:DvddsOrOthrErngsPdOnEqtyAwrdsNtOthrwsRflctdInTtlCompForCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:DvddsOrOthrErngsPdOnEqtyAwrdsNtOthrwsRflctdInTtlCompForCvrdYrMember ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2023-01-01 2023-12-31 0000356171 ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2022-01-01 2022-12-31 0000356171 ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2021-01-01 2021-12-31 0000356171 ecd:NonPeoNeoMember 2020-01-01 2020-12-31 0000356171 1 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 2 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 4 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 5 2024-01-01 2024-12-31 0000356171 6 2024-01-01 2024-12-31
Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
SCHEDULE 14A
Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Filed by the Registrant þ
Filed by a Party other than the Registran t ¨

Check the appropriate box:
¨ | Preliminary Proxy Statement
¨ | Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
þ | Definitive Proxy Statement
¨ | Definitive Additional Materials
¨ | Soliciting Material Under Rule 14a-12
(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)
(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)
Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):
þ | No fee required.
¨ | Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
| 1) | Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
| 2) | Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
| 3) | Per unit price or other underlying value or transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
| 4) | Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
| 5) | Total fee paid:
¨ | Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.
¨ | Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
| (1) | Amount Previously Paid:
| (2) | Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
| (3) | Filing Party:
| (4) | Date Filed:

Table of Contents

| TriCo Bancshares 63 Constitution Drive Chico, California 95973 Phone: (530) 898-0300 www.tcbk.com

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING AND PROXY STATEMENT

Date |  | Thursday, May 22, 2025
Time |  | 10:30 AM, Pacific Time
Record Date |  | April 2, 2025
Location |  | 63 Constitution Drive
|  | Chico, CA 95973

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Annual Meeting”) of TriCo Bancshares will be held on Thursday, May 22, 2025, at 10:30 AM Pacific Time for the following purposes:
Items of Business
Proposal 1: Elect 11 directors for terms expiring at the 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The nominees for election are:

Kirsten E. Garen | Cory W. Giese | John S. A. Hasbrook | Margaret L. Kane
Michael W. Koehnen | Anthony L. Leggio | Martin A. Mariani | Thomas C. McGraw
Jon Y. Nakamura | Richard P. Smith | Kimberley H. Vogel |

Proposal 2: Approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of our executives.
Proposal 3: Ratify the selection of Moss Adams LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2025.
Proposal 4: Attend to any other business properly presented at the meeting.
We do not know of any other business that will come before the meeting. In order to vote without attending the meeting, you may sign and date the enclosed proxy and voting instruction card and return it in the postage prepaid envelope.
As a shareholder, your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting in person, it is important that you vote as soon as possible to ensure that your shares are represented. We request that all shareholders be present at the meeting in person or by proxy to ensure that we have a quorum.
By Order of the Board of Directors,
Michael W. Koehnen
Secretary, TriCo Bancshares
Chico, California
April 17, 2025

Table of Contents
IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON MAY 22, 2025
TriCo’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2024 and the 2025 Proxy Statement are available at https://www.tcbk.com/about/investor-relations.
For more information on how to cast your vote,
please see the Questions and Answers section beginning on page 68.

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT TO TRICO BANCSHARES. Regardless of whether or not you plan to attend the meeting in person, we urge you to vote in favor of each of the proposals as soon as possible.

Table of Contents
Table of Contents

Proposals to be voted on at the annual meeting |  | 1
Proxy statement highlights |  | 2
Board of directors |  | 7
Corporate governance, board nominations and board committees |  | 13
Compensation of directors |  | 25
Ownership of voting securities |  | 27
Information about our executive directors |  | 29
Compensation discussion and analysis |  | 30
Report of the compensation and management succession committee |  | 47
Compensation of named executives |  | 48
Report of the audit committee |  | 66
Independent registered public accounting firm |  | 66
Other information |  | 67
Questions and answers about the annual meeting and voting |  | 68
Appendix A: Reconciliation of GAAP and non-GAAP financial measures |  | A-1

Table of Contents
[This page intentionally left blank.]

Table of Contents
Proposals to be Voted on at the Annual Meeting
The Board of Directors of TriCo Bancshares ("TriCo," the "Company" or “we”) is providing this proxy statement to you in connection with the solicitation of proxies for its annual meeting of shareholders, which will take place at 10:30 a.m., Pacific Time on May 22, 2025, and any adjournments and postponements of the annual meeting, which we refer to collectively as the "meeting." These proxy materials were first made available to shareholders on or about April 17, 2025.
As a shareholder, you are invited to attend the meeting and may vote on the proposals described in this proxy statement. The following is a summary of the proposals that will be presented at the meeting.
1.Election of Directors
Eleven directors will be elected this year for terms expiring at our annual meeting in 2026. Each nominee is currently serving as a director of TriCo. The nominees for election are:

Kirsten E. Garen | Cory W. Giese | John S. A. Hasbrook | Margaret L. Kane
Michael W. Koehnen | Anthony L. Leggio | Martin A. Mariani | Thomas C. McGraw
Jon Y. Nakamura | Richard P. Smith | Kimberley H. Vogel |

Brief biographies of the director nominees are found at “Board of Directors.” These biographies include each nominee’s age, business experience, a description of some of the experience, qualifications, attributes or skills that led us to conclude that each nominee should serve as a director of the Company and certain other information.
The 11 nominees receiving the most affirmative votes cast at the meeting will be elected as directors assuming a quorum is present, subject to the Company's majority withhold vote policy. We know of no reason why any nominee may be unable to serve as director. If any of the nominees should unexpectedly decline or become unable to serve, the proxies we are soliciting may be voted for a substitute nominee or the Board of Directors (the “Board”) may reduce the size of the Board.
Shareholders may cumulate their votes when electing directors. To do so, you must follow the procedures set forth in our Bylaws, which are described at “Corporate Governance, Board Nomination and Board Committees--Nomination and Election of Directors.”
The Board recommends a vote FOR the election of all 11 nominees.

2.Advisory Vote Concerning Executive Compensation
We are asking our shareholders to approve, on an advisory (nonbinding) basis, the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement in accordance with SEC rules. At the meeting, shareholders will have the opportunity to endorse or not endorse our executive compensation programs through an advisory (nonbinding) vote on the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement by voting on the following proposal:
“Resolved, that our shareholders approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of our Company’s named executive officers, as disclosed pursuant to the compensation disclosure rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the compensation tables, and the accompanying narrative discussion disclosed in this proxy statement.”
Detailed information about the compensation of our named executive officers is included in the sections titled “Compensation of Named Executive Officers” beginning on page 48 and “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” beginning on page 30. Our executive compensation programs are designed to attract and retain well-qualified executives and to link executive officer compensation to, and to
Annual Proxy Statement 1

Table of Contents
reward executive officers for, the Company’s financial performance and the creation of shareholder value. We believe that our executive compensation programs achieve these objectives.
The proposal will be adopted if a majority of the shareholders are present and voting on the proposal vote in favor of the proposal, assuming the shares voting in favor of the proposal also constitute a majority of the required quorum. As an advisory vote, this proposal is not binding on TriCo. However, our Board of Directors and our compensation and management succession committee value the opinions of our shareholders and will consider the outcome of the vote when making future compensation decisions regarding our named executive officers. We expect that the next advisory vote on our executive compensation program will occur at our 2026 annual meeting of shareholders.
The Board recommends a vote FOR approval of the Company’s executive compensation program.

3.Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Our audit committee has selected the firm of Moss Adams LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2025.
The affirmative vote of a majority of those shareholders are present and voting at the meeting will ratify the selection of Moss Adams LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm, assuming the shares voting in favor of the proposal also constitute a majority of the required quorum. If shareholders fail to ratify the appointment of Moss Adams LLP, the audit committee will reconsider whether or not to retain that firm. Even if appointment is ratified, the audit committee in its discretion may direct the appointment of a different independent registered public accounting firm at any time.
Additional information concerning this proposal can be found at “Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” on page 66.
The Board recommends a vote FOR the ratification of the selection of
Moss Adams LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2025.

Your vote is important! Please cast your vote as soon as possible, but, if you vote by Internet or phone, you must vote no later than 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on May 21, 2025, for common stock held directly.

For more information on how to cast your vote, please see the Questions and Answers section beginning on page 68.

PROXY STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
Attending the Annual Meeting:
Shareholders of record of TriCo Bancshares common stock or authorized representatives of a beneficial holder of TriCo Bancshares Common Stock, or their legal proxy holders, as of the close of business on April 2, 2025, the record date, are entitled to attend the Annual Meeting. The meeting will start at 10:30 a.m. Pacific Time on May 22, 2025, at the Company’s headquarters, located at 63 Constitution Drive, Chico, CA 95973.
Shareholders may vote before the date of the meeting using one of the methods provided on the proxy card. Shareholders holding shares of common stock directly, though our transfer agent, Computershare, may vote at the meeting. We recommend that shareholders vote by mail, internet, or telephone prior to the meeting, even if they plan to attend the meeting in person.
For more information on how to cast your vote,
please see the Questions and Answers section beginning on page 68.
2 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents

About Our Company
TriCo Bancshares is a bank holding company headquartered in Chico, California. Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market where it trades under the symbol "TCBK".
Through our subsidiary, Tri Counties Bank (the "Bank"), we provide customers Service with Solutions® through our branch network and loan production offices in communities throughout California. The Bank provides an extensive and competitive breadth of consumer, small business and commercial banking financial services, along with convenient around-the-clock ATM, online and mobile banking access. Brokerage services are provided by Tri Counties Advisors through affiliation with Raymond James Financial Services, Inc. Visit www.TCBK.com to learn more. The information on our website is not part of this proxy statement.
Corporate Performance Highlights
•Net interest margins that exceeded peers and most regional and national financial institutions
•Strong capital, liquidity, and asset quality positions
•Stability of net income which was $114.9 million for 2024, as compared to $117.4 million during 2023
•$9.7 billion in assets at December 31, 2024 and a reduction in other borrowings of $543.0 million during 2024
•Continued to maintain an above peer allowance for credit losses to total loan ratio and below peer non-performing asset and past due loan ratios
•Operating efficiency was 59.1% in 2024 compared to 55.8% in 2023 amid strong inflationary and competitive pressures
•Continued investment in people, processes, and technology to enhance our risk management capabilities and to drive process improvement and ability to scale
• A $1.32 per share cash dividend paid in 2024, a $0.10 or 10% increase from the $1.20 per share cash dividend paid in 2023
Corporate Governance Highlights
Our Board of Directors is committed to strong and effective governance and oversight. Annually, the Board reviews and, as necessary, enhances its practices in relation to Board independence, Board accountability, and Board effectiveness. Below are some highlights of our Board governance program.
Board Independence
•Strong Independent Lead Director: The Board of Directors has an active and empowered Independent Lead Director.
•Substantial Majority of Independent Directors: Ten of our eleven directors are independent under Nasdaq listing standards. The Chief Executive Officer is the only member of management who is nominated for election to the Board of Directors.
•Independent Director-Led Committees: All committees of the Board of Directors are comprised of and chaired by directors who are independent under Nasdaq listing standards.
•Executive Sessions: Independent directors meet in executive session as needed at regularly scheduled board and committee meetings; however, it is possible that non-independent directors and/or independent directors who are not members of the committee will attend such sessions.
Board Accountability
•Corporate Culture: Directors review and approve our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics annually.
•Attendance: Directors nominated for election had a 97% aggregate attendance rate in 2024 for all Board and assigned committee meetings.
Annual Proxy Statement 3

Table of Contents
•Annual Elections Subject to Majority Vote: Our board has implemented a majority voting policy for uncontested director elections. The policy requires a director receiving more “Withhold” than “For” votes to submit a resignation, which will be considered by the corporate governance and nominating committee.
•Retirement Age: To encourage Board turnover/refreshment, our Bylaws provide that a director shall not stand for re-election at the Annual Meeting if that director will be 75 years or older at the time of election.
•Director Compensation: Director compensation is reviewed and approved annually by the compensation and management succession committee.
•Oversight of Strategy: The Board of Directors oversees the development of our strategic plan each year and receives updates on the implementation of strategic plans throughout the year at regularly scheduled Board meetings. The Board also reviews the risk assessment of the strategic plan.
•Stock Ownership Requirements: Directors are required to own TriCo stock equal in value to three times their annual retainer fee within five years of their Board appointment.
•Oversight of Succession Planning: The Board engages in an annual succession planning review meeting for both the Board and senior executives in addition to regular succession planning discussions at the committee level.
•New Board Members: We have had five new independent directors since 2020.
•Diverse Skills and Experience: Our directors have skills and experience in the areas of banking, finance and accounting, digital technology, marketing, regulatory, public company, C-suite, information technology, cyber security, small business, risk management, compliance, legal, agriculture sustainability, and thorough knowledge of the Company's geographic and banking/financial sector markets.
•Commitment to Diversity: The Board has outlined its commitment to diversity in the corporate governance guidelines, see "Board of Directors - Commitment to Diversity" on page 15..
Board Effectiveness
•Committee Self-Assessments: The Board, and all of its committees conduct annual evaluations. The Board and management implement action plans and make adjustments based on directors’ feedback.
•Director Skills and Expertise: The Board annually reviews directors’ skills and expertise to ensure the Board represents a diverse skill set oriented to the historic and emerging needs of our business. The Board has added five new directors since 2020 to further enhance the Board’s skills and expertise. The Board does not consider individual directors to be responsible for particular areas of the Board's focus or specific categories of issues that may come before it. Rather, the Board seeks to assemble a group of directors, that, as a whole, represent a mix of experiences and skills that allows appropriate deliberation of all issues that the Board might be likely to consider.
•Director Education/Training: We maintain a director education program, with director education sessions conducted throughout the year. Directors are also encouraged to attend outside education events and report what they learned to the entire Board.
•Over-boarding Restrictions: All directors are subject to over-boarding restrictions and can serve on no more than four (4) public company boards (including TriCo).
•Strong Corporate Governance Guidelines: The corporate governance guidelines and board committee charters are reviewed annually to maintain strong and sound governance practices.
Executive Compensation Highlights
Strong Best Practices
•A nnual review of pay equity practices
•Annual say-on-pay advisory vote
•Robust code of business conduct and ethics
•Pay for performance
4 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
•Use of independent compensation consultant which reports directly to the compensation and management succession committee
•No excise tax gross-ups
•No option repricing without shareholder approval
•Stock ownership guidelines for executive officers
•Clawback policy and provisions
•Balanced focus between short and long-term forms of incentive compensation, which are tied to Company performance and shareholder value creation
Corporate Responsibility Highlights
Overview
We take a comprehensive approach to corporate social responsibility that includes investing in our communities and creating a culture of strong corporate governance and risk management. We believe that this approach enables us to more effectively serve our stockholders, clients, communities, and colleagues. We focus on creating value through the following prioritized areas: governance; a diverse workforce; engaging and empowering employees; and investing in our communities, including affordable housing, direct giving, partnering with small business investment companies, and employee volunteerism.
Human Capital / Social Highlights
We believe that a high-performing collaborative workforce is a key to success. This includes a safe and inclusive workplace that promotes diversity of thought and perspective and promotes our values of trust, respect, integrity, communication and opportunity. We seek to maintain an environment that values unique opinions and beliefs, inspires innovative solutions, and enables people to thrive.
Furthermore, we strive to have a workforce that reflects the communities we serve and continue to promote diversity in leadership roles. We are committed to providing an inclusive, supportive, and discrimination-free workplace. We reward and recognize employees based on their individual and departmental performance as well as overall Company results.
We attract and retain employees by offering professional growth opportunities through various training and development programs, and by offering competitive compensation and benefits packages. Our benefits include employer subsidized health insurance, wellness initiatives, employee assistance programs, a 401(k) retirement plan, tuition reimbursement, and an employee stock ownership plan.
We encourage our team members to share their talents in their communities through volunteer activities in education, economic development, human and health services, and community reinvestment.
For more information about our human capital management practices, please refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.
Corporate Social Responsibility - Community Engagement
Our success is contingent upon and a reflection of the successful economic growth and vitality of the communities we serve. Each year, we strive to provide a broader range of financial resources and services to reach those traditionally underserved by other banks. To this end, in 2024, Tri Counties Bank continued to demonstrate our leadership by:
•Receiving the highest performance rating of “Outstanding” from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation in its most recent Community Reinvestment Act Performance Evaluation.
•Collaborating with community partners to sustain down payment assistance programs and fully fund down payment grants for low- and moderate-income borrowers throughout our branch footprint.
•Continuing to offer the Homeownership Access Program, a special purpose credit program that provides a lender credit of up to $7,500. This program is aimed at increasing homeownership in historically disadvantaged Black and Hispanic communities in the Bank’s retail market. Additionally, we are maintaining our partnership with a nationally recognized community development organization that collaborates with low-income families to build and sustain healthy homes and
Annual Proxy Statement 5

Table of Contents
communities. This partnership includes offering a mortgage loan that acknowledges the sweat equity contributions of homeowners.
•Introducing the Small Business Empowerment Program, a special purpose credit program created to help small businesses in our communities gain access to credit. This program provides flexible underwriting criteria for eligible small businesses applying for Business Credit Cards up to $25,000, Small Business Lines of Credit up to $50,000, or Small Business Secured Loans up to $75,000. The program is designed for self-identified minority, veteran, LGBTQ+ and women majority-owned small businesses.
•Partnering with a non-profit economic development district that serves a three-county area by providing business financing and collaboration in economic development to create a support network providing mentorship and customized technical assistance to minority business owners.
•Supporting our communities with $1.7 million in donations and sponsorships including over $800,000 in charitable contributions to support low- and moderate-income community initiatives.
•Encouraging our employees to give back to the communities we serve, leading to both monetary contributions and more than 11,000 volunteer hours of service to non-profits, community organizations, schools, and youth programs. Over 4,500 hours were focused on providing leadership, financial literacy training and support to organizations that benefit low-and-moderate-income communities.
•Collecting more than 25,000 pounds of nonperishable pantry items in 27 counties in California. All food donations stay local to stock pantries during the holidays and throughout the year.
•Continuing our scholarship program that awards more than $110,000 annually to students who demonstrate interest in public service, community engagement and business entrepreneurship. In 2024, we awarded sixty $1,500 scholarships to students with a Student Aid Index of zero or less, and a minimum GPA of 2.5.
•Maintaining our BankOn Certification of our MoneySmart Checking product in order to promote safe and affordable banking services to underbanked individuals.
•Participating in the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco’s grant programs that include affordable housing, economic development for small businesses, and downpayment assistance to qualified low-income homebuyers in California, including the Workforce Initiative Subsidy for Homeownership (WISH) Program. Together with the Bank, these initiatives have funded over $4.5 million in downpayment assistance, economic development for small business, and affordable housing projects.
Sustainability Highlights
Throughout our daily operations we seek ways to reduce our impact on the environment by eliminating or reducing the use of paper statements and documents where possible.
•We regularly encourage our customers to sign up to receive statements and notices electronically through the use of E-statements and E-notices and to take advantage of our online and mobile banking services.
•We continued to expand our initiative that allows many documents to be signed electronically.
•We encourage our employees to reduce their use of paper documents where possible and to receive tax documents through the use of E-tax forms.
•Our operations center utilizes solar panels to reduce energy use.
•We give our shareholders the opportunity to receive our proxy materials electronically to help us reduce our production, use and delivery of significant quantities of paper.
•A portion of our workforce periodically works remotely with some completely remote.
Our Culture
Our values are the foundation and the moral compass for everything we do.
6 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Our values should guide every conversation we have, every decision we make, and every interaction we have with our customers and our fellow employees.
Our values are simple and rely on common sense – just some basic rules to live and work by. The difference is in how we abide by our values and hold each other accountable.
We won’t always be perfect, but we strive to live and work by these every day.
We have five core T.R.I.C.O. values:
•Trust - We strive to earn the trust of our customers and colleagues.
•Respect - We appreciate and value others and treat them kindly.
•Integrity - We act with sincerity and honor the commitments we've made.
•Communication - We are thoughtful and transparent in our communication.
•Opportunity - We look for ways to exceed the expectations of our customers.
Shareholder Alignment and Engagement
Executive management held approximately 46 in-person meetings and 45 virtual shareholder/investor meetings in 2024. Some of the virtual and in-person meetings had more than one shareholder present. Feedback from shareholders is important to consider and we value opportunities for engagement.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
At the meeting, shareholders will elect 11 directors to serve for terms expiring at TriCo’s 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Each of the following persons listed and described below is nominated for election as a director at the meeting. Each nominee currently serves as a director of TriCo and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Tri Counties Bank. In addition to the TriCo Board committees, the directors also serve on committees of the Bank’s Board of Directors. Age is as of April 2, 2025.

Kirsten E. Garen |  |
Age: 62 Director Since: 2020 | Committees: • IT/Cybersecurity (Chair) • CRA | • Audit

Since January 2024, Ms. Garen has been a partner at Fortium Partners, headquartered in Plano, TX, which provides technology leadership-as-a-service. From November 2020 to August 2022, Ms. Garen was SVP, Chief Information Officer at CDK Global, San Jose, CA, a provider of integrated data and technology solutions to the automotive, heavy truck, recreation, and heavy equipment industries. From August 2017 to March 2020, she was EVP, Chief Information Officer for Delta Dental of California/Dentegra Insurance Co., San Francisco, CA. She also led the Technology, Cybersecurity and Enterprise Project Management Office for Delta Dental of California and its affiliate companies. From 2011 to July 2017, she was Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer at Bank of the West, San Francisco, CA (now BMO Harris Bank, N.A., a subsidiary of BMO Financial Group, Toronto, Canada). She has over 20 years of
experience managing IT strategies and implementation for financial services and insurance companies.
She is currently a member of the Netskope’s Technical Advisory board, a cloud provider of cybersecurity services, a board member for the NorCal International Women’s Forum, a member of the National Association of Corporate Directors, and a former board member of the Commonwealth Club of California and FTV Capital, a private equity firm.
We nominated Ms. Garen due to her experience in creating and implementing business and technology roadmaps, including portfolio construction, delivery metrics, digital modernization, cybersecurity and risk mitigation as well as her information technology expertise.
Annual Proxy Statement 7

Table of Contents

Cory W. Giese |  |
Age: 46 Director Since: 2013 | Committees: • Risk • IT/Cybersecurity | • Nominating and Corporate Governance • Executive

Mr. Giese has been independent Lead Director since May 2020. Mr. Giese is a Certified Public Accountant and is a principal at Cory Giese CPA, a certified public accounting firm in Truckee, CA since 2006. Since December 2024, he is Chief Financial Officer at Alpenglow Timber LLC, Truckee, CA, a wood products facility. He is also a managing member of ERP Rentals, LLC, a privately held real estate investment entity. He served as a tax consultant for Asena Family Office,
an international tax and advisory firm from January to November 2024. Previously, he was an owner of Giese Swaney, LLC, a certified public accounting firm in Incline Village, NV from 2014-2019.
We nominated Mr. Giese based on his business background, accounting background and his ties to and familiarity with several of the communities in which we operate.

John S. A. Hasbrook |  |
Age: 65 Director Since: 2002 | Committees: • Nominating and Corporate Governance (Chair) • Compensation and Management Succession | • Audit

Mr. Hasbrook is President of SunWest Wild Rice Co., Inc, Winters, CA a food marketing company since 2000 and President of Hasbrook-Fetter Farms, Inc., Winters, CA, a family-owned farming operation since 1989. He was Vice President, Marketing of SunWest Foods, Inc., David, CA, a rice milling and marketing company until his retirement in 2022 where he was partner from 1989. He has been a board member of the Solano Water Agency, Lower Putah Creek Coordinating Committee since 2023, a municipal agency responsible for management and restoration of the Putah Creek watershed in California. Mr. Hasbrook also serves as an advisor to the Santa Clara University for Food Innovation
and Entrepreneurship and has been a member of the finance and audit committees of the Catholic Diocese of Sacramento since 2016.
We nominated Mr. Hasbrook because of his experience in the areas of finance, marketing, banking, and deep roots in the agribusiness and food marketing. His broad business experience and community involvement provides the Board with valuable insights concerning the primary communities in which the Bank operates and the agriculture industry (including climate and sustainability matters) in particular.
8 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents

Margaret L. Kane |  |
Age: 69 Director Since: 2020 | Committees: • CRA (Chair) • IT/Cybersecurity | • Risk

Dr. Kane is President and Chief Executive Officer of Kane Bank Services (“KBS”), Sacramento, CA, a consulting firm she founded in 1999. KBS provides consulting services to domestic and international financial institutions in areas including customer experience and advocacy, sales management, product distribution, employee and manager training and development, distribution strategies, and revenue growth. Prior to KBS, from 1988 to 1998, Dr. Kane was an Executive Vice President at Wells Fargo Bank, San Francisco, CA, prior to its combination with Norwest Corp, Minneapolis, MN where she was head of the retail branch network and also developed and managed the bank’s In-Store Banking Program from inception.
Dr. Kane is a board member of the Harvard Club of Sacramento since 2011. She is past member of the executive
committee of the Harvard Alumni Association in Cambridge, MA (2022-2024), serving as treasurer, and was a board member of the Harvard Alumni Association (2018-2024). She has also served on the boards of numerous non-profit organizations throughout her career.
We nominated Dr. Kane because of her deep understanding of the banking industry, including banks our size as well as large national and international institutions, her experience in retail banking, and her knowledge in strategic planning, development and execution. She is also very active in the Sacramento community and has in-depth knowledge of this key market and its businesses.

Michael W. Koehnen |  |
Age: 64 Director Since: 2002 | Committees: • Risk | • Executive

Mr. Koehnen has been our Vice Chairman since 2010 and Corporate Secretary since 2021. He is an owner and since 1994, President of C.F. Koehnen & Sons, Inc., Glenn, CA, a fourth-generation family farming and beekeeping company. Mr. Koehnen is also owner of C.F. Koehnen & Sons Orchards and president and owner of Riverwest Processing, Glenn, CA, an almond processing company, and president of several other agricultural-related entities, including Koehnen Farming Company, PK Exports, Koehnen Farming Company and K3 Exports Inc.
We nominated Mr. Koehnen because of his leadership experience and knowledge of corporate governance, business
operations and financial investment related matters. In addition, his extensive involvement in businesses related to the agricultural industry allows him to provide valuable insights to the Board regarding agriculture, sustainability, climate and domestic, commodities, and international supply-chain matters. Furthermore, he has held a significant number of shares of the Company for some time, providing prospective on long-term shareholder interests. As a longtime resident of the Chico, California area, he also has a wealth of knowledge of the surrounding areas and the businesses in Northern California.
Annual Proxy Statement 9

Table of Contents

Anthony L. Leggio |  |
Age: 72 Director Since: 2022 | Committees: • Risk • CRA |

Mr. Leggio became a director upon our acquisition of Valley Republic Bancorp in March 2022. Prior to that he served as a director of Valley Republic Bancorp and Valley Republic Bank since its start in 2008. He has been President/Manager of Bolthouse Properties, LLC, a commercial and residential real estate development firm located in Bakersfield, CA since 2005. He is Manager and President of Bolthouse Investments, LLC, Bakersfield, CA, a registered investment advisor. Mr. Leggio served as Vice President and General Counsel of Wm Bolthouse Farms from July 2001 until December 2005. Previously, Mr. Leggio was managing partner of a Bakersfield area law firm for nearly 25 years.
Mr. Leggio serves as a director of Tejon Ranch Company, Lebec, CA (NYSE: TRC), a diversified real estate development and agribusiness company (since 2012) and is currently chair
of TRC's audit committee as well as a member of its executive and real estate committees. He is also a director of a number of private company boards located in Central and Southern California in the farming, auto and manufacturing fields. He is a licensed attorney in the State of California.
We have nominated Mr. Leggio because of his community involvement as well as his knowledge of key industries in, and the economies of, the Central Valley of California. In addition, he has experience in implementing business strategies and strategic plans, agriculture and farming, energy production, real estate development, legal matters, conservation, sustainability, and financial and investment management. Furthermore, he holds a significant number of shares of the Company, providing perspective on long-term shareholder interests.

Martin A. Mariani |  |
Age: 68 Director Since: 2014 | Committees: • Compensation and Management Succession (Chair) • Nominating and Corporate Governance | • Audit

Mr. Mariani farms almonds and walnuts and is a partner in Mariani Nut Company of Winters, California (nut processing). He is also a managing member of Monticello Farming Company, Winters, CA (almonds & walnuts) and Scribe Vineyards & Winery, Sonoma, CA. Mr. Mariani was a director of North Valley Bancorp from 2004 until its merger with TriCo in 2014. Previously, he was a director of Yolo Community Bank. He is a board member, treasurer and chairman of the audit committee of the California Walnut Marketing Board; a member of the Dean’s Advisory Board for the College of Agriculture and Environmental Sciences at
UC Davis; and a fellow at the American Leadership Forum, Mountain Valley Chapter.
We nominated Mr. Mariani based on his small business and agricultural industry background as well as his familiarity with, and deep roots in, community banking. In addition, his agricultural background allows him to provide valuable insights to the Board regarding sustainability, climate and supply-chain matters.
10 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents

Thomas C. McGraw |  |
Age: 73 Director Since: 2018 | Committees: • CRA • IT/Cybersecurity | • Risk • Executive

Mr. McGraw has been a director since we acquired FNB Bancorp in 2018. Prior to that he was the Chief Executive Officer of FNB Bancorp and its subsidiary, First National Bank of Northern California (“First National Bank”) from 2002 to 2018 and its president from 2001 to 2002. He was director of FNB Bancorp from 2001 to 2018 and director of First National Bank from 1989 to 2018.
We have nominated Mr. McGraw because of his extensive knowledge of key issues and trends affecting the Company, the San Francisco Bay Area banking market, First National Bank's customers, and the banking industry in general. Mr.
McGraw also is active in the communities we serve and has a deep understanding of marketing from his years at First National Bank as well as his tenure as a communications consultant in San Mateo and Marin Counties in California since 1987. Moreover, as the former CEO of FNB Bancorp and First National Bank, he has extensive knowledge of key issues and trends affecting the Company and its business in the San Francisco Bay Area. Furthermore, he has held a significant number of shares of the Company for some time, providing perspective on long-term shareholder interests.

Jon Y. Nakamura |  |
Age: 68 Director Since: 2022 | Committees: • Audit • Risk (Chair) |

Mr. Nakamura was employed by MUFG Union Bank, N.A. from 2005 to January 2022, including serving as Director and Assistant General Counsel from 2014; prior to that he served as SVP, Compliance Counsel. In these roles, he advised the bank and its holding company, MUFG Americas Holding Corporation, regarding a range of legal, risk and financial regulatory matters. Previously he served as Assistant General Counsel of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco from 1999 to 2005. He is a licensed attorney in the State of California. He is Treasurer of the San Francisco Prep Hall of Fame.
We have nominated Mr. Nakamura because of his depth of knowledge in legal, compliance and risk matters facing the
banking industry, and his experience at a larger growth-oriented financial institution. He also has deep roots in the San Francisco Bay Area, including Santa Clara County, providing insight into a number of our important growth markets.
Annual Proxy Statement 11

Table of Contents

Richard P. Smith |  |
Age: 67 Director Since: 1999 | President & CEO Board Chairman | Committees: • Executive

Mr. Smith has been Chairman of the Board since May 2020. He has served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of TriCo and the Bank since 1999. Mr. Smith joined the Bank in 1994 as Vice President and Chief Information Officer. He was senior vice president-customer/employee support and control from 1997 until 1998, when he was promoted to executive vice president in the same capacity. Furthermore, Mr. Smith was named president of the Bank and executive vice president of TriCo in 1998. Mr. Smith served as Chairman of the California Bankers Association (“CBA”) during 2011 and is currently a member of the California Bankers board of directors and has served on several of their committees.
We have nominated Mr. Smith because we believe that including the President and Chief Executive Officer on the
Board is important and assists the Board in keeping abreast of TriCo’s operations and management’s progress on corporate initiatives. Further, Mr. Smith has over 30 years of banking experience, including over 25 years as the Bank’s chief executive officer. In addition, Mr. Smith serves (or has served) on a number of industry association committees discussed above. This wealth of experience allows him to provide valuable insights to the Board concerning the banking industry and the Bank. Mr. Smith was honored as CBA’s 2024 Distinguished Banker of the Year.

Kimberley H. Vogel |  |
Age: 57 Director Since: 2020 | Committees: • Audit (Chair) • IT/Cybersecurity | • Compensation and Management Succession

Ms. Vogel currently serves as a member of the board of directors of TriplePoint Venture Growth BDC Corp. (NYSE: TPVG), Menlo Park, CA – an externally-managed business development company focused on providing customized debt financing and equity investments to venture growth stage companies in technology and other high-growth industries (since 2021). She serves as chair of the Audit Committee and on the Valuation, Governance and Nominating, and Compensation Committees. Ms. Vogel also currently serves as a member of the board of directors Forge Global Holdings, Inc. (NYSE: FRGE), San Francisco, CA – a provider of marketplace infrastructure, data services, and technology solutions for private market participants (since March 2022). She serves as Chair of the Audit Committee, Chair of the Compensation Committee, and a member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. She is also on the board of Forge Europe GmbH, Federal Republic of Germany – a private company which provides a global marketplace for private shares in Europe, jointly owned by Forge Global Holdings, Inc. and Deutsche Börse (since January 2024). She is currently an instructor in the Continuing Studies program at Stanford University, teaching strategic financial leadership and modern finance practices (since 2024).
Ms. Vogel was President, Co-Founder, and director of BaseVenture Investing, Inc., a cloud-based software company
that developed investment management solutions for financial reporting, data visualization, and process management, from 2014 to 2019. She served as Transitional President in 2019 after the company was sold to Fidelity National Information Services (FIS). From 2005 to 2014, Ms. Vogel served as Chief Financial Officer at mFoundry, Inc., a provider and innovator in mobile banking and mobile payment services, also purchased by FIS in 2013.
She served on the board of trustees of Saint Mary’s College of California, Moraga, CA for over eight years; and is CFO and an ex-officio director of the Harvard Business School Association of Northern California. Ms. Vogel is a Certified Public Accountant.
We have nominated Ms. Vogel based on her financial and accounting background and her experience with financial services, technology, corporate accounting/finance and public company governance, particularly her understanding of developments in the fintech industry and such industry's impact on the delivery of, and competition for, bank services. We have also determined that her background and experience also qualifies her to serve on our audit committee as a financial expert under SEC rules.
12 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, BOARD NOMINATIONS
AND BOARD COMMITTEES
Corporate Governance
We have long believed that strong corporate governance is critical to ensuring that TriCo is managed for the long-term benefit of our shareholders. We continue to review our corporate governance policies and practices along with provisions of the rules of the SEC and the listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market.
Code of Conduct; Code of Ethics for Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers. Our board of directors has adopted a code of ethics and business conduct (“code of conduct”) that applies to all of our directors, officers and employees. The code of conduct sets forth the standard of conduct that we expect all of our directors, officers and employees to follow, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. In addition, our board of directors has adopted a code of ethics for the chief executive officer and senior financial officers (“code of ethics”) that applies to our Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Financial Officer and any other officer serving in a finance function and sets forth specific standards of conduct and ethics that we expect from such individuals in addition to those set forth in the code of conduct. We expect that any amendments to the code of conduct or the code of ethics, or any waivers of their respective requirements, will be disclosed on our website, as well as any other means required by Nasdaq rules or the SEC.
Corporate Governance Guidelines. We have adopted corporate governance guidelines to assist our board of directors in the exercise of its fiduciary duties and responsibilities and to promote the effective functioning of our board of directors and its committees.
Insider Trading Policy. Our Insider Trading Policy governs the purchase, sale, and other dispositions of TriCo Bancshares securities by our directors, executive officers, employees, their related parties, and third parties engaged on our behalf. We believe the Insider Trading Policy is reasonably designed to promote compliance with insider trading laws, rules and regulations in the U.S. as well as the applicable Nasdaq listing standards. In addition, certain individuals, including directors, executive officers, and certain other senior employees, are subject to trading blackout periods and special preclearance and reporting requirements related to their trading activity in the Company’s stock. With regard to the Company’s trading in its own securities, it is the Company’s policy to comply with the federal securities laws and the applicable exchange listing requirements. A copy of the Insider Securities Trading Policy was filed as Exhibit 19 to our 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Committee Charters. Our audit, nominating and corporate governance, compensation and management succession, risk and IT/cybersecurity committees maintain written charters that are reviewed each year.
You can view our code conduct, code of ethics, corporate governance guidelines, and TriCo committee charters on our website at https://www.tcbk.com/about/corporate-governance. You may also request copies of these documents by contacting our corporate secretary in writing at TriCo Bancshares, 63 Constitution Drive, Chico, California 95973, or by telephone at (530) 898-0300.
Board Leadership Structure
Independent Board Leadership
Our Board is committed to objective, independent leadership for our Board and each of its committees. Our Board views the active, objective, independent oversight of management as central to effective Board governance, to serving the best interests of our company and our shareholders, and to executing our strategic objectives and creating long-term value. This commitment is reflected in our company’s governing documents, including our Bylaws, our Corporate Governance Guidelines, and the governing documents of each of the Board’s committees.
Our Board’s Leadership Structure
Our Board believes that its optimal leadership structure may change over time to reflect our company’s evolving needs, strategy, and operating environment; changes in our Board’s composition and leadership needs; and other factors, including
Annual Proxy Statement 13

Table of Contents
the perspectives of shareholders and other stakeholders. In accordance with Corporate Governance Guidelines, our Board has the flexibility to determine the Board leadership structure best suited to the needs and circumstances of our company and our Board.
In May 2024, the Board conducted its annual review of its current structure, with Richard Smith as CEO and chairman and Cory Giese as Independent Lead Director and believes this structure continues to be the optimal leadership framework for the company at this time. On May 23, 2024, our Board re-elected Richard P. Smith, President and Chief Executive Officer as Chairman of the Board. In recognition that Mr. Smith is not independent, our Board also re-elected Cory Giese as our Independent Lead Director and empowered him with robust, well-defined duties and authorities, which are described below. As a highly regulated community financial services company that operates in an ever changing environment, we and our shareholders benefit from a combined chairman / chief executive officer with deep experience and leadership in, and knowledge of, the financial services industry, our company, and its businesses; as well as his ability to communicate our business strategies to our shareholders, customers, employees, regulators and the public, promoting accountability for the Company’s performance. We and our shareholders also benefit from an independent lead director who is empowered with, and exercises, robust, well-defined duties (see the following section for a list of the duties); who is highly engaged and holds meetings with our independent directors, our CEO, and other management members.
Our Independent Lead Director, together with the other independent directors, exemplifies objective independent Board leadership, and effectively engages and oversees management. The Independent Lead Director is joined by experienced, independent Board members and a Chairman who, as CEO, serves as the primary voice to articulate our long-term strategy. The independent directors provide objective oversight of management, review the CEO’s performance and approve CEO compensation, help to establish the long-term strategy and regularly assess its effectiveness, and serve the best interests of our company and our shareholders by overseeing management’s work to create long-term value.
Our Board believes that these factors, taken together, provide for objective, independent Board leadership, effective engagement with and oversight of management, and a voice independent from management and accountable to shareholders and other stakeholders. Under the leadership of our President, CEO and Chairman and our Independent Lead Director, our Board is committed to engaging with shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board will annually review the effectiveness of this arrangement and believes this structure is in the best interest of shareholders and serves the Company well at this time.
Independent Lead Director Duties
The Independent Lead Director's role includes the following duties and authorities:
Meetings
•Consults with the chairman regarding the agenda and associated materials for Board meetings.
•Evaluates Board meeting schedules to ensure that there is sufficient time for discussion of all agenda items.
•Presides at Board meetings when the chairman is absent or in circumstances where the chairman is (or may be perceived to be) conflicted.
•Engages with other independent directors to identify matters for discussion during executive sessions of the independent directors.
•Presides over regular executive sessions of the independent directors or meetings of independent directors.
•Authorized to call meetings of the independent directors or of the Board with any other director.
Communication with the Chairman
•Debriefs the chairman regarding decisions reached and suggestions made at meetings of independent directors or during executive sessions.
•Facilitates communication between the independent directors and the chairman, including presenting the chairman’s views, concerns and issues to such directors and raising with the chairman, as appropriate, views, concerns and issues raised by such directors.
14 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
•Engages with the chairman between Board meetings and assists with informing or engaging with independent directors, as appropriate.
•Works closely with the chairman to ensure the Company is building a healthy governance culture and an effective relationship between management personnel and members of the Board.
Governance Process
•Works with the nominating and corporate governance committee in the oversight of the Board, committee and individual director evaluation process.
•As part of the nomination process for election or re-election to the Board, assists the nominating and corporate governance committee, by engaging with each director individually regarding the performance and functioning of the Board, its committees and other evaluation matters, as appropriate, and inquiring as to whether any director has concerns about the nomination of other directors.
•Ensures that the Board acts and functions independently from management in fulfilling its fiduciary obligations.
•Ensures that the independent directors, as applicable, have the opportunity (if needed), at each regularly scheduled meeting, to meet separately without the presence of non-independent directors and management.
Other Powers and Responsibilities
•Authorized to retain independent advisors on behalf of the Board as the Board or independent directors may deem necessary or appropriate.
•Provides leadership to the Board if circumstances arise in which the chairman may be, or may be perceived to be, in conflict, in responding to any reported conflicts of interest, or potential conflicts of interest, arising for any director.
Commitment to Diversity
The Board’s diversity principles acknowledge and embrace the benefits of having a diverse board of directors. These principles are incorporated into TriCo's corporate governance guidelines. Diversity in the Board’s composition boosts creativity and supports informed decision-making based on different perspectives. It also helps us understand and engage with a variety of stakeholders and to achieve our business and other goals increasing shareholder value.
At TriCo, board diversity consists of a number of individual elements, including gender, age, nationality, cultural and educational backgrounds, skills and experience. We believe that diversity is not a static concept, but rather a relevant mix of required elements for the Board as a whole that evolves with time based on, among other things, the relevant business objectives and future needs of TriCo. We treat board diversity as a means for improvement and development rather than an end in itself. The Board applies these principles when evaluating the composition of the Board and in evaluating potential candidates.
Annual Proxy Statement 15

Table of Contents
The following graphs illustrate the independence, tenure, age, and other demographics of our Board of Directors, as of April 2, 2025:
Director Majority Vote Resignation Policy
Pursuant to governing law, including the Company’s bylaws, in most cases the Company's directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast. Although nominees who receive the most votes for the available positions will generally continue to be duly elected, TriCo’s corporate governance guidelines provide that any nominee for director in an uncontested election (as long as cumulative voting is not in effect) receiving a greater number of votes withheld from the director’s election than votes for the director’s election (a "majority withhold vote"), must tender a resignation to the chair of the corporate governance and nominating committee promptly following certification of the shareholder vote. The committee will promptly consider the tendered resignation and recommend to the Board whether to accept or reject it. In determining whether to recommend acceptance or rejection of the tendered resignation, the committee will consider all factors it deems relevant including, without limitation, the stated reasons why shareholders "withheld" votes from the director, the director's length of service and qualifications, the director's contributions to the Company, and the Company's corporate governance guidelines. The Company will inform shareholders of its decision in a Form 8-K filed with the SEC within 90 days of the date of the shareholders’ meeting at which the election occurred. Our corporate governance guidelines can be found at: https://www.tcbk.com/about/corporate-governance.
In the election of directors, you may vote “for” or “withhold” with respect to each director nominee. However, neither a “withhold” vote nor declining to vote for directors (assuming the presence of a quorum) affects whether a director nominee in an uncontested election is legally elected under the plurality vote standard (provided such nominee receives at least one “for” vote). But a “withhold” vote is considered in determining whether a director who is legally elected has received a “majority withhold vote” for purposes of our resignation policy.
16 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Annual Election of Directors
The members of the Board are elected at least annually at the annual meeting of shareholders for one-year terms ending at the end of the next annual meeting. The Board’s nominating and corporate governance committee is responsible for preparing the proposal to shareholders for the election or re-election of directors. When considering nominees, the committee:
•Reviews the current composition of the Board taking into account the number of directors, their independence, diversity and availability for service to TriCo; and
•Establishes and reviews with the Board the appropriate skills and characteristics required of the directors, also in light of our anticipated needs.
See also "Nomination and Election of Directors" on page 23.
Director Independence
We believe that independent directors play an important role in TriCo’s corporate governance and are committed to ensuring that a significant majority of our directors are independent. Our corporate governance guidelines provide that a director is independent if he or she does not have a material relationship with TriCo directly or indirectly as a partner, shareholder or officer of an organization that has a relationship with TriCo, and otherwise qualifies as independent under the applicable rules of the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Nasdaq. Our independence determinations are based upon a review of all relevant transactions and relationships between TriCo, our senior management and our accountants, on the one hand, and each director and the director’s family members and affiliated interests, on the other hand.
Our Board has affirmatively determined that all of our directors are independent as defined by Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 5605(a)(1) and our own corporate governance guidelines, with the exception of Mr. Smith who is employed as our president and chief executive officer.
In making its determination that Mr. Koehnen is independent, the Board considered that the daughter of Mr. Smith and the son of Mr. Koehnen are married. These children of Messrs. Smith and Koehnen are independent adults and do not live in the household of either director. Furthermore, Mr. Koehnen is Secretary of the Company but does not receive any additional compensation for serving in such a capacity.
In making a determination that Mr. Leggio is independent, the Board considered that Mr. Leggio is President/Manager and part owner of Bolthouse Properties LLC. Bolthouse is the landlord for a Tri Counties Bank branch located in Bakersfield, California. The branch was acquired by Tri Counties Bank in connection with its acquisition of Valley Republic Bancorp on March 25, 2022. Annual rent for 2024, 2023 and 2022 was $97,416, $97,416, and $90,774, respectively. The 10-year lease was entered into in 2012 and in 2022 the Bank exercised its first of four five-year options.
In making its determination that Mr. McGraw is independent, the Board considered Mr. McGraw’s former position as CEO at FNB Bancorp and its subsidiary First National Bank prior to the acquisition by TriCo in July 2018. Furthermore, the Board also considered that Mr. McGraw receives non-discretionary payments pursuant to an Executive Supplemental Compensation Agreement with First National Bank in connection with his former employment.
Transactions with Related Persons
Our nominating and corporate governance committee is charged with monitoring and reviewing issues involving potential conflicts of interest and reviewing and approving all related party transactions. We have a policy adopted by our Board of Directors for reviewing transactions between TriCo and our directors and executive officers, their family members and entities with which they have a position or relationship. Our procedures for transactions with related persons are intended to determine whether any such related person transaction impairs the independence of a director or presents a conflict of interest on the part of a director or executive officer. All transactions between TriCo and related persons may be consummated only if our nominating and corporate governance committee approves such transaction in accordance with the procedures set forth in our policy.
We annually require each of our directors and executive officers to complete a questionnaire that seeks information about related person transactions. Our nominating and corporate governance committee and Board of Directors annually review all
Annual Proxy Statement 17

Table of Contents
transactions and relationships disclosed in the questionnaires, and the Board makes a formal determination regarding each director’s independence under our corporate governance guidelines.
TriCo and its subsidiaries employ more than 1,200 employees, and some employees may be an immediate family member of an executive officer, director or director nominee of TriCo. Such employees participate in compensation and incentive plans or arrangements on the same basis as other similarly situated employees. Craig Carney, EVP/Chief Credit Officer, has a son who works in the commercial banking group, is not an executive officer, does not reside in the same household as Mr. Carney, and reports under the team members that are direct reports of Daniel Bailey, EVP/Chief Banking Officer. Judi Giem, SVP/Chief Human Resources Officer, has a spouse who is SVP/Regulatory Affairs, is not an executive officer, and reports directly to John Fleshood, EVP/Chief Operating Officer. Total compensation for these employees, which in both cases exceeded $120,00 for 2024, was determined in accordance with TriCo’s employment practices and procedures for similarly situated employees.
Except as disclosed herein and with respect to loans under “Indebtedness of Board and Management Members,” there were no transactions or series of similar transactions during 2024, or any currently proposed transaction, to which TriCo or Tri Counties Bank was or is to be a party, in which the amount involved exceeded $120,000 or in which any of our directors, director nominees, executive officers or any shareholder owning 5% or more of our common stock, or any member of the immediate family or associate of any of the foregoing persons, had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.
Indebtedness of Board and Management Members
Some of our directors, executive officers and their immediate family members and associates are customers of Tri Counties Bank and we expect to have banking transactions with them in the future. The Board reviews the terms and fairness of any loans made by the bank to our directors and officers. All such loans and commitments to lend to such persons: (i) were made in compliance with Federal Reserve Board Regulation O; (ii) were made in the ordinary course of business; (iii) were made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable loans with persons not related to the lender; and (iv) did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features. As of the date of this proxy statement, all of these loans were performing in accordance with their terms.
Stock Ownership Guidelines
TriCo’s Board of Directors believes that its directors should have a stake in the performance of TriCo’s stock, to align their decisions with creating shareholder value. TriCo’s Stock Ownership Guidelines encourages directors and executive officers to accumulate a meaningful position in TriCo common stock. Directors are expected to own stock in TriCo equal in value equal to a multiple of at least three times the director’s retainer.
This minimum ownership should be achieved within five years after any new director is elected to the Board. Compliance with share ownership guidelines is reviewed annually by the nominating and corporate governance committee. As of December 31, 2024, all covered executive officers and directors met the stock ownership guidelines.
For executive officer stock ownership requirements, see “Compensation Discussion and Analysis - Stock Ownership Guidelines” on page 43.
No Hedging Transactions
The Company’s insider trading policy prohibits executive officers, directors and certain named employees from purchasing any financial instruments (such as prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars or exchange funds), making short sales of TriCo securities or otherwise engaging in any transactions that hedge or offset any decrease in the market value of TriCo securities or limit the ability to profit from an increase in the market value of TriCo securities. Except as discussed above, the policy does not prohibit all employees from hedging.
No Margin Accounts or Pledges
Furthermore, the Company’s insider trading policy prohibits executive officers, directors and certain named employees from holding TriCo securities in a margin account or pledging TriCo securities as collateral for a loan.
18 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Board Self-Assessment
Our Board conducts a self-assessment annually, which is reviewed and discussed with the Board. In addition, all committees of the Board are expected to conduct annual self-assessments. See “Annual Committee Evaluations” on page 22.
The Board’s Role in Enterprise Risk Oversight
Having appropriate independence and expertise, the Board plays a pivotal role in governance through its oversight of the Company’s implementation and operation of the Enterprise Risk Management Framework ("ERM"). The ERM is designed to enable effective and efficient identification, assessment, measurement and management of key enterprise risks and to align risk appetite and strategy. Management is responsible for the day-to-day management of these risks across the Company. Our Chief Risk Officer has primary responsibility for the implementation of the Company’s ERM in support of the Board’s risk oversight responsibilities, including establishment of risk management standards, engaging with business leaders on risk-taking activities and risk mitigation strategies, assessing the effectiveness of our risk management processes, and risk reporting to senior management, management committees, and the Board, either directly or through designated Board committees.
The full Board engages in periodic discussions related to risk management with executive officers and other employees as the Board deems appropriate. In addition, several Board committees have been assigned oversight responsibility for specific areas of risk; and risk management is an agenda topic at regular committee meetings, including:
•Audit Committee: financial reporting, regulatory compliance, fraud, and legal risks and significant risk trends as identified through the internal audit and compliance management programs
•Compensation and Management Succession Committee: risks that may result from our incentive compensation programs and human capital (attraction, retention, and succession planning activities as conducted by management)
•Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee: risks related to corporate governance, reputation, conduct, sustainability and environmental
•Risk Committee: credit, liquidity, capital, interest rate and market, and operational risks, and significant risk trends identified by the chief risk officer
•Information Technology & Cybersecurity Committee: data governance, information technology system and threat, cybersecurity data privacy and data protection risks
•Community Reinvestment Act Committee: CRA Program risk and related reputation risk
In general, and except as delegated above, the Board oversees risks related to governance, social and environmental matters; however, some of these risks receive oversight from the following committees: compensation and management succession (human capital, succession), nominating and corporate governance (board composition, effectiveness of corporate governance policies), risk (impact of climate change on lending), nominating and corporate governance (environmental), and community reinvestment act (community engagement).
In addition, management established an Executive Risk Committee (“ERC”), chaired by the Chief Risk Officer, and comprised of executives responsible for all major categories of risk to provide management oversight and guidance related to the Company’s enterprise risk management, including the CEO, CFO, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Credit Officer, Chief Banking Officer, Chief Human Resources Officer, the Chief Information Officer and others. The ERC updates the Company’s risk appetite statement and enterprise risk management policy on an annual basis and establishes various risk tolerances focused on quantitative and qualitative key risk indicators, which are ultimately approved by the Board of Directors. The ERC has various sub-committees to address specific areas of risk.
Information Security / Cybersecurity
Information security is a significant operational risk for financial institutions. The Company has implemented a comprehensive set of information security policies, programs, an incident response plan, and related employee training programs. The Board
Annual Proxy Statement 19

Table of Contents
information technology & cybersecurity committee has oversight responsibility for our efforts to respond to the evolving cybersecurity and technology related risks. Our Chief Information Security Officer and Chief Information Officer provide at least quarterly reports on the Company's cybersecurity risks and framework and provide a full information security and incident response report to the Board annually. We continue to strengthen the Company's infrastructure and staffing and enhance its comprehensive cybersecurity and technology controls. In addition, the continuous improvement of our resiliency against cybersecurity threats remains a key focus for our Board and all levels of management. Among other actions, we provide training for all employees, engage in cross-functional cybersecurity tabletop exercises, and continue to improve and enhance internal reporting to the Board, including the results of regularly performed systems vulnerability scans and other controls testing. We have business continuity/disaster recovery and incident response programs in place which are tested on a regular basis. Our information security department and internal audit program periodically engage independent third parties to help assess the maturity of the Company's cybersecurity efforts and assist management in better managing risks. We also maintain cybersecurity insurance to provide coverage for certain losses.
Committee Composition
Our full Board of Directors provides oversight on all major corporate decisions. However, we have established standing committees so that some matters can be addressed in more depth than may be practical in a full Board meeting and to comply with legal and Nasdaq requirements that certain committees be comprised of independent directors, including a compensation and management succession committee, a nominating and corporate governance committee and an audit committee. In addition, we have established risk and information technology & cybersecurity committees; and our subsidiary bank, Tri Counties Bank, maintains a community reinvestment act (“CRA”) committee. Each committee operates under a written charter.
The following table indicates for each current committee, its current membership and the number of meetings held during 2024.

| Audit | Compensation and Management Succession | Nominating and Corporate Governance | Risk | IT & Cybersecurity | CRA*
Number of Meetings Held | 11 | 6 | 4 | 4 | 4 | 4
Members |  |  |  |  |  |
Kirsten E. Garen | ● |  |  |  | Chair | ●
Cory W. Giese |  |  | ● | ● | ● |
John S. A. Hasbrook | ● | ● | Chair |  |  |
Margaret L. Kane* |  |  |  | ● | ● | Chair
Michael W. Koehnen |  |  |  | ● |  |
Anthony L. Leggio |  |  |  | ● |  | ●
Martin A. Mariani | ● | Chair | ● |  |  |
Thomas C. McGraw |  |  |  | ● | ● | ●
Jon Y. Nakamura | ● |  |  | Chair |  |
Richard P. Smith |  |  |  |  |  |
Kimberley H. Vogel | Chair | ● |  |  | ● |

* Bank-level committee
The Board has determined that all directors, other than Mr. Smith, our chairman and CEO, are independent under Nasdaq listing standards as described at “Director Independence” on page 17.
Below is a brief description of each of these committees.
20 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Audit Committee
•Oversees our financial reporting process and systems of internal controls regarding financial reporting and accounting,
•Evaluates our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
•Monitors the independence, qualifications and performance of our financial executives, independent registered public accounting firm and internal audit department,
•Oversees regulatory compliance, fraud and legal risks and significant risk trends as identified through the internal audit compliance management programs,
•Oversees the communication among our independent registered public accounting firm, management, our internal audit function and the Board, and
•Oversees the Company's whistleblower program.
The Board has determined that Ms. Vogel is an audit committee financial expert under the rules of the SEC and that each member of the committee is financially literate as defined by Nasdaq listing standards and is independent under the standards established by the SEC and Nasdaq for audit committee members. Their qualifications and business expertise are described at “Board of Directors.”
The audit committee also annually retains our independent registered public accounting firm and approves the terms and scope of work to be performed. For more information on this committee, please see “Report of the Audit Committee” on page 66. The audit committee has authority to conduct any investigation appropriate to fulfilling its responsibilities and has direct access to all persons in the Company.
Compensation and Management Succession Committee
•Considers the recommendations of our management regarding most compensation matters, including director and executive compensation,
•Approves TriCo’s compensation philosophy,
•Evaluates and approves the compensation levels for our Board and chief executive officer and evaluates the compensation of other executive officers,
•Oversees the production of the compensation discussion and analysis of executive compensation included in this proxy statement,
•Oversees our long-term equity incentive plans,
•Approves the benefits provided to our executive officers and directors,
•Evaluates the management’s risk assessment of the Company’s incentive compensation plans,
•Oversees the Company's management of human capital, including talent management; and
•Reviews and approves our management succession policies.
For more information on this committee, please see “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” beginning on page 30.
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
•Determines nominees to the Board in the manner described at “Nomination and Election of Directors” (page 23),
•Reviews our Board committee structure and members,
•Annually evaluates Board performance,
•Approves any related party transactions as described at “Transactions with Related Persons” (page 17),
Annual Proxy Statement 21

Table of Contents
•Monitors director independence,
•Reviews our corporate governance guidelines and codes of business ethics and conduct,
•Evaluates director candidates,
•Recommends the selection of an independent lead director for shareholder concern, and
•Oversees sustainability and environmental risks.
Risk Committee
•Evaluates and oversees the Company’s efforts to identify, monitor and manage credit, capital, market (including interest rate & liquidity) and operational risks,
•Periodically evaluates and sets the Company’s risk tolerances in these areas,
•Considers the risk impact of any strategic decisions the Board may be contemplating in relation to the Company’s established risk tolerances,
•Periodically examines the risk culture of the Company, and
•Oversees the division of risk-related responsibilities of each Board committee to ensure oversight of significant risks are assigned and monitored.
Information Technology & Cybersecurity Committee
•Monitors and oversees the information technology strategic plan,
•Evaluates and oversees the Company’s risk management practices regarding computing practices, disaster recovery, business continuity, information security, cybersecurity, and future security risks,
•Receives quarterly updates on information security and cybersecurity trends and current efforts of management, and receives an annual report on the Company’s information security risk assessment efforts, and
•Periodically evaluates and sets the Company’s risk tolerances in these and other areas.
Community Reinvestment Act Committee
•Reviews and monitors the Bank’s CRA qualified community development service performance, including community outreach and marketing efforts, and
•Reviews public comments regarding the Bank’s CRA performance.
Annual Committee Evaluations
Each committee has implemented a process to assess committee performance and effectiveness. The assessments are conducted on an annual basis and include a self-assessment by each committee. The review includes an evaluation of various areas that may include committee size, composition, performance, coordination among committee members and among the standing committees, and involvement with the full Board. The results of the committee performance assessments are reviewed by each committee and discussed with the full Board.
CEO and Senior Management Succession Planning
Our Board, with the compensation and management succession committee, oversees CEO and senior management succession planning, which is formally reviewed at least annually. Our Board reviews potential internal senior management candidates with our CEO, third party consultants and other executive management members, including the qualifications, experience, and development priorities for these individuals. Directors engage potential senior management successors at Board and
22 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
committee meetings and in less formal settings to allow directors to personally assess candidates. Further, our Board periodically reviews the overall composition of our senior management’s qualifications, tenure, and experience.
Our Board also establishes steps to address emergency CEO and senior management succession planning in extraordinary circumstances. Our emergency CEO succession planning is intended to enable our Company to respond to unexpected position vacancies, including those resulting from a major catastrophe, by continuing our Company’s safe and sound operation and minimizing potential disruption or loss of continuity to our Company’s business and operations.
Attendance at Meetings
In addition to committee meetings discussed earlier, there were 6 and 7 board meetings in 2024 at the Bank and the Company, respectively. No nominee for director attended less than 75% of the meetings of the Board of Directors of TriCo and the meetings of the committees of TriCo’s Board of Directors on which they served. Average board member attendance for board and committee meetings was approximately 97%.
Our corporate governance guidelines provide that each director is expected to attend our Annual Meeting of Shareholders. All but one of our directors at that time attended the 2024 annual shareholders meeting, either in person or via phone/internet.
Nomination and Election of Directors
Qualifications. Our nominating and corporate governance committee determines the director nominees for each annual meeting of shareholders using the criteria set forth in our corporate governance guidelines. Our guidelines provide that all directors must be committed to representing the long-term interests of our shareholders and possess:
•The highest personal and professional ethics, integrity and values,
•Informed judgment,
•Sound business experience,
•The ability to make independent analytical inquiries, and
•An understanding of our business environment.
The committee has not established any specific minimum qualification standards for directors, except that no person may serve as a director who is 75 years of age or older at the time of election or serve on more than four public company boards (including the Company).
Director Skills. The committee may identify certain skills or attributes as being particularly desirable for specific director nominees in order to complement the existing Board composition. To date the committee has identified and evaluated nominees for directors based on several factors, including:
•Business or banking experience,
•Knowledge of financial accounting and related internal control requirements,
•Involvement in and familiarity with our community and the markets we serve,
•Risk management,
•Technology or cybersecurity,
•Digital media,
•Agriculture/sustainability,
•Strategic planning,
•Business operations / acumen,
•Independence from the Company,
•Regulatory and/or environment familiarity,
•Compliance, legal and corporate governance,
•Senior leadership abilities, and
•Prior board or public reporting company experience.
We do not currently pay any fee to a third party to identify potential director nominees, although we have in the past retained search firms to assist in identifying qualified candidates.
Annual Proxy Statement 23

Table of Contents
Shareholder Nominations
The committee will consider nominees recommended by shareholders if the recommendation is made with the proposed nominee’s consent, includes sufficient information, and is made early enough to allow the committee to complete the evaluation process. Section 18 of our Bylaws, which was amended in May 2023, provides that formal nomination for election of directors may be made by the Board of Directors or by any shareholder of any outstanding class of our capital stock entitled to vote for the election of directors. A shareholder must provide notice of nomination not earlier than 120 days and not later than 90 days before the date of an annual meeting; provided, if the date for the annual meeting has changed more than 30 days from the date on which the prior year’s annual meeting was held, then such notice must be received not later than the 10th day following the day on which public announcement of the date of such meeting is first made. The following is a summary of the information that must be provided with the nominating shareholder’s notice:
•The name and address of the nominating shareholder and the classes and number of shares of capital stock of the Corporation held and beneficially owned,
•The full name, age and date of birth of each candidate as well as certain information about the candidate as set forth in the bylaws,
•A signed representation by each such candidate that the candidate will timely provide any other information reasonably requested by us for the purpose of preparing our disclosures in regard to the solicitation of proxies for the election of directors,
•If a nominating shareholder will solicit proxies for a nominee or nominees other than the Company’s nominees, the nominating shareholder’s notice must additionally provide additional information and representations as required by the proxy rules of the SEC, including the outlined time-frame, and
•Upon our request, any nominee proposed by a shareholder must promptly (but within ten (10) days of our request) complete and return a director questionnaire to be provided by us.
The above is only a summary of the requirements. Any shareholder intending to nominate a candidate for director is urged to review the Company’s bylaws, a copy of which is included as Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 23, 2023.
Cumulative Voting
Each shareholder is entitled to cumulate votes in the election of directors. This means that a shareholder may cast votes for the number of shares owned multiplied by the number of directors to be elected. For example, if you own 1,000 shares, you could cast 11,000 votes because we will be electing 11 directors at the meeting. You could cast those votes for a single candidate or distribute your votes among any or all of the candidates. However, you may not cumulate votes for a candidate unless that candidate has been properly nominated prior to the voting and you have given notice of your intention to cumulate your votes. You must express your intention to cumulate votes at the meeting prior to casting your votes in the election. If any shareholder gives notice to cumulate shares, all other shareholders shall be allowed to cumulate their votes as well. We will provide an opportunity at the meeting for any shareholder who desires to cumulate votes to announce such intention to do so. We are soliciting, by your proxy, the discretionary authority to vote proxies cumulatively. The 11 nominees receiving the highest number of votes will be elected as directors, subject to our director resignation policy discussed on page 16.
Compensation and Management Succession Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
No member of our compensation and management succession committee is an officer, former officer or employee of TriCo or Tri Counties Bank. None of our executive officers serves on the board of directors of any other company that has one or more executive officers serving as a member of our compensation and management succession committee. In addition, none of our executive officers serves as a member of the compensation committee of the board of any other company that has one or more executive officers serving as a member of our Board or our compensation and management succession committee. No such interlocking relationships existed during 2024.
24 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS
Director Compensation
The following table summarizes the compensation paid by TriCo to our non-employee directors in 2024:

Name (1) | Fees earned or paid in cash ($) | Stock awards ($) (2) | Option awards ($) | Change in pension value and nonqualified deferred compensation earnings ($) (3) | All other Compensation ($) (4) | Total ($) | Number of stock options outstanding as of 12/31/24 | Number of shares underlying stock awards outstanding as of 12/31/24
Active: |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
Kirsten E. Garen | 63,629 | 77,574 | — | — | — | 141,203 |  | — | 2,137
Cory W. Giese | 67,500 | 77,574 | — | — | — | 145,074 |  | — | 2,137
John S. A. Hasbrook | 60,000 | 77,574 | — | — | 772 | 138,346 |  | — | 2,137
Margaret L. Kane | 60,000 | 77,574 | — | — | — | 137,574 |  | — | 2,137
Michael W. Koehnen | 52,500 | 77,574 | — | — | 733 | 130,807 |  | — | 2,137
Anthony L. Leggio | 52,500 | 77,574 | — | — | — | 130,074 |  | — | 2,137
Martin A. Mariani | 62,500 | 77,574 | — | 3,808 | — | 143,882 |  | — | 2,137
Thomas C. McGraw | 52,500 | 77,574 | — | — | — | 130,074 |  | — | 2,137
Jon Y. Nakamura | 62,500 | 77,574 | — | — | — | 140,074 |  | — | 2,137
Kimberley H. Vogel | 67,500 | 77,574 | — | — | — | 145,074 |  | — | 2,137

(1) Richard Smith, our President and Chief Executive Officer, is not included in this table because he is an employee of TriCo and receives no additional cash compensation for his service as a director and Chairman of the Board. Mr. Smith’s compensation is shown at “Compensation of Named Executive Officers” on page 48.
(2) Represents the grant date fair value determined in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 718. Stock compensation is described in Note 17 - Stock Options and Other Equity-Based Incentive Instruments" of the Company's consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, as filed with the SEC on March 3, 2025. On May 23, 2024, we granted each of our then-current non-employee directors a restricted stock unit (“RSU”) award for 2,087 shares of common stock that vests in full on May 23, 2025. Stock awards outstanding as of December 31, 2024, represent these grants and include the amount of dividends reinvested in RSUs. Dividends accrue without interest with respect to the corresponding number of shares subject to the award. Such dividend equivalents accrue and are converted into additional shares (equal to the fair market value of TriCo’s common stock at the time of such dividend). Such additional shares do not vest unless and until the underlying award vests.
(3) With respect to Director Mariani, balance reflects the above-market interest earned during 2024 under our deferred compensation plan described herein.
(4) Reflects the taxable value attributable to the split dollar life insurance benefits described on page 54.
Composition of Non-Employee Director Compensation
Cash Retainers
Non-employee directors’ annual retainers were $52,500 during 2024. Furthermore, the following directors receive annual retainers as indicated for their added responsibilities: independent lead director and the chair of the audit committee: $15,000; $10,000 each to the chairs of the risk, compensation and IT/cyber risk committees; and $7,500 each to the chairs of the nominating and corporate governance, and CRA committees. We do not pay our directors any additional compensation to
Annual Proxy Statement 25

Table of Contents
attend individual Board or committee meetings. See also “Periodic Review of Director Compensation - Director Compensation Adjustments in 2024.”
Equity Based Awards
A significant portion of each non-employee director’s annual compensation is in the form of equity, which the Board believes helps align director compensation with the interests of our stockholders. Each non-employee director was awarded approximately $75,000 in RSUs under the 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (“2019 Plan”) on May 23, 2024 that vest one year from the date of grant. The unit or share equivalent of such director equity grants are based on an average of the Company’s closing stock price over the trailing 30 market days leading up to the grant date. See also “Periodic Review of Director Compensation - Director Compensation Adjustments in 2024.”
Other Director Compensation Matters
Indemnity Agreements
In addition, each director has an indemnity agreement under which each of TriCo or the Bank will indemnify the director against claims arising or relating to the director’s service as a director. We also maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance covering our directors and officers.
Deferred Compensation Plans
In 2005 we adopted a deferred compensation plan permitting our directors to defer payment of their retainer fees until retirement, termination of directorship, or death. A director can defer up to a lifetime maximum of $1.5 million for all deferrals under this plan and our predecessor plan, which permitted director deferrals from 1992 until 2004. A director who elects to defer retainer fees for any year must defer a minimum of $200 per month. For 2024, two directors (Directors Garen and Mariani) elected to participate in this plan. The plan also permits us to make discretionary contributions to a director’s account. To date, we have not made any discretionary contributions on behalf of any directors. A director’s plan benefit is payable upon the director’s retirement, the termination of directorship or death. All distributions under the plan are subject to the rules of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”). The plan is nonqualified, unsecured and unfunded.
For contributions made prior to January 1, 2021, interest accrues on directors’ deferred compensation plan accounts at a rate equal to 1% above the monthly equivalent of the annual yield of the Moody’s average corporate bond yield index for the preceding month. From the time that a director leaves our Board and until benefits are paid, a director’s account under the plan is credited with interest each month at the monthly equivalent of the annual yield of the Moody’s average corporate bond yield index for the preceding month. Due to the historic low rates of interest and to minimize future costs, the Board determined to reduce the interest earned on deferrals under the plan on or after January 1, 2021 to a rate of 1.5% below the Moody Index with a floor of 0.5%. A director is immediately 100% vested in any deferrals and any related interest on those deferrals. We determine the vesting rate for any discretionary contributions credited to a director’s account and any related interest. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a director is removed for cause, our compensation and management succession committee can decide whether the interest credited to the director’s account with respect to any deferrals and our discretionary contributions, if any, are forfeited.
Director Supplemental Retirement Plan
In 2004, we adopted a supplemental retirement plan to provide additional retirement benefits to directors who retire on or after January 1, 2004. This plan replaced our supplemental retirement plan for directors originally adopted in 1987; and any benefit accrued by a director as of December 31, 2003 under this earlier plan will be paid under the terms of the 2004 plan. Directors joining our Board after 2007 are not eligible to participate in this plan. However, any of the eligible outside directors who attains “director emeritus” status becomes qualified to participate in the 2004 plan. A participating director retiring on or after age 55 with at least 15 years of service, or after a change of control with any number of years of service, can receive an annual lifetime benefit equal to the amount of his base Board fees paid by us during the final year of service. The amount of the retirement benefit is reduced for each month that the benefit commencement date precedes the director’s 65th birthday. A director’s annual benefit payments under the plan begin the month after retirement. If a director is involuntarily removed, all benefits under this plan are forfeited. The plan is nonqualified, unsecured and unfunded.
26 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Effective December 14, 2017, the 2004 Director’s Supplemental Retirement Plan was frozen to use the annual retainer fee in effect on December 14, 2017 ($36,000). As of December 31, 2024, the remaining active director participants under the plan are directors Hasbrook and Koehnen and they are fully vested under the plan. No new directors are eligible to join the plan.
Split Dollar Life Insurance
We have entered into joint beneficiary agreements with Directors Hasbrook and Koehnen under a previous director compensation program. These agreements provide that TriCo owns and pays premiums on a split dollar life insurance policy to provide various death benefits in certain circumstances to the beneficiaries named by each of these directors.
Long Term Care Agreements
In 2003, we entered into long-term care agreements with all eligible directors and executive officers and paid a one-time premium for long-term care insurance for each participant. The single premiums cost approximately $50,000 for each participant and were amortized by TriCo over five years. Under certain conditions, the long-term care insurance provides long-term care benefits if a participant becomes disabled or has a long-term medical condition. As of December 31, 2024, Directors Hasbrook and Koehnen are participants under such agreements. Premiums were paid by the Bank in 2003 and participants were taxed on the benefit over a five-year period.
Other Compensation and Reimbursements
Directors are reimbursed for travel expenses related to spouses when spouses are invited to attend Board events.
Periodic Review of Director Compensation - Director Compensation Adjustments in 2024
The compensation and management succession committee assesses non-employee director compensation relative to TriCo’s peers at least every two years using data from, and with the assistance of, an independent consultant. The compensation committee determined to make no changes to the Board annual cash retainer or the value of RSU grants in 2024. Furthermore, there were no changes to committee chair retainers in 2024.
OWNERSHIP OF VOTING SECURITIES
The following table shows the common stock ownership as of April 2, 2025 for beneficial owners of more than 5.0% of our outstanding common stock, each of our directors, our named executive officers for whom we provide executive compensation information in this proxy statement, and our directors and executive officers as a group (including those officers named on page 29 but who are not named executive officers).
Annual Proxy Statement 27

Table of Contents

Beneficial owners | Number of shares beneficially owned(1) | Percentage of shares beneficially owned outstanding
5% Holders |  |  |
FMR LLC 245 Summer Street Boston, Massachusetts 02210 | 2,889,943 | (2) | 8.79%
BlackRock Inc. 55 East 52nd Street New York, NY 10055 | 2,477,374 | (3) | 7.53%
The Vanguard Group, Inc. 100 Vanguard Boulevard Malvern, PA 19355 | 1,752,884 | (4) | 5.38%
Directors and Executive Officers of TriCo and Tri Counties Bank |  |  |
Daniel K. Bailey | 67,534 | (5) | *
Craig B. Carney | 56,443 | (6) | *
John S. Fleshood | 43,045 | (7) | *
Kirsten E. Garen | 9,690 | (8) | *
Cory W. Giese | 52,524 | (9) | *
John S. A. Hasbrook | 64,635 | (10) | *
Margaret L. Kane | 9,700 | (11) | *
Michael W. Koehnen | 218,619 | (12) | *
Anthony L. Leggio | 218,619 | (13) | *
Martin A. Mariani | 66,375 | (14) | *
Thomas C. McGraw | 354,551 | (15) | 1.08%
Jon Y. Nakamura | 6,394 | (16) | *
Richard P. Smith | 313,854 | (17) | *
Kimberley H. Vogel | 9,700 | (18) | *
Peter G. Wiese | 46,669 | (19) | *
All TriCo directors and executive officers as a group (17 persons) | 1,579,510 | (20) | 4.80%

*Less than 1%.
(1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and includes voting or investment power with respect to shares. Unless otherwise indicated below, all persons listed in the table have sole voting and dispositive power with respect to their shares of common stock, except to the extent authority is shared by spouses under applicable law. Pursuant to the rules of the SEC, the number of shares of common stock deemed outstanding includes shares issuable upon settlement of RSUs held by the respective persons that will vest within 60 days of April 2, 2024.
(2) Based on a Schedule 13G/A filed by FMR LLC with the SEC on February 11, 2025, disclosing that it held sole voting power and sole dispositive power over 2,889,943 shares.
(3) Based on a Schedule 13G/A filed by BlackRock, Inc. with the SEC on January 26, 2024, disclosing that it held sole voting power over 2,407,300 shares and sole dispositive power over 2,477,374.
(4) Based on a Schedule 13G filed by The Vanguard Group, Inc. with the SEC on February 13, 2024, disclosing that it held shared voting power over 23,639 shares, shared dispositive power over 53,415 shares, and sole dispositive power over 1,699,469 shares.
(5) Includes 784 shares underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date. Includes 11,832 shares allocated to Mr. Bailey’s account in the ESOP.
(6) Includes 784 shares underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date, 161 shares held by Mr. Carney’s daughter, and 20,869 shares allocated to Mr. Carney’s account in the ESOP.
(7) Includes 1,085 shares underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date and 2,565 shares allocated to Mr. Fleshood’s account in the ESOP.
(8) Includes 2,154 underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date.
28 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
(9) Includes 44,242 shares held by Mr. Giese's spouse of which Mr. Giese disclaims beneficial ownership and 2,154 underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date.
(10) Includes 2,154 underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date.
(11) Includes 2,154 underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date.
(12) Includes 97,715 shares owned by CF Koehnen & Sons, of which Mr. Koehnen is an owner, 8,600 shares owned by the CF Koehnen & Sons Profit Sharing Plan of which Mr. Koehnen is trustee, 3,000 shares owned by the Helen Koehnen Trust of which Mr. Koehnen is trustee, and 2,300 shares owned by Mr. Koehnen's spouse. Also includes 2,154 underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date.
(13) Includes 2,154 underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date. Includes 113,684 shares held in three family/retirement trusts in which Mr. Leggio is trustee and/or beneficiary, 27,780 shares held for family members in which he is deemed to beneficially own as trustee, and 75,000 shares owned by Bolthouse Properties LLC of which he is President/Manager and 5% owner which Mr. Leggio disclaims beneficial ownership.
(14) Includes 2,154 underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date
(15) Includes 2,154 underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date.
(16) Includes 2,154 underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date.
(17) Includes 269 shares held by Mr. Smith's spouse, 2,362 shares underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date, and 42,972 shares allocated to Mr. Smith's account in the ESOP.
(18) Includes 2,154 underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date.
(19) Includes 1,158 underlying RSUs that vest within 60 days of the voting record date, 2,700 shares held in a parent trust in which Mr. Wiese is the trustee, and 1,761 shares allocated to Mr. Wiese's account in the ESOP) .
(20) Includes 28,466 shares underlying RSUs that vest on or before June 1, 2025 (within 60 days of the voting record date), and 83,501 shares allocated to executive officers' accounts in the ESOP. Does not include 1,136,906 shares of stock held by the ESOP, to the extent they are not allocated to executive officer accounts. Directors Giese, Koehnen, and Smith are trustees of the ESOP. Does not include any unvested performance RSUs ("PSUs") as it is not certain as to whether they vest until the vesting determination date.
INFORMATION ABOUT OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
The following persons currently serve as executive officers and senior management of both TriCo and Tri Counties Bank. Age is as of April 2, 2025.
Richard P. Smith. Information about Mr. Smith can be found at “Board of Directors.”
Daniel K. Bailey. Daniel Bailey, age 56, has been Executive Vice President, Chief Banking Officer since July 2019. Prior to that, he was Executive Vice President, Chief Retail Banking Officer from 2015 to July 2019 and previously held the title of Executive Vice President - Retail Banking & Bank Operations from May 2007 to 2015. Prior to joining Tri Counties Bank, Mr. Bailey spent fifteen years at Wells Fargo Bank where he served in numerous senior management positions managing retail branch operations in Northern California.
Craig B. Carney. Craig Carney, age 66, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of Tri Counties Bank since 2007. From 1997 until 2007 he was Senior Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of Tri Counties Bank. From 1985 to 1996 Mr. Carney was employed by Wells Fargo Bank in various lending capacities. His most recent position with Wells Fargo was as Vice President, Senior Lender in commercial banking from 1991 to 1996. Mr. Carney served as a consultant to Tri Counties Bank from 1996 until his employment in 1997.
John S. Fleshood. John Fleshood, age 62, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer since 2016. Previously, Mr. Fleshood served in a variety of management positions at Wintrust Financial Corporation, a financial holding company based in Rosemont, IL from 2005 to 2016, including most recently as Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer. Prior to that, Mr. Fleshood served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Chicago affiliate of Fifth Third Bank from 2001 to 2005, and as Vice President and Manager of the Treasury Division from 1992 to 2001.
Gregory A. Gehlmann. Gregory Gehlmann, age 63, has served as Senior Vice President and General Counsel since 2017. He also serves as Assistant Corporate Secretary. Previously, he served as Chief Bank Counsel & Corporate Secretary of Heritage Oaks Bank, Paso Robles, CA from 2014 to 2017. In 2014, he was an expert witness regarding fiduciary duties of corporate
Annual Proxy Statement 29

Table of Contents
directors and officers and the duties / responsibilities of law firms in advising troubled companies. From 2005 to 2013, he served as General Counsel & Corporate Secretary at First Financial Bancorp, Cincinnati, OH where he also served as Chief Risk Officer from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he practiced law for 16 years in Washington, D.C.
Judi A. Giem. Judi Giem, age 60, has served as our Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer since May 2020. Previously, from 2016 she was Senior Vice President, HR and Talent Management Director at Banner Bank, Walla Walla, WA. Ms. Giem served as an Executive Relationship Manager for Ultimate Software Computer Software from July 2016 to October 2016; and from June 2014 to July 2016, she was Director of Talent Management at Itron, Liberty Lake, WA. Prior to that, Ms. Giem was Vice President, Director of HR Systems and Payroll at Sterling Savings Bank, Spokane, WA (acquired by Umpqua Bank) from 2006 to 2014. Ms. Giem has over 20 years of experience in the human resources field.
Peter G. Wiese. Peter Wiese, age 50, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since 2018. From June 2018 to August 2018, he was a consultant to the Bank. Prior to that, he was a partner with the public accounting firm of Crowe LLP from 2011 through April 2018 specializing in the financial services and banking industries. Mr. Wiese has over 20 years of experience in public accounting. Mr. Wiese is a Certified Public Accountant licensed in California.
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Introduction
TriCo’s executive compensation program is designed to support TriCo’s mission to:
•Improve the financial success and well-being of TriCo’s shareholders, customers, communities and employees;
•Provide opportunities for TriCo’s employees to achieve unparalleled personal and professional success; and
•Enable TriCo’s shareholders to achieve the exceptional rewards of ownership.
You should read this section of the proxy statement in conjunction with the advisory vote that we are conducting on the compensation of our named executive officers (see “Proposals to be Voted on at the Annual Meeting -- Advisory Vote Concerning Executive Compensation” on page 1). This Compensation Discussion and Analysis contains information that is relevant to your voting decision.
Named Executive Officers
From the executive officers listed on page 29 of this proxy statement, TriCo identified the following individuals as named executive officers for 2024:
•Richard P. Smith, President and Chief Executive Officer
•Peter G. Wiese, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
•John S. Fleshood, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
•Craig B. Carney, Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer
•Daniel K. Bailey, Executive Vice President and Chief Banking Officer
The Compensation Discussion and Analysis is organized into three sections:
•Section 1 - Executive Summary
•Section 2 - Performance and Pay
•Section 3 - Compensation Process and Decisions
30 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Key Features – Executive Compensation
•Three component compensation structure with focus on pay for performance and emphasis on long-term performance
•Competitive benchmarking against peers
•Double trigger change in control severance
•Executive compensation and change in control agreements and plans have 280G carve backs and no tax gross-ups
•No excessive executive perks
Key Features – Compensation Oversight and Governance
•Independent Board oversight of CEO compensation (based on the compensation committee’s recommendations)
•Independent compensation committee oversight of non-CEO executive compensation
•Independent compensation consultant to the compensation committee
Key Features – Risk Management
•No incentive plans encourage excessive risk taking
•Recoupment (or clawback) policy
•Insiders are prohibited by policy to hedge, sell puts, sell shorts, or pledge our securities
Key Features - Alignment with Shareholder Interests
•Say on Pay vote on an annual basis: Approved by over 97% of votes cast in 2024; with 95% or higher approval since 2017
•Executive equity ownership guidelines
•50% of equity grants focused on shareholder return (indexed to TSR)
•No repricing of options without shareholder approval
Section 1—Executive Summary
Our Response to Say on Pay Vote
The compensation and management succession committee (which we refer to in this section as the “Committee”) continues to monitor and consider the interests of TriCo’s shareholders regarding executive compensation. We are pleased that in 2024, over 97% of the votes cast (excluding broker non-votes) supported TriCo’s “Say on Pay” proposal. Our Board, the Committee, and our executive team continue to review our executive compensation practices and look for opportunities to improve and strengthen its pay for performance objective and alignment with shareholders’ interests. During the past year the Committee took the following actions:
•Engaged a leading human resources and executive compensation consulting firm, to review our executive compensation program and make recommendations for enhancements to ensure market competitiveness.
•Reviewed Institutional Shareholder Services and Glass Lewis analyses to further understand any ongoing or new concerns about our compensation program.
•Continued to focus on having a significant percentage of executive pay contingent on performance.
•Continued the use of performance-based equity awards. Half of the annual equity grants to the chief executive officer and other executive officers consists of performance based RSUs or "PSUs", where the value of the award upon vesting is based upon total shareholder return (TSR) relative to the KBW Nasdaq Regional Banking Index (KRX). This design is extended further into the organization.
Annual Proxy Statement 31

Table of Contents
•Maintained stock ownership guidelines for directors and executive officers.
Further, we believe our compensation program structure and committee decisions during this period reflect a strong pay-for-performance commitment.
Financial Highlights
In 2024, TriCo accomplished the following:
•Reported earnings of $114.9 million for 2024 compared to $117.4 million for 2023.
•Net revenues decreased by $22.3 million or 5.3% to $395.8 million, from $418.1 million.
•The efficiency ratio for the year ended December 31, 2024, was 59.14% compared to 55.77% for December 31, 2023 amid strong inflationary and competitive pressures.
•Paid $1.32 per share in cash dividends in 2024 compared to $1.20 per share in 2023, and capital ratios remained well above regulatory minimums to be considered “well-capitalized.”
•Continued success in augmentation of our balance sheet through reduction in average borrowings of $136.4 million or 31.7% during 2024, while growing average loans $189.8 million or 2.9% during the same period.
•Continued to maintain an above peer allowance for credit losses to total loans ratio and below peer non-performing asset and past due loan ratios.
•Our net interest margin decreased to 3.71% for the year ended 2024, compared to 3.96% for the year ended 2023.
Summary of 2024 Compensation Decisions:
The Company delivered a year of above peer average performance, all while navigating difficult business and operating conditions, including volatile interest rates, high inflation, elevated regulatory expectations, and political uncertainty. Despite these challenges, we maintained our core compensation strategy and objectives, including pay for performance, appropriate risk management and talent retention and acquisition. As further explained in this Compensation Discussion & Analysis, our key areas of compensation focus during 2024 were:
•Maintaining our core executive compensation program which emphasizes pay for performance, particularly long-term performance; and
•Continuing to focus on risk management.
•Specifically:
◦The named executive officers received nominal base salary increases in 2024 ranging from 1.98% to 2.14%.
◦After evaluating the Company's performance under the Short Term Incentive Plan and other factors, the Committee determined to pay incentive payments at approximately 1.58x target to the CEO and 1.61x target to the other named executive officers. Based on the metrics under this plan, Mr. Smith received a bonus of 111.6% of base salary and the other named officers received bonuses equal to 88.9% of base salary.
As we continue navigating the challenges that have carried into 2025, we will adjust, as needed, our executive compensation strategy and approach to continue to effectively drive the Company’s sustainable, long-term growth and strategy.
Section 2— Performance and Pay
TriCo has long maintained a strong pay-for-performance philosophy that links executive compensation to achievement of the operating and financial goals set by the Board of Directors.
TriCo believes that growth in diluted earnings per share and a continued focus on maintaining a strong balance sheet are key factors in maximizing return to our shareholders.
In 2024, TriCo achieved the following results, compared with prior periods:
32 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents

Financial Metrics ($ in ‘000) |  | 12/31/2024 |  | 12/31/2023 |  |  |  |
Net income per diluted share |  | $3.46 |  | $3.52 |  |  |  |
Non-performing assets to total assets ratio |  | 0.48 | % |  | 0.35 | % |  |  |  |
Loans, net of allowance at FYE |  | $6,643,157 |  | $6,672,948 |  |  |  |
Deposits at FYE |  | $8,087,576 |  | $7,834,038 |  |  |  |
Dividends declared per share |  | $1.32 |  | $1.20 |  |  |  |
Total risk-based capital ratio |  | 15.71 | % |  | 14.70 | % |  |  |  |
Pre-tax pre-provision return on average assets |  | 1.66 | % |  | 1.87 | % |  |  |  |
Net interest margin |  | 3.71 | % |  | 3.96 | % |  |  |  |
Efficiency Ratio |  | 59.14 | % |  | 55.77 | % |  |  |  |

The following graph shows TriCo’s total shareholder return, or TSR, compared with the KBW Nasdaq Regional Banking Index over the past five years. The KBW Nasdaq Regional Banking Index is a regional bank stock index that is comprised of approximately 50 regional banks and thrift stocks selected by Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc., a nationally recognized investment banking firm focused on the financial services sector.

|  |  | Period Ending
Index |  |  |  | 12/31/2019 |  | 12/31/2020 |  | 12/31/2021 |  | 12/31/2022 |  | 12/31/2023 |  | 12/31/2024
TriCo Bancshares |  |  |  | 100.00 |  |  | 89.17 |  |  | 111.05 |  |  | 134.99 |  |  | 117.37 |  |  | 123.34 |
KBW NASDAQ Regional Banking Index |  |  |  | 100.00 |  |  | 87.87 |  |  | 117.04 |  |  | 105.98 |  |  | 101.73 |  |  | 111.49 |

As the chart indicates, the total shareholder return to TriCo investors was approximately 23% over the five years ended December 31, 2024. TriCo exceeded the KBW Nasdaq Regional Banking Index which returned approximately 11% during this five-year period.
Section 3—Compensation Process and Decisions
Compensation Philosophy
TriCo’s executive compensation program is designed to maximize shareholder value by aligning compensation with TriCo’s performance and to attract, retain, motivate and reward a highly qualified executive management team. The Committee believes that these objectives can best be met by linking compensation to the achievement of both individual and corporate performance objectives.
Annual Proxy Statement 33

Table of Contents
The underlying philosophy behind TriCo’s compensation program is straightforward: TriCo pays competitive salaries and rewards executives for enhancement of shareholder value and sustained individual superior performance. Consistent with this philosophy is TriCo’s commitment to offer fair pay based on the respective roles of TriCo’s executives, the market value of their jobs and the opportunity to earn additional cash and non-cash compensation when they provide superior performance.
Role of the Compensation and Management Succession Committee
The Committee has the primary authority to determine TriCo’s compensation philosophy and to establish compensation for Richard P. Smith, TriCo’s President and Chief Executive Officer, and evaluate the compensation of TriCo’s other executive officers. Each component of compensation for TriCo’s executive officers is generally administered under the direction of the Committee and is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that remuneration levels and benefits in totality are competitive and reasonable. In determining each component of compensation and the total compensation package, the Committee reviews a variety of sources to determine and set compensation. Mr. Smith aids the Committee by providing annual recommendations regarding the compensation of all executive officers, other than himself. The Committee can exercise its discretion by modifying any recommended adjustments or awards to the executives. Each executive officer also participates in an annual performance review with Mr. Smith that includes a self-evaluation for the period being assessed. The Committee performs Mr. Smith’s annual performance review.
Peer Group
The Committee routinely benchmarks and compares our compensation and performance against selected peer companies. It utilizes this information as a reference for setting pay and making pay decisions. The Committee, with its compensation consultant and management, conducts a review of the composition of the Company's peer group at least every two years to take into account such factors as asset growth and merger and acquisition activity. In its determination, the Committee considers a variety of factors and characteristics including, among other things, geography, market capitalization, asset size, credit quality, capital, performance on financial and market-based measures, and the extent they compete with our business, as well as for talent.
The Committee utilized Aon to assist it in forming a representative peer group. In 2022, TCBK used a bifurcated criteria system where looser asset criteria were applied for banks in the western United States and tighter asset criteria were applied for banks in the rest of the United States In 2023, TCBK elected to apply a single set of criteria to achieve a national peer group that aligned with the bank in key areas related to bank size, business model, and financial performance. This peer group was limited to higher cost-of-wages areas of the country, namely the Northeast, Middle Atlantic, Southwest, and Mountain Pacific regions.
In August 2023, the Committee re-evaluated the peer group in light of Aon’s recommendations. Based on its review, in consultation with Aon, the Committee determined the peer group for 2024 executive compensation decisions to be as follows:
•CVB Financial Corp. (CVBF)
•TowneBank (TOWN)
•Banner Corp. (BANR)
•International Bancshares Corp. (IBOC)
•Sandy Spring Bancorp (SASR)
•First Foundation Inc. (FFWM)
•First Financial Bankshares (FFIN)
•BancFirst Corp. (BANF)
•Vertex Holdings Inc. (VBTX)
•NBT Bancorp Inc. (NBTB)
•Berkshire Hills Bancorp Inc . (BHLB)
•Stellar Bancorp (STEL)
•First Commonwealth Financial (FCF)
•Origin Bancorp Inc. (OBK)
•National Bank Holdings Corp. (NBHC)
•HomeStreet Inc. (HMST)
•Banc of California Inc. (BANC)
•Brookline Bancorp Inc. (BRKL)
•S&T Bancorp Inc. (STBA)
•Tompkins Financial Corporation (TMP)
•Southside Bancshares Inc. SBSI
•Central Pacific Financial Corp (CPF)
•Hanmi Financial Corp. (HAFC)
This peer group consists of 23 financial institutions with total assets of between $7.4 billion and $16.5 billion at 2022 year end with $10.9 billion at the 50th percentile. The peer group was then re-examined to reflect acquisition growth in 2023 to
34 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
evaluate whether peers remained relevant with respect to expected asset size and other factors. No additional changes were made to the group.
The Committee does not solely rely on comparative data from the peer group. Such comparative data provides helpful market information about our peer companies as a reference, but the Committee does not target any specific positioning or percentile, nor does it use a formulaic approach, in determining executive pay levels. The committee may refer to other banks or financial companies outside of the peer group for additional benchmarking information. It also utilizes other resources, including published compensation surveys and other available proxy and compensation data. All such comparative peer data and supplemental resources are considered, along with the Company’s pay for performance and internal parity objectives within the leadership team. All applicable information is reviewed and considered in aggregate, and the Committee does not place any particular weighting on any one factor.
Role of the Compensation Consultant
To assist in its efforts to meet the objectives outlined above for 2024, the Committee retained Aon to provide general executive compensation consulting services to the Committee and to support management’s need for advice and counsel. The Committee’s charter authorizes the Committee to retain or terminate consultants and to engage other advisors.
The independent compensation consultant reports directly to the Committee but typically collaborates with management to obtain data, clarify information, and review preliminary recommendations prior to the time they are shared with the Committee. In addition, the Committee has the ability to meet with its consultant in executive sessions as the Committee may request from time to time. The consultant provides data regarding market practices and works with management and the Committee to develop recommendations for changes to plan designs and policies consistent with the philosophies and objectives discussed earlier.
During 2024, Aon also provided services to our Company relating to non-executive compensation, including ad hoc compensation projects, and actuarial services and related disclosure requirements. Services provided to management and not the Committee were approved by management and not the Committee. The fees associated with the services provided to management were less than $120,000.
The Committee retained Aon after considering the factors set for forth in Nasdaq’s rules concerning compensation consultant independence and concluding that its retention of Aon was appropriate. The Committee’s conclusion was based on the following factors:
•Executive compensation consulting services provided to the Committee and other consulting services provided to management were performed by separate and distinct divisions of Aon;
•The Committee’s decision to engage Aon was independent of management’s engagement of Aon;
•Total fees paid in 2024 to Aon were not material in the context of total revenues disclosed in Aon’s most recent annual report;
•Aon has adopted and disclosed to the Committee its executive compensation consulting protocols for client engagements and the Committee believes these protocols provide reasonable indications that conflicts of interest will not arise;
•Aon reports directly to the Committee chair on executive compensation matters;
•The Committee members and executive officers of the Company have no business or personal relationship with Aon; and
•The Committee, in its discretion, determines whether to retain or terminate Aon as the Committee’s compensation consultant.
Executive Compensation Program Components - the Committee’s Process for Establishing 2024 Target Compensation
The Compensation Committee takes a holistic approach to establishing the total compensation package for its executives and each element of compensation is interdependent on the other elements. Applying the Company's core values and drawing
Annual Proxy Statement 35

Table of Contents
upon the principles and philosophy discussed earlier, the Compensation Committee utilizes these elements of compensation as building blocks to construct a complete compensation package for each executive that appropriately satisfies the core design criteria of pay for performance, alignment with shareholder interests, market competitiveness, proper governance and compliance with all legal and regulatory guidelines.
The mix and relative weighting of each compensation element reflect the competitive market and the Company's compensation philosophy. The mix of compensation elements may be adjusted from time to time to best support our immediate or longer-term objectives, changes in executive responsibility, and internal consistency.
While the Committee does not set compensation at specific percentage levels compared to the market, the Committee does seek to provide salary, incentive compensation opportunities and employee benefits within a competitive range of the pay practices of TriCo’s peers and competitors. Furthermore, with respect to non-NEOs, surveys prepared by management with the assistance of Aon are also used periodically to assess whether TriCo is maintaining its labor market competitiveness.
In establishing 2024 target compensation, the Committee used this market data along with the CEO’s evaluation of performance and compensation recommendations for the other executive officers and then applied its judgment and experience to set executive officer target compensation. As discussed earlier, while the Committee does consider peer group compensation information (including median compensation) when setting executive compensation, it does not believe it appropriate to establish compensation amounts based solely on this data. The Committee believes that compensation decisions are multi-dimensional and require consideration of additional factors, including market competition for the position and the executive’s:
•Experience, performance, and contributions;
•Long-term potential; and
•Leadership.
In addition, the Board uses a formal, annual performance evaluation process to determine the CEO’s compensation. As part of its performance evaluation, the Board reviews key strategic and leadership behaviors and provides feedback directly to Mr. Smith regarding his performance and the performance of the Company.
Target compensation for each NEO is a mix of short-term (cash) and long-term (stock) incentives. A substantial portion of the target compensation is at risk and varies based on the performance of the Company, including the creation of long-term shareholder value. The emphasis on compensation elements related to performance is specifically intended to affect the actual level of compensation realized versus target.
The compensation program for TriCo’s executives consists of three primary components:
•Base salary,
•Annual performance-based incentive compensation consisting of a cash bonus (“STI”), and
•Long-term incentive compensation comprised of equity-based awards intended to reward executives for the enhancement of shareholder value and to promote retention (“LTI”).
The mix of compensation awarded in 2024 to our NEOs reflects our compensation philosophy. A significant percentage of total compensation is allocated to incentives, based on TriCo’s philosophy of emphasizing long-term, performance-based compensation. TriCo has no pre-established policy or target for the allocation between either cash and non-cash, or short- and long-term, incentive compensation. However, consistent with its focus on long-term, performance-based compensation, in 2024 the Committee continued its focus on placing greater emphasis on pay at risk, including short term bonuses and equity as a percentage of total executive compensation. Based on the summary compensation table on page 48, compensation for the Chief Executive Officer and the other named executive officers for the years indicated was allocated as follows (excluding the change in pension value and nonqualified deferred compensation earnings):
36 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents

| CEO Target Mix of Total Compensation (1)
| 2024 |  | 2023 |  | 2022
Base salary | 38% |  | 37% |  | 37%
Target short-term incentives (annual incentive bonuses) | 26% |  | 26% |  | 26%
Long-term incentives (equity awards) | 34% |  | 34% |  | 34%
Benefits (perks) | 2% |  | 3% |  | 3%
Total | 100% |  | 100% |  | 100%

(1)The chart does not take into account certain post-retirement benefits. See “Compensation of Named Executive Officers – Pension Benefits” and “- Nonqualified Deferred Compensation”.

| Other NEOs Average Target Mix of Total Compensation (1)
| 2024 |  | 2023 |  | 2022
Base salaries | 43% |  | 43% |  | 43%
Target short-term incentives (annual incentive bonuses)(2) | 24% |  | 24% |  | 24%
Long-term incentives (equity awards) | 30% |  | 30% |  | 30%
Benefits (perks) | 3% |  | 3% |  | 3%
Total | 100% |  | 100% |  | 100%

(1)The chart does not take into account certain post-retirement benefits. See “Compensation of Named Executive Officers – Pension Benefits” and “Nonqualified Deferred Compensation”.
Base Salaries
The Committee reviews base salaries annually to align them with market and industry levels as appropriate and after taking into account TriCo’s general financial performance and the executive’s role, responsibilities, experience and future potential.
Annual Proxy Statement 37

Table of Contents
The Committee seeks to establish base salaries that are within the competitive range of salaries for persons holding similarly responsible positions at peer banks and bank holding companies. The Committee also takes into consideration the impact of changes in cash compensation on the expected future cost of supplemental retirement plans.
Based upon guidance provided by Aon through its peer proxy data analysis and additional information captured through a variety of sources, including Aon/McLagan, SEC filings and the California Banker's Association, TriCo believes that it compensates its executives equitably when compared to competitive companies in its peer group.
Chief Executive Officer Base Salary
After reviewing market pay data, taking into consideration the tenure of Mr. Smith, the increases in his base salary in prior years, and his total compensation package, the Committee determined to increase Mr. Smith’s base salary for 2024 (effective March 25, 2024) as follows:

Name |  | 2024 Base Salary | 2023 Base Salary | Change 2023 to 2024 (%) |  | 2023 Base Salary | 2022 Base Salary | Change 2022 to 2023 (%)
Rick Smith |  | $1,015,000 | $995,000 | 2.0% |  | $995,000 | $975,000 | 2.1%

Other Named Executive Officers Base Salary
With regard to the other named executive's base salaries, the Committee reviewed market pay data as well as historical trends of base pay increases; and based on each executive's total compensation package, it was determined that the following market adjustments would be made in 2024 (effective March 25, 2024) as follows:

Name |  | 2024 Base Salary | 2023 Base Salary | Change 2023 to 2024 (%) |  | 2023 Base Salary | 2022 Base Salary | Change 2022 to 2023 (%)
Peter Wiese |  | $526,000 | $515,000 | 2.1% |  | $515,000 | $500,000 | 3.0%
John Fleshood |  | $494,000 | $484,000 | 2.1% |  | $484,000 | $470,000 | 3.0%
Craig Carney |  | $442,000 | $433,000 | 2.1% |  | $433,000 | $420,000 | 3.1%
Dan Bailey |  | $463,000 | $454,000 | 2.0% |  | $454,000 | $445,000 | 2.0%

Annual Incentive Bonuses
It is the Committee’s objective to have a substantial portion of each executive’s compensation contingent upon TriCo’s performance as well as upon the executive’s own level of performance and contribution toward TriCo’s performance. TriCo utilizes annual cash bonuses to align executive compensation with TriCo’s business objectives and TriCo’s performance. Placing an emphasis on incentive compensation is consistent with TriCo’s philosophy of rewarding executives for TriCo’s performance.
Faced with a continuing challenging macroeconomic environment, the Committee believes TriCo performed well and delivered a year of solid strategic execution, balance sheet management, and financial performance, comparing favorably to peers in a number of metrics. For further details about our 2024 business and financial performance, see “Financial Highlights”, “Other Highlights”, and “Section 2— Performance and Pay” in this Proxy Statement.
2024 Executive Incentive Plan Results
The Company uses annual cash incentives to focus attention on current strategic priorities and drive achievement of short-term corporate strategic objectives. Each NEO has an annual cash incentive target opportunity that may, based on performance, result in an earned incentive equal to between 50% and 200% of the target opportunity.
For purposes of the annual cash incentive, the Committee measures corporate performance based on actual performance compared to pre-established performance goals as a base completion percentage. The Compensation Committee has the discretion to increase or decrease the amount of annual cash incentive earned based on these factors by 15%. In using such
38 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
discretion, the Committee may also review the Company’s performance compared to the performance of certain regional and top quartile peers, together with the Company’s progress with respect to certain corporate strategic objectives to further assess overall corporate performance.
For 2024, the annual cash incentive plan used four key performance measurement metrics: return on average tangible common equity (ROATCE), pre-provision net revenue (PPNR) to average assets, efficiency ratio, and non-performing assets (NPA) to quarterly average total assets. In determining the performance range, each metric was assigned a different spread as follows:

|  | Performance Goals
Corporate Performance Metric |  | Spread – Threshold (50% Payout) |  | Spread - Max (200% Payout)
ROATCE |  | (15.0)% |  | 15.0%
PPNR to Ave Assets |  | (10.0)% |  | 10.0%
Efficiency Ratio |  | 7.5% |  | (7.5)%
NPAs/Ave Assets |  | 25.0% |  | (25.0)%

The financial performance goals for the annual cash incentive and actual results for 2024 are set forth below:

|  | Performance Goals |  | Results
Corporate Performance Metric |  | Weighting |  | Threshold (50% payout) |  | Goal Target (100% payout) |  | Maximum (200% payout) |  | Actual Results |  | % of Target Payout
ROATCE |  | 30% |  | 9.9% |  | 11.6% |  | 13.3% |  | 13.3% |  | 114.5%
PPNR to Ave Assets |  | 30% |  | 1.5% |  | 1.6% |  | 1.8% |  | 1.7% |  | 100.5%
Efficiency Ratio |  | 20% |  | 63.4% |  | 59.0% |  | 54.6% |  | 59.1% |  | 99.8%
NPAs/Ave Assets |  | 20% |  | 1.3% |  | 1.0% |  | 0.8% |  | 0.5% |  | 200.0%

For 2024, comparing actual corporate performance to the 2024 corporate performance goal targets, the resulting payout percentage under the plan was driven by two of the four corporate performance goal metrics (ROATCE and NPAs/Ave Assets) at above target and maximum payout, respectively, whereas the remaining two metrics (PPNR / Ave Assets and Efficiency Ratio) were at target performance.
As discussed earlier, in addition to awards made under our annual cash incentive plan for corporate performance pursuant to the above formula, the plan also allows for the Committee (for all officers, including the CEO) and the CEO (for officers other than himself) to recommend adjustments (of plus or minus 15%) based on results of near-term performance related to one-time initiatives, specific development efforts, or short-term projects.
For 2024, the Committee determined to adjust the payouts for the named executive officers upward by 6%. For the year ended December 31, 2024, the following cash bonuses were awarded.

Named Executive Officer |  | Target Value as % of Base Salary |  | Corporate Performance Completion (%) |  | Corporate Performance Award (%) |  | Adjustment (%) |  | Total Value as % of Base Salary
Richard P. Smith |  | 70.0% |  | 150.0% |  | 105.0% |  | 6.0% |  | 111.0%
Peter G. Wiese |  | 55.0% |  | 150.0% |  | 82.5% |  | 6.0% |  | 88.5%
John Fleshood |  | 55.0% |  | 150.0% |  | 82.5% |  | 6.0% |  | 88.5%
Craig Carney |  | 55.0% |  | 150.0% |  | 82.5% |  | 6.0% |  | 88.5%
Daniel Bailey |  | 55.0% |  | 150.0% |  | 82.5% |  | 6.0% |  | 88.5%

Annual Proxy Statement 39

Table of Contents
The Committee determined an upward adjustment of 6% over the plan metrics was appropriate for the CEO (Smith) due to his leadership in guiding the company and its investors during a challenging year for the bank and the banking industry in general. Despite these headwinds, Mr. Smith’s leadership enabled the company to achieve steady performance, continue good relations with regulators (including an “Outstanding” CRA rating), produce generally better than peer financial operating results and build a stronger balance sheet.
Furthermore, the Committee accepted the recommendations of the CEO with respect to an upward adjustment of 6% over the plan metrics for the remaining named executive officers principally due to successful regulatory oversight/execution, including the Bank achieving an “Outstanding” CRA rating, and as well as for the following reasons:
•Peter Wiese. Leadership in proactively addressing a volatile interest rate environment with a generally inverted yield curve, managing the investment portfolio and overall liquidity needs, strengthening the Company’s balance sheet, including capital management, and fostering key strategic partnerships.
•John Fleshood. Leadership in succession management execution and continued evolution of the Company’s risk management program, community investment and regulatory compliance functions.
•Craig Carney. The Company’s successful regulatory compliance, notably asset quality, and continuing to prepare the bank for an uncertain economy.
•Dan Bailey. Leadership in succession management execution and steady oversight of the revenue lines of business during the difficulties facing the Company and the banking industry in general.
Chief Executive Officer Incentive Compensation
Mr. Smith was eligible to receive an annual cash incentive bonus under the executive incentive plan. The target cash incentive opportunity as a percentage of base salary for Mr. Smith for 2024 remained unchanged as follows:

Name |  | Target 2024 |  | Target 2023 |  | Target 2022 |  |
Richard Smith |  | 70.0 | % |  | 70.0 | % |  | 70.0 | % |  |

The Committee determined to keep Mr. Smith’s target for 2024 at 70% of base salary based on its review of total compensation in relation to peers and Mr. Smith’s tenure. The award opportunity was determined in part based on the compensation study used to help determine 2024 executive compensation.
Based on the factors discussed above, in February 2025 the Committee determined Mr. Smith's incentive payout as follows:

Name |  | Bonus Payout |  | % of 2024 Base Salary |
Richard Smith |  | $ | 1,126,295 |  |  | 111.6 | % |

Other Named Executive Officers Incentive Compensation
The Committee also provides cash incentive compensation to TriCo’s other executives in the form of an annual cash bonus based on a target percentage of base salary. The target cash incentive opportunities as a percentage of base salary for 2024 for each of the named executive officers remained unchanged from 2023 as follows:
40 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents

Name |  | Target 2024 |  | Target 2023 |  | Target 2022 |  |
Peter Wiese |  | 55.0 | % |  | 55.0 | % |  | 55.0 | % |  |
John Fleshood |  | 55.0 | % |  | 55.0 | % |  | 55.0 | % |  |
Craig Carney |  | 55.0 | % |  | 55.0 | % |  | 55.0 | % |  |
Daniel Bailey |  | 55.0 | % |  | 55.0 | % |  | 55.0 | % |  |

The Committee determined that the incentive compensation targets as a percent of base salary for 2024 would remain the same as 2023 at 55% of base salary. The decision was based on its review of total compensation in relation to peers and tenure of the executives. Furthermore, the award opportunity was determined in part based on the compensation study used to help determine 2024 executive compensation.
As discussed earlier, the Committee reviewed TriCo’s 2024 financial performance under the cash incentive compensation plan, took into consideration the factors set forth above, and determined that payouts for the named executive officers would be as follows:

Name |  | Bonus Payout |  | % of 2024 Base Salary
Peter Wiese |  | $ | 465,365 |  |  | 88.9 | %
John Fleshood |  | $ | 437,054 |  |  | 88.9 | %
Craig Carney |  | $ | 391,048 |  |  | 88.9 | %
Daniel Bailey |  | $ | 409,628 |  |  | 88.9 | %

Equity Compensation
The Committee provides long-term incentive compensation to TriCo’s executive officers through the grant of awards under TriCo’s equity incentive plans. In accordance with TriCo’s compensation philosophy, the use of equity compensation is intended to provide incentives to TriCo’s executive officers to work toward the long-term growth of TriCo by providing them with an award that will increase in value only to the extent that the value of TriCo’s common stock increases. Because the value of awards under TriCo’s equity incentive plan bear a direct relationship to TriCo’s stock price, the Committee believes that equity awards are an effective long-term incentive to create value for shareholders and appropriately align the interests of TriCo’s executives with the interests of TriCo’s shareholders. Equity awards also serves as a long-term retention incentive for TriCo’s executives because equity awards are generally subject to vesting schedules of three to four years.
Equity awards to the CEO and named executive officers are approved by the Committee at regular Committee meetings. The effective date for all grants is the date that the Committee approves the grant and all key terms have been determined. In 2024 the Committee decisions on equity award grant values to be awarded to TriCo executives coincided with the time of merit reviews.
The number of equity awards granted each year by the Committee to an executive is not fixed, but is determined by the Committee annually based on a review of comparable practices at the Company's peers as well as a subjective evaluation of factors, including the following:
•The perceived incentive that the grant will provide,
•The executive’s prior performance and level of responsibility,
•The benefit that the grant may have on long-term shareholder value, and
•The value of the equity award at the time of grant.
Annual Proxy Statement 41

Table of Contents
The Committee views the grant of equity awards as both an incentive vehicle and a retention device and therefore, also reviews the status of vesting and the number of vested versus unvested awards held by an executive at the time of grant and the annual grants made to executives at TriCo’s peer group companies.
The equity grant strategy for the chief executive officer and other named executive officers is to utilize a 50%/50% mix of time-based RSUs and performance-based PSUs. The Committee believes that this stock grant strategy consisting of a 50%/50% mix of time-based RSUs and performance-based PSUs better aligns the interests of shareholders and employees as a recruiting and retention tool as compared to grants of stock options. This policy also applies to certain other key employees who received equity awards in order to better align compensation incentives to increasing shareholder value. RSUs granted in 2024 vest in annual installments over three years. The PSUs vest in a single installment after three years; however, the actual number of PSUs earned upon vesting is dependent upon the total shareholder return, or “TSR,” for TriCo common stock relative to the KBW Nasdaq Regional Banking Index over a three-year performance period beginning on the date of grant. During 2024, the Committee reviewed the mix of RSUs and PSUs and continues to believe that the 50%/50% split is the appropriate mix for the retention and incentive elements and serves to align our executives with shareholders. The Committee annually revisits the program design, metrics considered, and weighting before issuing new grants to continuing executives but does not expect the weighting of performance-based equity for awards for executives to be less than 50% in future years. The actual number of shares earned range from 0% to 150% of the target number granted, depending on the performance of TriCo common stock compared to the index. The payout schedule is defined as follows:

| TCBK TSR vs. KBW TSR |  | Payout Percentage
Maximum | +25% or more |  | 150%
| Every +1% |  | +2% Payout
Target | Equal |  | 100%
| Every -1% |  | -2% Payout
Threshold | -25% |  | 50%
Minimum | Less than -25% |  | 0%

TSR is defined as the change in the market value of a share of TriCo common stock, including treating dividends as if reinvested. The beginning and ending stock prices used to determine the change are based on the average stock price over a period of 30-trading days at the beginning and end of the performance period.
The three-year performance period for the PSUs granted in 2021 ended on March 25, 2024. TriCo’s TSR for the three-year period was (19.26)% while the KBW Nasdaq Regional Banking Index was (21.80)%. The additional 2.54% TSR performance generated by the Company (TCBK) as compared to the KBW index (KRX) resulted in a payout percentage of 105.08% under the terms of the PSUs.
For 2024, the Committee, based in part on its review of peer data as well as its decisions with respect to other components of compensation (base compensation and target incentive payout), determined to grant the NEOs equity awards at the same percentage of base salary as in 2023, with the grant value split evenly between RSUs and PSUs.

Name |  | Percent of Base 2024 |  | Percent of Base 2023 |  | Percent of Base 2022 |  |
Rick Smith |  | 90 | % |  | 90 | % |  | 90 | % |  |
Peter Wiese |  | 75 | % |  | 75 | % |  | 75 | % |  |
John Fleshood |  | 75 | % |  | 75 | % |  | 75 | % |  |
Craig Carney |  | 65 | % |  | 65 | % |  | 65 | % |  |
Daniel Bailey |  | 65 | % |  | 65 | % |  | 65 | % |  |

Grant date price for awards was measured using the 30-day average trading date closing price of the Company's common stock following the Committee's determination to grant shares. See “Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2024” on page 50 for stock grants made by the Committee to the named executive officers on March 1, 2024.
42 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Timing of Equity Awards
The Company does not have a written policy related to the timing of when equity awards are granted during the year. The Compensation Committee grants equity awards to our directors, executive officers and other key employees, currently in the form of RSUs and PSUs (employees only), on an annual, as well as awards at other times when deemed appropriate. In recent years, the Compensation Committee has met in February or March of each year to consider the award of RSUs and PSUs to executives and other officers, with the grants being made at a time after the committee meeting and based on the average stock price over a thirty day period. The meeting of the February Compensation Committee typically occurs after the Company’s release of the financial results for the prior fiscal year through filing of a Current Report on Form 8-K and accompanying earnings release and earnings call but before the filing of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for that fiscal year. The grant of director RSUs takes place on the date of the annual meeting of shareholders. The Company does not backdate or grant equity awards retroactively and does not coordinate equity grants with the release of positive or negative corporate news or time the disclosure of material non-public information for the purpose of affecting the value of executive compensation.
At the 2024 annual meeting of shareholders, the Company’s shareholders approved the 2024 Equity Incentive Plan. The Company does not currently grant stock options, however, the 2024 Plan does not permit the award of discounted options or the repricing of stock options. Pursuant to the terms of the 2024 Plan, option exercise prices can be no less than 100% of the fair market value at the time of the date of grant.
Elimination of Vacation Accrual
Effective January 1, 2021, the members of the executive team are no longer eligible to earn and accrue paid vacation leave under the Company’s vacation policy. Executives are allowed time off from time to time for the purpose of rest and relaxation, with salary continuation, consistent with the duties and responsibilities of the executive’s position. Time off for this purpose is not considered a deferral of wages or compensation. Any such time off is not considered a leave of absence from work. Any leave of absence taken in accordance with law is governed by the Company’s applicable leave policy.
No Hedging Transactions
The Company’s insider trading policy prohibits executive officers, directors and certain named employees from purchasing any financial instruments (such as prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars or exchange funds), making short sales of TriCo securities or otherwise engaging in any transactions that hedge or offset any decrease in the market value of TriCo securities or limit the ability to profit from an increase in the market value of TriCo securities.
No Margin Accounts or Pledges
Furthermore, the Company’s insider trading policy prohibits executive officers, directors and certain named employees from holding TriCo securities in a margin account or pledging TriCo securities as collateral for a loan.
Stock Ownership Guidelines
TriCo’s Board of Directors believes that key executives should have significant stake in the performance of TriCo’s stock, to align their decisions with creating shareholder value and to minimize negative market perceptions caused by excessive insider sales of company shares. TriCo’s Stock Ownership Guidelines encourages executive officers to accumulate a meaningful position in TriCo common stock. In 2024 the Board increased stock ownership guidelines for EVPs from 1.5x to 2x of base salary. The current stock ownership guidelines are set forth below:

Position |  | Minimum Ownership (multiple of base salary)
Chief Executive Officer |  | 3.0
Executive Vice President |  | 2.0

Annual Proxy Statement 43

Table of Contents
Under these guidelines, share ownership is determined from the totals reported on Table 1 of the executive’s or director’s SEC Form 4, and includes shares of common stock, unvested restricted stock awards (RSUs and PSUs) and shares in which beneficial ownership is disclaimed. In addition, outstanding vested stock options that are in the money are included based on the intrinsic value converted to an equivalent number of full shares (i.e., net of exercise price). New executives are permitted five years to achieve the minimum ownership amounts. Executives must retain not less than 50% of any vested stock awards (after-tax) until in full compliance. The nominating and corporate governance committee annually reviews the executives’ compliance with the guidelines and has determined that all covered executive officers satisfy the stock ownership guidelines. For a discussion of director stock ownership guidelines and their compliance, see "Stock Ownership Guidelines” on page 18.
Other Elements of Compensation and Perquisites
In order to attract and retain talented executives who will focus on achieving TriCo’s long-term goals, TriCo provides to its named executive officers, including Mr. Smith, the following benefits and perquisites:
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. TriCo maintains a supplemental executive retirement plan described at “Compensation of Named Executive Officers—Pension Benefits,” for three of the named executive officers which provides them with benefits upon their retirement, death, or upon the termination of employment within 24 months of a change of control. In recent years, the Company has not offered such plans to new executive officers; therefore Messrs. Wiese and Fleshood are not participants.
Deferred Compensation Plan. TriCo maintains a nonqualified, unsecured and unfunded executive deferred compensation plan, which is described at “Compensation of Named Executive Officers—Nonqualified Deferred Compensation.” This plan provides our named executive officers the opportunity to defer all or part of their salaries and bonuses until retirement, earlier termination from employment or death, in addition to any discretionary contribution or reoccurring contribution that TriCo credits to their accounts. See "Compensation of Named Executive Officers - Nonqualified Deferred Compensation" on page 55.
Employment and Change of Control Agreements. TriCo has entered into an employment agreement with the CEO described beginning on page 56 and change of control agreements described on page 56 with its other named executive officers who would likely be involved in decisions regarding, and the successful implementation of, a merger or acquisition and could be at risk for a job loss if a change of control occurs. The Committee believes that such agreements are important in order to provide an incentive for executives to remain employed with TriCo throughout the challenges and uncertainty that a change in control may cause. Such continuity in leadership benefits both TriCo’s shareholders and, ultimately, a company that may acquire TriCo. These agreements are intended to allow the executives to focus on making and implementing decisions that are in the best interests of TriCo’s shareholders without being distracted or influenced in the exercise of their business judgment by personal concerns. Change of control agreements are typically offered to executives in the marketplace and therefore are necessary to attract and retain executives as well as maximize shareholder value. The agreements have a “double trigger” provision, meaning that an executive will not receive change in control benefits under his agreement unless both a change of control occurs and, within two years, the executive’s employment is involuntarily terminated without cause or the executive terminates his employment for “good reason”, as defined in his agreement. A change of control could also accelerate the vesting of all of the executives’ outstanding options and equity awards and accelerate benefits under some of TriCo’s benefit plans as described at “Compensation of Named Executive Officers—Potential Payments Upon Termination and Change of Control.”
ESOP Contributions. TriCo makes annual contributions to each executive’s account under TriCo’s employee stock ownership plan, in which all eligible employees participate. See “Compensation of Named Executive Officers—ESOP.”
Defined Contribution Plan. TriCo offers a 401(k) savings plan to all eligible employees as described in “Compensation of Named Executive Officers—401(k).”
44 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Medical Insurance. TriCo provides to each executive and their family such health, dental and vision insurance coverage as TriCo may from time to time make available to its other executives of the same level of employment. TriCo pays a portion of the premiums for this insurance for all employees.
Life and Disability Insurance. TriCo provides each officer such disability and/or life insurance as TriCo in its sole discretion determines from time to time to make available. Currently, we provide all employees, including executives, with group life insurance equal to up to three (3) times base salary - capped at $500,000.
Long Term Care Agreements. In 2003 we entered into long-term care agreements with all eligible directors and executive officers and paid a one-time premium for long-term care insurance for each participant. The single premiums cost approximately $50,000 for each participant and were amortized by TriCo over five years. Under certain conditions, the long-term care insurance provides long-term care benefits if a participant becomes disabled or has a long-term medical condition. Mr. Carney is the only participant under such agreement. The premiums were paid by the Bank in 2003 and Mr. Carney was taxed on the benefits over a 5-year period.
Other. TriCo makes available certain other perquisites to executives such as country club memberships and automobile allowances which are listed in the perquisites and personal benefits table on page 48. TriCo may allow its executive officers and directors to utilize TriCo’s corporate airplane for personal use in limited circumstances, provided they reimburse the Company for the costs used based on an hourly reimbursement rate that is predetermined each year. The hourly reimbursement rate represents the aggregate incremental cost to TriCo for such personal use and takes into account items such as maintenance and repair, operating expenses, the pilot’s salary, landing and ramp fees, fuel costs, airport taxes and crew travel expenses.
Clawbacks. Pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Act, in 2023, effective October 2, 2023, the Nasdaq Stock Market adopted a rule requiring listed companies to adopt policies to recover or "clawback" of excess incentive-based compensation earned by a current or former executive officer during the three fiscal years preceding the date the listed company is required to prepare an accounting restatement, including to correct an error that would result in a material misstatement if the error were corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in the current period. We adopted a compensation clawback policy pursuant to the listing standards which was included as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 29, 2024. In addition, both of our outstanding equity compensation plans include clawback provisions.
Analysis of Employee Compensation Plan Risks
The Committee reviewed each employee incentive compensation plan to determine whether the plan includes features that would encourage the manipulation of our reported earnings to enhance the compensation of any employee, and how compensation policies may be used to mitigate risks. In addition to the incentive plans in which the named executive officers participate, we have established incentive plans for certain bank employees that reward performance based on product referrals, business development and profitability as well as long-term incentive awards including stock options and restricted stock awards. The Committee limited its review to these plans, which are the only plans under which the amount payable is based, directly or indirectly, on the Company’s reported earnings.
The Committee believes that the features of these incentive compensation plans, either alone or combined with the systems of controls in place, do not encourage unnecessary or excessive risk and do not encourage the manipulation of reported earnings to enhance the compensation of any employee.
Role of Tax Requirements
Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (“Code”) generally places a $1.0 million limit on the amount of compensation a company can deduct in any one year for any "covered employees". Prior to the adoption of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "TCJA") in 2017, the Code provided an exception to this limit for "qualified performance-based compensation." Except with respect to certain arrangements in place on November 2, 2017, the TCJA repealed this exclusion, and therefore compensation paid to any "covered employees" in excess of $1.0 million generally will no longer be deductible. Prior to the TCJA, the
Annual Proxy Statement 45

Table of Contents
Committee considered, among other things, the impact of the exclusion for "qualified performance-based compensation” when developing and implementing our executive compensation program.
While the Committee seeks to preserve tax deductibility in developing and implementing our compensation program, the Committee also believes that it is important to maintain flexibility in administering compensation programs in a manner designed to promote varying corporate goals. Accordingly, we have not adopted a policy that all compensation must qualify as deductible for tax purposes and retain the ability to provide compensation that may not qualify as deductible under Section 162(m). The Committee expects it will grant awards and provide for compensation that will not be deductible under Section 162(m) when it believes that such non-deductible arrangements are otherwise in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The Committee also intends to continue to provide performance-based compensation, consistent with the Company’s pay-for-performance philosophy. For 2024, approximately $2.6 million of executive pay was not deductible under the TCJA.
The employment agreement with our CEO and the change in control agreements with our named executive officers include a Section 280G “net best” provision providing that the amount of any severance payments and benefits that the executive otherwise would be entitled to receive would be reduced to the extent necessary to avoid the excise tax under the Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code, but only if such reduction would result in the executive retaining a greater amount of such payments and benefits on an after-tax basis than had no reduction been made.
Those agreements also provide that, if any benefit thereunder is subject to Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and the executive is deemed to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code, commencement of payment of the benefit shall be delayed for six months following the executive’s termination of employment.
Summary
The Committee believes that TriCo’s philosophy of aligning compensation with TriCo’s performance and individual superior performance was met and that the compensation for TriCo’s executive officers has been competitive and comparable to the compensation received by executive officers of banks included in our peer group as described earlier at “Section 3 - Compensation Process and Decisions - Peer group on page 34. In addition, TriCo’s executive compensation philosophy and programs support TriCo’s overall objective to enhance shareholder value through profitable management of TriCo’s operations. The Committee is firmly committed to the ongoing review and evaluation of TriCo’s executive compensation program.
46 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION AND MANAGEMENT SUCCESSION COMMITTEE
To Our Shareholders:
The Compensation and Management Succession Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K with TriCo’s management. Based on such review and discussion, the committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement.
Respectfully submitted:
Martin A. Mariani (Chair)
John S. A. Hasbrook
Kimberley H. Vogel
The foregoing Report of the Compensation and Management Succession Committee shall not be deemed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, to be (i) “soliciting material” or “filed” or (ii) incorporated by reference by any general statement into any filing made by us with the SEC, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate such report by reference.
Annual Proxy Statement 47

Table of Contents
COMPENSATION OF NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Summary Compensation Table
The table below sets forth the annual and long-term compensation of our (i) CEO, (ii) our Chief Financial Officer, and (iii) the three other most highly compensated executive officers who were serving as executive officers at the end of 2024. We refer to these five executives as the "named executive officers."

Name and principal position | Year | Salary ($)(1) | Bonus ($)(2) | Stock awards ($)(3) | Option awards ($) | Non-equity incentive plan compensa-tion ($) | Change in pension value and nonquali-fied deferred compensation earnings ($)(4) | All other compensation ($)(5) | Total ($)
Richard Smith, President - Chief Executive Officer | 2024 | 1,009,615 |  | — |  | 690,574 |  |  | 1,126,295 |  | 13,537 |  | 56,600 |  | 2,896,621 |
2023 | 989,692 |  | — |  | 862,084 |  | — |  | 1,056,566 |  | 138,132 |  | 51,367 |  | 3,097,841 |
2022 | 934,615 |  | — |  | 867,813 |  | — |  | 1,365,000 |  | 14,658 |  | 61,813 |  | 3,243,899 |
Peter Wiese, Executive Vice President — Chief Financial Officer | 2024 | 523,038 |  | — |  | 298,233 |  |  | 465,365 |  | — |  | 35,398 |  | 1,322,034 |
2023 | 510,962 |  | — |  | 371,831 |  | — |  | 439,613 |  | — |  | 32,010 |  | 1,354,416 |
2022 | 494,615 |  | 550,000 |  | 370,878 |  | — |  | — |  | — |  | 19,110 |  | 1,434,603 |
John Fleshood, Executive Vice President — Chief Operating Officer | 2024 | 491,308 |  | — |  | 280,058 |  | — |  | 437,054 |  | — |  | 32,288 |  | 1,240,708 |
2023 | 480,231 |  | — |  | 349,420 |  | — |  | 413,150 |  | — |  | 31,867 |  | 1,274,668 |
2022 | 464,615 |  | 517,000 |  | 348,621 |  | — |  | — |  | — |  | 33,766 |  | 1,364,002 |
Craig Carney, Executive Vice President — Chief Credit Officer | 2024 | 439,577 |  | — |  | 217,176 |  | — |  | 391,048 |  | 15,461 |  | 43,079 |  | 1,106,341 |
2023 | 429,500 |  | — |  | 270,948 |  | — |  | 369,616 |  | 54,674 |  | 41,993 |  | 1,166,731 |
2022 | 414,615 |  | 462,000 |  | 270,031 |  | — |  | — |  | 17,641 |  | 33,445 |  | 1,197,732 |
Daniel Bailey, Executive Vice President — Chief Banking Officer | 2024 | 460,577 |  | — |  | 227,531 |  | — |  | 409,628 |  | 33,327 |  | 38,043 |  | 1,169,106 |
2023 | 451,577 |  | — |  | 284,070 |  | — |  | 387,542 |  | 254,645 |  | 36,462 |  | 1,414,296 |
2022 | 432,885 |  | 489,500 |  | 286,100 |  | — |  | — |  | — |  | 33,903 |  | 1,242,388 |

(1) Reflects cash paid in salary to the named executive officers during the year presented.
(2) Reflects cash bonuses earned for performance in the year indicated but paid in the following year.
(3) Includes RSUs and PSUs during the year shown. Our accounting for employee stock-based incentives granted during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) topic 718, Stock Compensation is described in Note 17—Stock Options and Other Equity-Based Incentive Instruments” to the Company’s consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, as filed with the SEC on March 3, 2025 (generally multiplying the number of time-based restricted share units granted by the Nasdaq closing price per share on the grant date and number of PSUs granted by the fair value determined by a Monte Carlo simulation). These amounts do not reflect the actual value that may be realized by the named executive officers. Depending on our stock performance, the actual value may be more or less than the amount shown or zero. For actual value received in 2023 for awards granted in previous years, see the table “Option Exercises and Stock Awards Vested During 2024” in this proxy statement. See also “Outstanding Equity Awards at 2024 Fiscal Year End.” PSU value reflects a target payout. At maximum payout under the PSUs, the total value (utilizing the stock price on the grant date) of 2024 stock awards (including PSUs and RSUs), for Messrs. Smith, Wiese, Fleshood, Carney, and Bailey using the grant date closing stock price ($33.07 per share) would be $1,058,669, $457,197, $429,348, $332,959 and $348,948, respectively. For potential maximum payout for PSUs granted in 2024, see "Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2024".
(4) Reflects the sum of the change in the actuarial value of the executive’s supplemental retirement plan account described on page 54 and any above-market interest earned under the deferred compensation plan described herein, if any, and not cash payments received during the year. The actuarial change in the present value of the executive’s supplemental retirement plan account is determined using interest rate and mortality rate assumptions consistent with those described in TriCo’s financial statements and includes amounts that the executive may not be currently entitled to receive because such amounts are not vested. For 2024, these actuarial present value changes were $0, $0 and $33,327 for Messrs. Smith, Carney and Bailey, respectively. The significant actuarial changes for Messrs. Smith, Carney and Bailey for 2023 were due to decreases in discount rates used in the calculations to determine value. For 2022 there were no reportable actuarial present value changes as the changes were less than zero. For Mr. Bailey, the change in value was al
48 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
so the result of his continued vesting into the retirement plan. Above-market interest earned on the deferred compensation accounts during 2024 was $15,678 for Mr. Smith and $18,660 for Mr. Carney, respectfully.
(5) Reflects the incremental cost to TriCo of other compensation indicated in the following table:

Name | Year | Automobile use or allowance ($) (A) | Life insurance benefits ($) (B) | Personal use of club memberships ($) | ESOP contributions ($) (C) | 401(k) matching contributions ($) (D) | Other Compensation ($) (E) | Total perquisites, other personal benefits and other compensation ($)
Smith | 2024 | 2,885 |  | 32,972 |  | 6,943 |  | 13,800 |  | — |  |  | 56,600 |
Wiese | 2024 | — |  | 1,242 |  | 11,956 |  | 13,800 |  | 6,900 |  | 1,500 |  | 35,398 |
Fleshood | 2024 | 6,000 |  | 3,564 |  | 7,424 |  | 13,800 |  | — |  | 1,500 |  | 32,288 |
Carney | 2024 | 6,000 |  | 8,818 |  | 7,561 |  | 13,800 |  | 6,900 |  |  | 43,079 |
Bailey | 2024 | 12,000 |  | 2,322 |  | 1,521 |  | 13,800 |  | 6,900 |  | 1,500 |  | 38,043 |

(A) Reflects the value attributable to personal use of automobiles provided by TriCo as calculated in accordance with IRS guidelines.
(B) Reflects the incremental amount of life insurance benefits provided named executive officer. TriCo provides all full-time employees, including the named executive officers, with life insurance benefits paying lesser of three (3) times the employee’s annual salary or $500,000 to the employee’s beneficiaries. For Messrs. Smith and Carney, also includes split-dollar life insurance.
(C) Reflects contributions allocated by TriCo to an executive’s ESOP account.
(D) See “- 401(k) below for a discussion of the Company’s 401(k) plan and matching contributions.
(E) Includes the contributions by TriCo to an executives health savings account and if applicable, personal use of TriCo provided transportation.
Short-Term Incentives
Each year the Board sets target bonus compensation for our chief executive officer and other named executive officers based on specific goals. See “Compensation Discussion and Analysis--Annual Incentive Bonuses” for a more detailed discussion. The compensation and management succession committee retains discretion regarding the determinations as to whether TriCo reached these goals.
ESOP
We have an employee stock ownership plan and trust for all employees age 18 and over who complete at least 1,000 hours of service with TriCo or Tri Counties Bank. Annual contributions are made by TriCo in cash at the discretion of the Board. Contributions to the plan are held in trust and invested primarily in our common stock. Contributions are allocated to participants on the basis of eligible compensation in the year of allocation. In general, benefits become vested after six years. Subject to certain statutory limits, historically the Company has made annual discretionary ESOP contributions equal to 4% of a participant's qualifying eligible compensation.
401(k)
We have a 401(k) plan for all employees age 18 and over who complete at least 90 days of service with TriCo or Tri Counties Bank. Participants may contribute a portion of their compensation subject to certain limits based on federal tax laws. Participants may select between making regular pre-tax deferrals or Roth deferrals. TriCo provides a 50% match on employee deferrals up to 4% for qualifying employees. Plan assets are held in trust. Participants can direct their investment contributions into a variety of specified mutual funds. Generally, distributions are triggered by a participant’s retirement, disability, death or other separation from employment.
2024 Equity Incentive Plan
General. We adopted our 2024 Equity Incentive Plan (“2024 Plan”) with our shareholder approval in 2024. The 2024 Plan initially reserved a total of 1,200,000 shares for issuance. As of the voting record date (April 2, 2025), there were 58,465
Annual Proxy Statement 49

Table of Contents
unvested RSUs and 51,177 unvested PSUs outstanding under the 2024 Plan. The 2024 Plan is administered under by the Committee, comprised of independent directors.
Awards. The 2024 Plan permits TriCo to grant stock options, restricted stock, stock awards, and stock appreciation rights (“Awards”) to eligible participants, which may include executives, employees and non-employee directors. The Board or an authorized committee determines the types, sizes and terms of awards based on various factors, including a participant’s duties and responsibilities, the value of the participant’s past services, the participant’s potential contributions to TriCo’s success and other factors.
Best Practices. The 2024 Plan includes a number of provisions designed to protect shareholder interests and appropriately reflect our compensation philosophy and current tax law regime, which include:
•No dividends or dividend equivalents paid to grantees until awards vest.
•Includes a clawback provision for certain executive officers.
•Awards are subject to our stock ownership and no hedging policies.
•No discounted awards or award repricing without shareholder approval.
•No "evergreen" or liberal share recycling provisions. The 2024 Plan does not contain an evergreen provision and authorizes a fixed number of shares available for grant, except Exempt Awards.
•Minimum vesting requirement s. Each award tendered under the 2024 Plan generally will be subject to a minimum vesting period of one year, subject to certain exceptions. During each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2024, long-term equity award grants under all stock plans to executives had a vesting period of not less than three years.
•Minimum holding periods. Imposes a 12-month holding on one-half of the after tax shares received upon vesting or exercise of an award, consistent with the goal of aligning the interests of plan participants with those of TriCo shareholders.
Under the 2024 Plan, an “Exempt Award” is, if any, (1) an award granted in the assumption of, or in substitution for, outstanding awards previously granted by another business entity acquired by us or any of our subsidiaries or with which we or any of our subsidiaries merges; or (2) an award that a participant purchases at fair market value.
2019 Equity Incentive Plan
In 2019, we adopted, and our shareholders approved, our 2019 equity incentive plan (the “2019 Plan”). In connection with the approval of the 2024 Plan, no new awards can be made under the 2019 Plan. As of the voting record date (April 2, 2025), there were 131,767 a nd 144,715 unvested RSUs or PSUs outstanding, respectively, under the 2019 Plan. The number of PSUs that will actually vest, and be released, may be reduced to zero or increased to approximately 217,000 depending on the return of the Company’s stock relative to the KBW Banking Index. The 2019 Plan has similar best practices designs as the 2024 Plan.
Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2024
TriCo issued RSUs and PSUs to the named executive officers in 2024. TriCo did not issue any stock options to the named executive officers in 2024. The following table presents information concerning plan-based awards granted to each named executive officer in 2024:
50 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents

Name | Grant Date |  |  |  | All other stock awards: number of shares of stock or units (#) | Grant date fair value of stock award ($)
Estimated future payouts under non-equity incentive plan awards (5) |  | Estimated future payouts under equity incentive plan awards (1)
Threshold ($) | Target ($) | Maximum ($) |  | Threshold (#) | Target (#) | Maximum ($)
Richard Smith | 3/1/2024 |  |  |  |  |  |  |  | 12,805 | 423,461 |  | (3)
| 3/1/2024 |  |  |  |  | 6,403 | 12,805 | 19,208 |  | 267,112 |  | (4)
|  | 355,250 | 710,500 | 1,421,000 |  |  |  |  |  |  |
Peter Wiese | 3/1/2024 |  |  |  |  |  |  |  | 5,530 | 182,877 |  | (3)
| 3/1/2024 |  |  |  |  | 2,765 | 5,530 | 8,295 |  | 115,356 |  | (4)
|  | 144,650 | 289,300 | 578,600 |  |  |  |  |  |  |
John Fleshood | 3/1/2024 |  |  |  |  |  |  |  | 5,193 | 171,733 |  | (3)
| 3/1/2024 |  |  |  |  | 2,597 | 5,193 | 7,790 |  | 108,326 |  | (4)
|  | 135,850 | 271,700 | 543,400 |  |  |  |  |  |  |
Craig Carney | 3/1/2024 |  |  |  |  |  |  |  | 4,027 | 133,173 |  | (3)
| 3/1/2024 |  |  |  |  | 2,014 | 4,027 | 6,041 |  | 84,003 |  | (4)
|  | 121,550 | 243,100 | 486,200 |  |  |  |  |  |  |
Daniel Bailey | 3/1/2024 |  |  |  |  |  |  |  | 4,219 | 139,522 |  | (3)
| 3/1/2024 |  |  |  |  | 2,110 | 4,219 | 6,329 |  | 88,008 |  | (4)
|  | 127,325 | 254,650 | 509,300 |  |  |  |  |  |  |

(1) Reflects PSUs awarded under the 2019 Plan. PSUs will vest with respect to between 0% and 150% of the target number of shares, on the third anniversary of the grant date, based on TriCo’s total shareholder return relative to the KBW Regional Banking Index.
(2) Reflects RSUs awarded under the 2019 Plan. The RSUs vest in equal annual installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date. Dividends accrue without interest with respect to the corresponding number of shares subject to the award. Such dividend equivalents accrue and are converted into additional shares (equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at the time of such dividend). Such additional shares do not vest unless and until the underlying award vests.
(3) The fair value for each RSU is equal to closing price of the underlying TriCo common stock as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on the grant date, which was $33.07 per share.
(4) The estimated fair values of the PSUs were determined using a per share price of $20.86, which was determined using a Monte-Carlo simulation process of future stock prices of TriCo common stock and the KBW Regional Banking Index in accordance with FASB ASC topic 718, Stock Compensation is described in Note 17 - Stock Options and Other Equity-Based Incentive Instruments" to the Company's consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, as filed with the SEC on March 3, 2025.
(5) Represents the potential range of cash incentive awards payable under our 2024 Executive short term incentive plan, based on annual base salary. The performance goals and measurements associated with this Plan (including any adjustments) that generate the awards set forth above are provided in the “2024 Executive Incentive Plan Results” section beginning on page 38 and are included in the Summary Compensation Table on page 49. The threshold, target and maximum amounts in this table do not include any separate discretionary adjustments of up to 15% that may be made for each NEO in 2024.
Annual Proxy Statement 51

Table of Contents
Outstanding Equity Awards at 2024 Fiscal Year-End
The following table presents information for all equity awards held by the named executive officer as of December 31, 2024.

| Option Awards |  | Stock Awards
Name | Number of securities underlying unexercised options (#) exercisable | Number of securities underlying unexercised options (#) unexercisable | Equity incentive plan awards: number of securities underlying unexercised unearned options (#) | Option exercise price ($)(1) | Option expiration date |  | Number of shares or units of stock that have not vested (#) | Market Value of Shares or units of stock that have not vested ($)(2) | Equity incentive plan awards number of unearned shares, units or other rights that have not vested (#) | Equity incentive plan awards: market or payout value of unearned shares, units or other rights that have not yet vested ($)(3)
Richard Smith | - | - | - | - | - |  | 2,343 | (4) | 102,389 |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 3,365 | (5) | 147,051 | 8,548 | (6) | 373,548
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 9,382 | (7) | 409,993 | 11,938 | (8) | 521,691
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 13,238 | (9) | 578,501 | 15,200 |  | (10) | 664,240 |
Peter Wiese | - | - | - | - | - |  | 1,149 |  | (4) | 50,211 |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 1,438 |  | (5) | 62,841 |  | 3,652 |  | (6) | 159,592 |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 4,046 |  | (7) | 176,810 |  | 5,147 |  | (8) | 224,924 |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 5,717 |  | (9) | 249,833 |  | 6,564 |  | (10) | 286,847 |
John Fleshood | - | - | - | - | - |  | 1,077 | (4) | 47,065 |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 1,352 | (5) | 59,082 |  | 3,433 |  | (6) | 150,022 |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 3,802 | 7) | 166,147 |  | 4,837 |  | (8) | 211,377 |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 5,369 | (9) | 234,625 |  | 6,164 |  | (10) | 269,367 |
Craig Carney | - | - | - | - | - |  | 778 | (4) | 33,999 |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 1,047 | (5) | 45,754 |  | 2,659 |  | (6) | 116,198 |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 2,949 | (7) | 128,871 |  | 3,751 |  | (8) | 163,919 |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 4,163 | (9) | 181,923 |  | 4,780 |  | (10) | 208,886 |
Daniel Bailey | - | - | - | - | - |  | 778 |  | (4) | 33,999 |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 1,109 |  | (5) | 48,463 |  | 2,817 |  | (6) | 123,103 |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 3,092 |  | (7) | 135,120 |  | 3,932 |  | (8) | 171,828 |
|  |  |  |  |  |  | 4,362 |  | (9) | 190,619 |  | 5,008 |  | (10) | 218,850 |

(1) | The exercise price equals the market value on the grant date.
(2) | Indicates the value of shares underlying unvested RSUs based on the closing price of TriCo common stock on December 31, 2024, as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market, which was $43.70 per share.
(3) | Indicates the number of shares underlying unvested PSUs that would vest on the vesting date based on the closing price of TriCo common stock on December 29, 2024, as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market, which was $43.70 per share.
(4) | The RSUs vests on May 27, 2025.
(5) | The RSUs vest on October 21, 2025.
(6) | The PSUs vest on October 21, 2025 (assuming certain performance conditions are met). Amounts assume maximum payout in accordance with SEC rules.
(7) | The RSUs vest in two equal annual installments on June 12, 2025 and 2026.
(8) | The PSUs vest on June 12, 2026 (assuming certain performance conditions are met). Amounts assume maximum payout in accordance with SEC rules.
(9) | The RSUs vest in three equal annual installments on March 1, 2025, 2026 and 2027.
(10) | The PSUs vest on March 1, 2027 (assuming certain performance conditions are met). Amounts assume maximum payout in accordance with SEC rules.

52 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Option Exercises and Stock Awards Vested During 2024
The following table presents information about the stock options that were exercised by, and the restricted stock that vested for, each of the named executive officers during 2024.

| Option Awards |  | Stock Awards
Name | Number of shares acquired on exercise (#) | Value realized on exercise ($)(1) |  | Number of shares acquired on vesting (#) | Value realized on vesting ($)(2)
Richard Smith | - | - |  | 13,910 (3) | 541,961
|  |  |  | 8,851 (4) | 305,271
Peter Wiese | - | - |  | 6,318 (3) | 245,607
|  |  |  | 4,336 (4) | 149,549
John Fleshood | - | - |  | 5,848 (3) | 227,468
|  |  |  | 4,065 (4) | 140,202
Craig Carney | - | - |  | 4,334 (3) | 168,866
|  |  |  | 2,936 (4) | 101,263
Daniel Bailey | - | - |  | 4,465 (3) | 174,157
|  |  |  | 2,936 (4) | 101,263

(1) The aggregate dollar value realized upon the exercise of an option represents the difference between the market price of the underlying shares on the date of exercise and the exercise price of the option.
(2) The aggregate dollar value realized upon the exercise represents the value of the share received upon settlement of a restricted stock unit (time- or performance-based).
(3) Represents vested RSUs.
(4) Represents vested PSUs.
Annual Proxy Statement 53

Table of Contents
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
Effective January 1, 2004, we adopted a supplemental executive retirement plan (“SERP”) to provide supplemental retirement benefits to our key employees. This plan replaced a supplemental retirement plan for executives that we originally adopted in 1987. Any benefits accrued by an executive as of December 31, 2003 under the earlier plan will now be paid under terms of the 2004 plan. The plan is nonqualified, unsecured and unfunded. The plan was amended and restated effective January 1, 2009 to incorporate changes required by Section 409A of the Code, and to add a new provision for anyone who is designated as a participant on or after January 1, 2009. We selected the key employees who participate in this plan. The named executive officers participating in the SERP are Messrs. Smith, Carney and Bailey.
Subsequently, the compensation and management succession committee approved additional amendments to the SERP and corresponding Participation Agreement with Messrs. Smith, Carney and Bailey which became effective on December 27, 2022 (collectively, the “2022 Amendments”).
The 2022 Amendments froze the amount of Normal Retirement Benefit (as defined in the SERP) each executive is entitled to receive. Previously payments generally were based on a formula using the executive’s five highest years of cash compensation, with adjustments for estimated benefits from Social Security and the Company’s Employee Stock Ownership Plan, causing variable compensation each year.
Pursuant to the 2022 Amendments, the participating named executive officers are entitled to annual lifetime payments, beginning on their normal retirement dates as follows:

Name | Annual Amount ($) (1)(2)(3)
Richard Smith | 785,000 |
Craig Carney | 272,100 |
Daniel Bailey | 221,700 |

(1) Payments are made in monthly installments.
(2) In the form of a 100% joint and survivor annuity.
(3) In the event Messrs. Smith, Carney and Bailey are no longer married to their current spouses at the time benefit payments commence, such payments will be in the form of single life annuities equal annually to $975,000, $320,000, and $255,000, respectively.
For purposes of the SERP, “normal retirement date” means the date on which the participant terminates employment if such termination occurs on or after the participant’s attainment of age 62. “Early retirement date” means the date on which a participant terminates employment if such termination occurs on or after such participant’s attainment of age 55 and completion of 15 years of credited service, but prior to normal retirement date. If the participant receives a supplemental retirement benefit under the SERP before the normal retirement date, the monthly cash benefit shall be reduced by 0.5 percent per month for each month by which the benefit commencement date precedes the participant’s age 62, and in no case shall the commencement of benefits precede the participant’s 55 th birthday.
The following table presents certain information concerning the benefits of the named executive officers under the SERP as of December 31, 2024:

Name | Plan Name | Number of years credited service (#) | Present value of accumulated benefit ($)(1) | Payments during 2024 ($)
Richard Smith | Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan | 31 | 10,462,407 | -
Craig Carney | Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan | 27 | 3,558,291 | -
Daniel Bailey | Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan | 17 | 1,819,700 | -

(1) The value as of December 31, 2024, is determined using assumptions consistent with those used in Note 22 of our audited financial statements included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, as filed with the SEC on March 3, 2025. Messrs. Wiese and Fleshood currently are not eligible to participate in the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan.
54 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation
Our 2005 deferred compensation plan provides our executives with the opportunity to defer all or part of their salaries and bonuses until retirement, termination from employment or death. An executive can defer up to a lifetime maximum of $1.5 million for all deferrals under this plan and our predecessor plan which permitted deferrals from 1987 until 2004. An executive who elects to defer compensation for any year must defer a minimum of $200 per month. The plan permits us to make discretionary contributions to an executive’s account. Each year since the plan’s inception we have credited to each executive’s account a contribution based on our contributions made for the executive under our ESOP for that year. This plan is nonqualified, unsecured and unfunded.
For contributions made prior to January 1, 2021, monthly interest is credited to an executive’s account at the rate of 1% plus the annualized average monthly yield of the Moody’s corporate bond yield index for the preceding month. From the time that the executive’s employment with us ends until the benefit is paid, an executive’s account under the plan is credited with interest each month at the annualized average monthly yield of the Moody’s corporate bond yield index for the preceding month. Due to the historic low rates of interest and to minimize future costs, the Board determined to reduce the interest earned on contributions made on or after January 1, 2021 to a rate of 1.5% below the Moody Index with a floor of 0.5%.
Executives are immediately 100% vested in their own contributions and in our reoccurring contributions credited to their account. We determine the vesting rate for any discretionary contributions credited to an executive’s account as well as for the interest related to these contributions. If an executive is terminated for cause, our compensation and management succession committee can decide whether the interest credited to the executive’s account with respect to deferrals, our discretionary contributions and our reoccurring contributions are forfeited. The distribution of an executive’s plan benefit in the event of a change of control or other termination is described at “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control.”
Any deferrals made by an executive, our discretionary contributions, our reoccurring contributions credited to the executive’s account prior to January 1, 2005, and the related interest, are governed by a predecessor deferred compensation plan for executives that we adopted in 1987. An executive’s account under the 1987 plan is credited with interest each month at a rate that is 3% higher than the monthly equivalent of the annual yield of the Moody’s average corporate bond yield index for the preceding month, but otherwise the 1987 plan is similar to the 2005 plan in most respects.
The following table presents information concerning nonqualified deferred compensation under both plans for each of the named executive officers who are participants in this plan:

Name | Executive contributions in 2024 ($) (1) | TriCo contributions in 2024 ($) | Aggregate earnings in 2023 ($)(2) | Aggregate withdrawals/ distributions ($) | Aggregate balance at 2024 year end ($)
Richard Smith | - | - | 47,269 |  | - | 660,929 |
Craig Carney | 36,962 |  | - | 61,668 |  | - | 912,455 |

(1) These amounts were included as salary paid to such officer in the summary compensation table on page 48.
(2) The following amounts were included in the summary compensation table on page 46 as above-market rates earned under our executive nonqualified deferred compensation plan: Richard Smith, $13,537 and Craig Carney, $15,461. At December 31, 2024, Messrs. Wiese, Fleshood and Bailey were not participants under the deferred compensation plan.
Annual Proxy Statement 55

Table of Contents
CEO Employment Agreement
In April 2021, we entered into an amended and restated employment agreement with Richard P. Smith, our President and Chief Executive Officer. The agreement provides Mr. Smith with a base annual salary that is subject to annual increases as determined by the compensation and management succession committee. As of December 31, 2024, Mr. Smith’s annual base salary was $1,015,000. Mr. Smith is also eligible to receive an annual incentive bonus and stock options and other awards under the Company’s applicable equity incentive plans. Mr. Smith’s employment agreement also provides a car allowance of $1,000 per month or use of an automobile owned or leased by TriCo, membership in a country club and reimbursement of other reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the performance of his duties. Mr. Smith is also eligible to participate in our 401(k) savings plan, employee stock ownership plan, executive deferred compensation plan and supplemental executive retirement plan. Finally, Mr. Smith and his eligible dependents receive disability, health, dental or other insurance plans available to all of our employees.
The term of Mr. Smith’s employment agreement automatically extends for an additional one-year term unless one party notifies the other party to the contrary not less than six months prior to the anniversary date of the agreement. If Mr. Smith is terminated without cause and not in connection with a change of control, then we will pay to Mr. Smith all amounts earned or accrued as salary and payments equal to the sum of (a) two (2) times his current base salary payable in equal payments over a period of 24 months, (b) his annual bonus for the last year if not yet paid (in a lump sum); and (c) a prorated amount of his target annual bonus through the date of termination. If Mr. Smith’s employment is terminated in various circumstances as described under “Compensation of Named Executive Officers - Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control,” then Mr. Smith would be entitled to receive the potential benefits described in that section.
Mr. Smith’s receipt of any severance benefits is conditioned on him releasing the Company and its affiliates from all legal claims. In addition, Mr. Smith has agreed to protect the Company’s trade secrets and confidential information and, for a period of 12 months following his termination, that he will not induce employees to leave the Company’s employment or use confidential information to solicit the Company’s customers.
In addition, any incentive compensation paid to Mr. Smith is subject to potential clawback as required by any applicable law, government regulation, stock exchange listing requirement or the Company’s policies adopted pursuant to such laws or requirements.
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control
Change of Control Agreements. Mr. Smith’s employment agreement includes a “double trigger” change of control provision providing (a) if a change of control occurs (as defined in the agreement) and (b) his employment is terminated other than for “cause” (as defined in the agreement) or he terminates employment after a material diminution in his title, duties or responsibilities, a material breach by the employer of the compensation provisions of the agreement, a material breach by the employer of the agreement, or a relocation of his principal location of employment within 24 months after such change of control, then Mr. Smith is entitled to receive a severance payment equal to (a) three times his annual base salary in effect at the time; plus (b) two and half times his most recent target annual bonus; (c) a prorated portion of his annual target bonus for the fiscal year in which his employment is terminated, based on the number of months elapsed prior to his termination; and (d) reimbursement of up to 18 months of COBRA premiums. Mr. Smith’s receipt of these change in control benefits is conditioned on him releasing us and our affiliates from all legal claims.
We have also entered into change of control agreements with each of our other named executive officers. The agreements contain a “double trigger” provision, providing (a) if a change of control occurs (as defined in the agreements) and (b) the executive’s employment is terminated other than for “cause” (as defined in the agreements) or the executive terminates employment after a substantial and material negative change in title, compensation or responsibilities, or principal location of employment, in each case, within two years after such change of control, then the executive is entitled to receive a severance payment equal (a) two times the executive’s annual base salary in effect at the time; plus (b) two times the executive's most recent annual bonus target for the fiscal year that immediately precedes the executives termination of employment, plus (c) a prorated portion of the executive’s annual target bonus for the fiscal year in which the executive’s employment is terminated,
56 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
based on the number of months of service completed for the year which the executive’s employment terminates; and (d) reimbursement of up to 18 months of COBRA premiums. Receipt of the severance benefits are conditioned on the executive releasing us and our affiliates from all legal claims. In addition, the executive agrees to protect and not disclose our trade secrets.
If, as a result of a change of control, the executive becomes entitled to any payments which are determined to be subject to Internal Revenue Code Section 280G, then the executive’s benefits will be equal to the greater of (1) the benefit under the change of control agreement (or form Mr. Smith, his employment agreement) reduced to the maximum amount payable such that when it is aggregated with payments and benefits under all other plans and arrangements it will not result in an “excess parachute payment” under Internal Revenue Code Section 280G, or (2) the benefit under the change of control agreement (or form Mr. Smith, his employment agreement) after taking into account the amount of the excise tax imposed under Internal Revenue Code Section 280G due to the benefit payment.
Upon termination of an executive’s employment or service, a participant will generally have 90 days following termination of employment or service to exercise any vested options. All options which are not exercised prior to 90 days after the date the executive ceases to serve as an employee of TriCo shall be forfeited. If an executive is terminated for cause, all right to exercise vested options terminates on the date of the executive’s termination. Typically, unvested RSUs and PSUs are forfeited upon termination of an executive's employment or service. Upon a change in control, the terms of the stock award agreements, the applicable equity incentive plan and/or the acquisition agreement determine treatment of such unvested stock awards.
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plans. An executive’s plan benefit is generally payable upon retirement, separation from employment or death. However, if an executive is terminated for cause (as defined in the plan), our compensation and management succession committee can determine in its discretion whether the interest credited to the executive’s account with respect to deferrals and any contributions made by TriCo are forfeited. An executive can also elect in advance to receive a distribution of a plan benefit in the event of a change of control (as defined in the plan).
In addition to any advance election to receive a benefit in the event of a change of control, the executive can make an advance election as to the time and form for the benefit distribution after the executive’s separation from employment. In all cases, other than a distribution to satisfy the executive’s severe financial hardship, the executive may elect to receive benefit payments in a lump sum or in annual installments over 5, 10 or 15 years. An executive’s distribution election can be changed in advance of retirement or other separation in accordance with Section 409A of the Code. All distributions under the plan are subject to Section 409A of the Code including, for example, the rule that an employee who is a “specified employee” may not receive a distribution of a benefit until at least 6 months following separation.
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans. Under our 2004 supplemental executive retirement plan, if, following a change of control (as defined in the plan), a participant retires after age 55, is terminated without cause or voluntarily terminates within 24 months, he is entitled to a supplemental retirement benefit. See “Nonqualified Deferred Compensation”. The executive is entitled to a supplemental retirement benefit under the plan without regard to the minimum number of years of service that would be required if retirement or termination had occurred before the change of control. In general, monthly benefit payments begin on the first day of the month after retirement or other termination from employment following a change of control without any reduction for payment of this benefit prior to age 62, as would be the case if the executive had retired or terminated before a change of control. See “Nonqualified Deferred Compensation” for a description of benefits payable not in connection with a change of control.
Joint Beneficiary Agreements. In 2003, we entered into joint beneficiary agreements with Messrs. Smith and Carney. Under these agreements, Tri Counties Bank purchased a life insurance policy on the executive’s life and the executive may designate beneficiaries to receive his share of the death proceeds, if any. The value of the benefits that would be received by the executive’s beneficiaries depends on the executive’s age at the time of death, whether the executive was eligible for benefits under our supplemental executive retirement plan, and the cash value of the plan compared to the benefits payable on death.
Annual Proxy Statement 57

Table of Contents
Summary. The amounts listed in the following table are estimated maximum amounts that would have been payable to our named executive officers upon termination of employment in certain circumstances if termination had occurred on December 31, 2024. The actual amounts payable can only be determined when an executive is terminated from TriCo and can be more or less than the amounts shown in the following table, depending on the facts and circumstances actually prevailing at the time of the named executive officers” termination of employment. Our compensation and management succession committee may in its discretion revise, amend or add to the benefits if it deems advisable, subject to applicable law. Thus, the actual amounts payable in certain circumstances could be significantly greater or less than the estimated amounts shown in the following table:

Name | Benefit | Involuntary termination for cause ($) |  | Involuntary termination not for cause ($) |  | Retirement or voluntary resignation ($) |  | Death ($)(6) |  | Disability ($) |  | After change in control, involuntary or good reason termination ($) (7)
Richard Smith | Severance pay(1) | — |  |  | 2,740,500 |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 4,821,250 |
| Equity award vesting acceleration(2) | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 728,539 |
| Supplemental executive retirement plans(3)(6) | — |  |  | 10,462,407 |  |  | 10,462,407 |  |  | — |  |  | 10,462,407 |  |  | 10,462,407 |
| Deferred compensation plan(4) | 181,000 |  |  | 660,929 |  |  | 660,929 |  |  | 660,929 |  |  | 660,929 |  |  | 660,929 |
| Joint beneficiary agreement(5) | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 4,568,929 |  |  | — |  |  | — |
| Total | 181,000 |  |  | 13,863,836 |  |  | 11,123,336 |  |  | 5,229,858 |  |  | 11,123,336 |  |  | 16,673,125 |
Peter Wiese | Severance pay(1) | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 1,630,600 |
| Equity award vesting acceleration(2) | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 313,326 |
| Total | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 1,943,926 |
John Fleshood | Severance pay(1) | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 1,531,400 |
| Equity award vesting acceleration(2) | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 294,354 |
| Total | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 1,825,754 |
Craig Carney | Severance pay(1) | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 1,370,200 |
| Equity award vesting acceleration(2) | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 228,162 |
| Supplemental executive retirement plans(3) | — |  |  | 3,558,291 |  |  | 3,558,291 |  |  | — |  |  | 3,558,291 |  |  | 3,558,291 |
| Deferred compensation plan(4) | 385,057 |  |  | 912,455 |  |  | 912,455 |  |  | 912,455 |  |  | 912,455 |  |  | 912,455 |
| Joint beneficiary agreement(5) | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 1,214,790 |  |  | — |  |  | — |
| Total | 385,057 |  |  | 4,470,746 |  |  | 4,470,746 |  |  | 2,127,245 |  |  | 4,470,746 |  |  | 6,069,108 |
Daniel Bailey | Severance pay(1) | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 1,435,300 |
| Equity award vesting acceleration(2) | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 240,089 |
| Supplemental executive retirement plans(3) | — |  |  | 1,819,700 |  |  | 1,182,805 |  |  | — |  |  | 1,819,700 |  |  | 1,819,700 |
| Total | — |  |  | 1,819,700 |  |  | 1,182,805 |  |  | — |  |  | 1,819,700 |  |  | 3,495,089 |

(1) Payment based on annual base salary as of December 31, 2024. For change in control severance, assumes no COBRA reimbursement payments.
58 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
(2) The value of accelerated equity award vesting represents the value of the accelerated vesting of stock options and PSUs at December 31, 2024. For PSUs, the value of the acceleration benefit is equal to the number of shares earned multiplied by the market value on December 31, 2024. The number of PSUs earned is based on actual performance measured through December 31, 2024; and further pro-rated for the performance period through December 31, 2024, over the full three-year period. The closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2024, was $43.70 per share. Stock option vesting is accelerated following a change of control regardless of an executive’s termination of employment. The vesting of the PSUs would accelerate if the executive is terminated without cause or resigns for good reason following a change of control.
(3) Represents an estimate of the present value of the accumulated benefit obligation under our supplemental executive retirement plans as of December 31, 2024, as adjusted to reflect the effect of vesting considerations in the termination situations indicated.
(4) The value of the benefits under our deferred compensation plans assumed that the executive received a lump sum payment. Participants are fully vested in amounts deferred and interest earned on such deferrals. In calculating the value of deferred compensation plans in the event of involuntary termination for cause, assumes that our compensation and management succession committee determined that the executive forfeited interest on deferrals and any contributions made by TriCo.
(5) Represents the lesser of the difference between death benefit and the cash value of the executive’s life insurance policies and the amount specified in the joint beneficiary agreement as well as potential payments under the supplemental executive retirement plan. Actual amounts could vary based on interpretations of possible set offs among the various agreements in the event of death.
(6) In the event any of Messrs. Smith, Carney or Bailey predecease their spouse, their spouse will be entitled to the annual lifetime payment under their SERPs. See “Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan”.
(7) Assumes no cut back due to such payment resulting in an “excess parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code. See “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control - Change of Control Agreements.”
Regardless of the manner in which an executive’s employment terminates, the executive is also generally entitled to receive amounts earned during the executive’s term of employment. Such amounts include, salary earned, annual incentive bonus compensation earned, gains from these exercise of vested stock options, amounts contributed under our 401(k) savings plan and our ESOP, and unused vacation pay.
CEO Pay Ratio
The following pay ratio and supporting information compares the annual total compensation of our employees other than our CEO (including full-time, part-time, seasonal and temporary employees) and the annual total compensation of our CEO. We believe the pay ratio is a reasonable estimate calculated in a manner consistent with applicable regulations.
For 2024:
•The same median employee was used for 2024 as identified for 2022 and 2023 utilizing annualized base salary, in accordance with SEC rules, with updated relative compensation for the median employee and the CEO to determine the CEO pay ratio:
•The annual total compensation of our median employee was $92,194; and
•The annual total compensation of our CEO, for purposes of this pay ratio disclosure, was $2,911,298.
Based on this information, the ratio of the annual total compensation of our CEO to the median employee was 32:1 compared to 37:1 in the prior year, primarily due to a decrease in long-term compensation in 2024 to the CEO as a result of the Company’s 2024 performance compared to 2023 and no change in his supplemental retirement account from 2023 to 2024, following an increase in 2023. Decisions concerning the compensation of each employee of our company, including our CEO, are based on that employee’s experience, skill, position, and contributions to the Company in furtherance of our customers’ and shareholders’ interests, and the compensation of our CEO and that of our median employee are made irrespective of the compensation of the other.
The applicable SEC rules require us to identify a median employee only once every three years, as long as there have been no material changes in our employee population or employee compensation arrangements that we believe would significantly impact the calculation of our CEO Pay Ratio. We will determine a new median employee for 2025.
Annual Proxy Statement 59

Table of Contents
To determine the pay ratio, we took the following steps:
Our median employee was identified in 2022 using our employee population of 1,118 individuals on October 1, 2022. This population consisted of full-time, part-time, seasonal and temporary employees of TriCo and each of its direct and indirect subsidiaries. To identify the median employee in 2022, we compared 2022 base salaries, for all employees, excluding our CEO. We annualized the compensation of any employee who was not an employee of TriCo for the entirety of 2022. As noted earlier, SEC rules allowed us to use the same median employee for 2023 and 2024 (a full-time, hourly employee). For 2024, we calculated such employee’s annual total compensation in accordance with the requirements of Item402(c)(2)(x) of Regulation S-K. The calculation of the median employee’s annual total compensation pursuant to Item 402(c)(2)(x) includes salary (or wages plus overtime, where applicable), bonus, incentive compensation, and employer matching contributions to the 401(k) Plan and the median employee’s company paid health and welfare benefits.
With respect to the CEO, we used the amount reported as total compensation in the Summary Compensation Table included in this proxy statement, plus the value of company paid health and welfare benefits, which are not required to be disclosed in the Summary Compensation Table but which are included for purposes of this pay ratio disclosure in order to present a more complete picture of the median employee’s and CEO’s total compensation. Any adjustments, estimates and assumptions used to calculate total annual compensation are described in footnotes to the Summary Compensation Table, and employer matching contributions to the 401(k).
This pay ratio represents our reasonable estimate calculated in a manner consistent with Item 402(u) of Regulation S-K and applicable guidance, which provide significant flexibility in how companies identify the median employee. Each company may use a different methodology and make different assumptions particular to that company. As a result, and as explained by the SEC when it adopted these rules, in considering the pay ratio disclosure, shareholders should keep in mind that the rule was not designed to facilitate comparisons of pay ratios among different companies, even companies within the same industry, but rather to allow shareholders to better understand and assess each particular company’s compensation practices and pay ratio disclosures. Neither the compensation and management succession committee nor our management used our fiscal 2024 CEO to median employee pay ratio in making compensation decisions.
60 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Pay Versus Performance
The following table provides information about the relationship between executive compensation actually paid to certain individuals by the Company and certain financial performance of the Company, as required by Item 402(v) of Regulation S-K. For further information regarding the Company’s pay-for-performance philosophy and how the Company aligns executive compensation with the Company’s performance, refer to “2024 Summary of Compensation Decisions” beginning on page 32.
Pay vs Performance Tables for 2020-2024

Year |  | Summary Comp for PEO ($) (1) |  | Comp Actually Paid to PEO ($) (6) |  | Average Summary Comp for Non-PEO NEOs ($) (2) |  | Average Comp Actually Paid to Non-PEO NEOs ($) (6) |  | Value of Initial Fixed $100 Investment Based on (3): |  | Net Income ($) |  | Return on Average Tangible Common Equity (5) |  |
|  |  |  |  | TSR ($) | Peer Group TSR ($) (4) |  |  |
2024 |  | 2,896,621 |  |  | 3,146,985 |  |  | 1,209,547 |  |  | 1,285,047 |  |  | 123.34 |  | 109.09 |  |  | 114,868,000 |  |  | 13.28 | % |  |
2023 |  | 3,097,841 |  |  | 2,361,529 |  |  | 1,302,528 |  |  | 941,214 |  |  | 117.37 |  | 80.70 |  |  | 117,390,000 |  |  | 15.52 | % |  |
2022 |  | 3,243,899 |  |  | 7,593,562 |  |  | 1,309,681 |  |  | 2,091,884 |  |  | 134.99 |  | 83.86 |  |  | 125,419,000 |  |  | 16.85 | % |  |
2021 |  | 2,511,604 |  |  | 3,260,091 |  |  | 1,128,277 |  |  | 1,286,641 |  |  | 111.05 |  | 110.39 |  |  | 117,655,000 |  |  | 16.50 | % |  |
2020 |  | 2,833,364 |  |  | 3,339,165 |  |  | 1,361,521 |  |  | 1,104,353 |  |  | 89.17 |  | 72.59 |  |  | 64,814,000 |  |  | 10.42 | % |  |

(1) Richard Smith was the Principle Executive Officer (PEO) for each of the years presented.
(2) Non-PEO Named Executive Officers (NEOs) consisted of Peter Wiese, John Fleshood, Craig Carney and Dan Bailey for each of the years presented.
(3) Assumes $100 invested in our common shares on December 31, 2019 and reinvestment of all dividends.
(4) The peer group used by the Company consists of the index used in the Company’s performance graph as required by item 201(e) of Regulation S-K and reported in Part II, item 5 of its annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, named the S&P Western Bank Index.
(5) Our Company-Selected Measure is Return on Average Tangible Common Equity, which is a non-GAAP measure (net income, adjusted for tax-affected amortization of intangibles, as a percent of average tangible common equity (average shareholders’ equity, less average tangible assets)). See our reconciliation at Appendix A.
(6) Compensation ‘actually paid’ is calculated in accordance with Item 402(v) of Regulation S-K. The tables below sets forth each adjustment made during each year presented in the table to calculate the compensation ‘actually paid’ to our PEO and NEOs during each years presented:
Annual Proxy Statement 61

Table of Contents

Adjustments to Determine Compensation ‘Actually Paid’ to PEO |  | 2024 |  | 2023 |  | 2022 |  |  | 2021 |  |  | 2020 |
Pension Plans |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
Deduction for aggregate change in the actuarial present values reported under the “Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings” column of the Summary Compensation Table |  | (13,537) |  |  | (138,132) |  |  | (14,658) |  |  |  | (14,856) |  |  |  | (667,023) |  |
Increase for “Service Cost” for pension plans |  | 74,635 |  |  | 68,694 |  |  | 550,415 |  |  |  | 559,097 |  |  |  | 1,387,189 |  |
Increase for “Prior Service Cost” or “Amendments” for pension plans |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | 2,031,799 |  |  |  | (6,736) |  |  |  | (16,833) |  |
Equity Awards |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
Deduction for amounts reported under the “Stock Awards” column in the Summary Compensation Table |  | (690,574) |  |  | (862,084) |  |  | (867,813) |  |  |  | (731,456) |  |  |  | (736,482) |  |
Deduction for amounts reported under the “Option Awards” column in the Summary Compensation Table |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |
Fair value at year-end of awards granted during year that remain outstanding and unvested as of year-end |  | 974,763 |  |  | 1,027,714 |  |  | 1,297,649 |  |  |  | 620,036 |  |  |  | 771,030 |  |
Vest date fair value of awards granted during year that vested during covered year |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |
Increase/deduction for change in fair value from prior year-end to covered year-end of awards granted prior to covered year that were outstanding and unvested as of year-end |  | 27,018 |  |  | (242,369) |  |  | 1,160,444 |  |  |  | 155,641 |  |  |  | (92,506) |  |
Increase/deduction for change in fair value from prior year-end to vesting date of awards granted prior to covered year that vested during covered year |  | (121,941) |  |  | (590,135) |  |  | 191,827 |  |  |  | 166,761 |  |  |  | (139,574) |  |
Deduction of fair value of awards granted prior to covered year that were forfeited during covered year |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |
Increase based upon incremental fair value of awards modified during year |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |
Increase based on dividends or other earnings paid during covered year |  | — |  |  | — |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |
Total Adjustments |  | 250,364 |  |  | (736,312) |  |  | 4,349,663 |  |  |  | 748,487 |  |  |  | 505,801 |  |

62 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents

Adjustments to Determine Average Compensation ‘Actually Paid’ to Non-PEO NEOs |  | 2024 |  | 2023 |  |  | 2022 |  |  | 2021 |  |  | 2020 |
Pension Plans |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
Deduction for aggregate change in the actuarial present values reported under the “Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings” column of the Summary Compensation Table |  | (12,197) |  |  | (77,330) |  |  |  | (4,410) |  |  |  | (4,685) |  |  |  | (386,643) |  |
Increase for “Service Cost” for pension plans |  | 19,182 |  |  | 17,153 |  |  |  | 65,896 |  |  |  | 88,476 |  |  |  | 209,453 |  |
Increase for “Prior Service Cost” or “Amendments” for pension plans |  | — |  |  | — |  |  |  | 27,300 |  |  |  | (2,132) |  |  |  | (5,083) |  |
Equity Awards |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
Deduction for amounts reported under the “Stock Awards” column in the Summary Compensation Table |  | (255,750) |  |  | (319,067) |  |  |  | (318,908) |  |  |  | (294,918) |  |  |  | (277,989) |  |
Deduction for amounts reported under the “Option Awards” column in the Summary Compensation Table |  | — |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |
Fair value at year-end of awards granted during year that remain outstanding and unvested as of year-end |  | 361,003 |  |  | 380,355 |  |  |  | 499,495 |  |  |  | 249,994 |  |  |  | 291,030 |  |
Vest date fair value of awards granted during year that vested during covered year |  | — |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |
Increase/deduction for change in fair value from prior year-end to covered year-end of awards granted prior to covered year that were outstanding and unvested as of year-end |  | 12,282 |  |  | (141,403) |  |  |  | 446,676 |  |  |  | 57,883 |  |  |  | (34,186) |  |
Increase/deduction for change in fair value from prior year-end to vesting date of awards granted prior to covered year that vested during covered year |  | (49,020) |  |  | (221,022) |  |  |  | 66,154 |  |  |  | 63,746 |  |  |  | (53,750) |  |
Deduction of fair value of awards granted prior to covered year that were forfeited during covered year |  | — |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |
Increase based upon incremental fair value of awards modified during year |  | — |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |
Increase based on dividends or other earnings paid during covered year |  | — |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |  |  | — |  |
Total Adjustments |  | 75,500 |  |  | (361,314) |  |  |  | 782,203 |  |  |  | 158,364 |  |  |  | (257,168) |  |

Pay Versus Performance Tabular List
We believe the following performance measures represent the most important financial performance measures used by us to link compensation actually paid to our non-CEO NEOs for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024:

Most Important Performance Measures
Net income
Total stockholder return (TSR)
Return on average tangible common equity
Pre-tax pre-provision return on average equity
Efficiency Ratio
Nonperforming Assets to Total Assets

While we utilize several performance measures to align executive compensation with performance, all of those measures are not presented in the Pay for Performance table. Moreover, as we seek to incentivize long-term performance, the changes in compensation values as reported in the reconciling tables above and identified as “compensation that is actually paid” (as defined
Annual Proxy Statement 63

Table of Contents
by the SEC rules) for any covered year may not specifically align with the company’s performance measures. For descriptions and additional details regarding our most important financial performance and other measures, please see the discussion in our Compensation Discussion and Analysis (CD&A) section beginning on page 30 .
Narrative Disclosure to Pay Versus Performance Table
The graphs below compare the compensation actually paid (“CAP”) to our PEO as well as the average compensation actually paid to our non-PEO NEOs, with:
•The Company’s cumulative TSR and the peer group’s cumulative TSR
•The Company’s net income
•The Company selected measure, which is the return on average tangible common equity
64 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Annual Proxy Statement 65

Table of Contents
REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
To Our Shareholders:
In accordance with its written charter, the audit committee oversees the Company’s financial reporting process on behalf of the Board. Management has the primary responsibility for the financial statements and the reporting process including the systems of internal controls. The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of the Company’s audited financial statements to generally accepted accounting principles and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. In this context, the audit committee has reviewed and discussed with management and Moss Adams LLP (“Moss Adams”) the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024 and Moss Adam’s evaluation of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. The audit committee has discussed with Moss Adams the matters that are required to be discussed pursuant to the applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (“PCAOB”) and the SEC.
Moss Adams has provided the audit committee with the written disclosures and the letter required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding the independent accountant’s communications with the audit committee concerning independence, and the audit committee has discussed with Moss Adams that firm’s independence. The audit committee has concluded that Moss Adam’s provision of audit and non-audit services to TriCo and its affiliates is compatible with Moss Adam’s independence.
The audit committee discussed with the Company’s internal auditors and Moss Adams the overall scope and plans for their respective audits. The audit committee met with the internal auditors and with Moss Adams, with and without management present, to discuss the results of their audit examinations, their evaluations of the Company’s internal controls, and the overall quality of the Company’s financial reporting.
In reliance on the audits and discussions referred to above, the audit committee, on February 20, 2025, recommended to the Board, and the Board has approved that the audited financial statements be included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, for filing with the SEC.
Respectfully submitted:
Kimberley H. Vogel (Chair)
John S.A. Hasbrook
Kirsten E. Garen
Martin A. Mariani
Jon Y. Nakamura
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Ratification of the Audit Committee’s Selection of Moss Adams LLP
Our audit committee has selected the firm of Moss Adams LLP (“Moss Adams”) as our independent registered accounting firm for 2025. At the meeting, shareholders will be asked to ratify that selection. Moss Adams served as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024. It is expected that representatives of Moss Adams will be present at the meeting and will have the opportunity to make a statement and to answer appropriate questions.
If shareholders fail to ratify the appointment of Moss Adams, the audit committee will reconsider whether or not to retain that firm. Even if appointment is ratified, the audit committee in its discretion may direct the appointment of a different independent registered public accounting firm at any time.
66 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
Accounting Firm Fees
The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed for audit services, as well as fees billed with respect to audit-related, tax and all other services, provided by Moss Adams to the Company and its related entities for the last two fiscal years. Any engagement of the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for permissible audit, audit-related, tax and other services are preapproved by the audit committee. The audit committee may provide a general preapproval for a particular type of service or require specific preapproval.

| 2024 |  | 2023 |
Audit fees (1) | $778,000 |  | $757,000 |
Audit-related fees (2) | 62,700 |  |  | 69,900 |
Tax fees | — |  |  | — |  |
All other fees (3) | — |  |  | — |  |
Total | $840,700 |  | $826,900 |

(1) For auditing our annual consolidated financial statements and our interim financial statements in our reports filed with the SEC and auditing our internal controls over financial reporting and management’s assessments of those controls.
(2) For accounting and auditing consultation services, audits of our employee benefit plans, assistance with registration statements filed with the SEC, and audits of separate subsidiary financial statements.
(3) For accounting and auditing consultation services.
OTHER INFORMATION
Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports
Our directors, executive officers and some other shareholders are required to report their ownership of our common stock and any changes in that ownership to the SEC and Nasdaq. To the best of our knowledge, except as disclosed herein, all required filings in 2024 were timely made. A Form 4 for Judi Giem, SVP/Chief Human Resource Officer, was late due to a stock grant to her spouse not being recorded on her Form 4 within two business days of the grant. A corrected Form 4 was filed on October 23, 2024. In making these statements, we have relied on the representations of the persons involved and on copies of their reports filed with the SEC.
Financial Materials
Shareholders may request free copies of our financial materials (annual report, Form 10-K and proxy statement) from TriCo Bancshares, 63 Constitution Drive, Chico, California 95973 - Attention: Corporate Secretary. These materials may also be accessed on our website at https://www.tcbk.com/investor-relations.
How to Contact the Board / Independent Lead Director
Shareholders may direct questions to any director, including the independent lead director, by mail to: TriCo Bancshares, 63 Constitution Drive, Chico, California 95973 - Attention: Corporate Secretary. All communications required by law or regulation to be relayed to the Board will be promptly delivered to the independent lead director. The independent lead director monitors these messages and replies appropriately. The current independent lead director is Mr. Corey W. Giese. We also encourage shareholders to attend the annual meeting to ask questions of directors concerning TriCo.
Employees and others may confidentially or anonymously report potential violations of laws, rules, regulation or our code of business conduct, including questionable accounting or auditing practices, by calling our hotline at (844) 920-1189 or visit https://tcbk.ethicspoint.com. Employee comments regarding financial matters will be promptly delivered to the chair of the audit committee, Ms. Vogel.
Annual Proxy Statement 67

Table of Contents
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING
The following questions and answers provide information about the meeting, the matters to be voted upon at the meeting, and other information.
1.Q: Why am I receiving these materials?
A.The Board of Directors of TriCo Bancshares is providing these proxy materials to you in connection with the solicitation of proxies for its annual meeting of shareholders, which will take place on May 22, 2025, and any adjournments and postponements of the annual meeting, which we refer to as the “meeting.” As a shareholder, you are invited to attend the meeting and may vote on the proposals described in this proxy statement.
If you received a paper copy of the proxy materials this year, but in the future would like to receive the proxy materials electronically, you can elect to do so by: (i) following the instructions provided in the proxy card, if your shares are registered in your name, or (ii) contacting your broker, trustee, bank or other nominee, if you hold your shares in street name.
2.Q: What information is contained in these materials?
A.The information included in this proxy statement relates to the proposals to be voted on at the meeting, the voting process, the compensation of our directors and executive officers and certain other required information. A copy of our 2024 Annual Report is also enclosed.
3.Q: How can I access TriCo’s proxy materials and Annual Report electronically?
A.This proxy statement and the 2024 Annual Report are available on TriCo’s website at www.tcbk.com. Click on “About,” then “Investor Relations”. Most shareholders can elect not to receive paper copies of future proxy statements and annual reports and can instead view those documents on the Internet. Information on or connected to our website (or the website of any third party) referenced in this proxy statement is separate from and not a part of or incorporated by reference into this proxy statement.
If you are a shareholder of record, you can choose this option and save TriCo the cost of producing and mailing these documents by following the instructions provided when you vote over the Internet. If you hold your TriCo shares through a bank, broker, or other holder of record, please refer to the information provided by that entity for instructions on how to elect not to receive paper copies of future proxy statements and annual reports.
If you choose not to receive paper copies of future proxy statements and annual reports, you will receive an e-mail message next year containing the Internet address to use to access TriCo’s Proxy Statement and Annual Report. Your choice will remain in effect until you tell us otherwise or until your consent is deemed to be revoked under applicable law. You do not have to elect Internet access each year. To view, cancel, or change your enrollment profile, please go to https://www-us.computershare.com/investor.
4.Q: Who is entitled to vote at the meeting?
A.Only shareholders of record at the close of business on the record date of April 2, 2025 may vote at the meeting. As of the record date, 32,892,488 shares of our common stock were issued and outstanding. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held on the record date.
68 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
5. Q: What is the difference between holding shares as a shareholder of record and holding shares as a beneficial owner?
A.Most shareholders hold shares through a stockbroker, bank or other nominee rather than directly in their own name. The distinctions between shares held of record and shares owned beneficially are summarized below.
Shareholder of Record. If your shares are registered directly in your name with our transfer agent, Computershare, you are considered to be the shareholder of record of those shares and the Notice (and any proxy materials you may request) are being sent directly to you by TriCo. As the shareholder of record, you have the right to vote by proxy or to vote in person at the meeting. Please follow the instructions in the Notice on how to vote your shares.
Beneficial Owner. If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee, you are considered to be the beneficial owner of shares held in street name and these proxy materials are being forwarded to you by your broker or nominee which is considered to be the shareholder of record of those shares. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker or nominee how to vote and are also invited to attend the meeting. Your broker or nominee has enclosed a voting instruction card for you to use in directing your broker or nominee how to vote your shares for you. You may also vote in person at the meeting, although we encourage you to vote your shares now even if you plan to attend the meeting. If you are a beneficial owner and want to vote your shares in person at the meeting, you must obtain a legal proxy from your broker or nominee and bring it to the meeting. A legal proxy is a written document that authorizes you to vote your shares held in street name in connection with the meeting. Please contact your broker or nominee for instructions regarding obtaining a legal proxy because your broker will not automatically supply one to you.
If you are a beneficial owner of shares held in street name and do not provide the broker or nominee that holds your shares with specific voting instructions, then your broker or nominee may generally vote your shares in their discretion on “routine” matters, such as the ratification of the selection of our independent registered public accounting firm, but cannot vote on “non-routine” matters, such as the election of directors, the adoption of our equity incentive plan, or the advisory vote on executive compensation. If the broker or nominee that holds your shares does not receive instructions from you on how to vote your shares on a non-routine matter, the broker or nominee may inform us that it does not have the authority to vote on the matter with respect to your shares, though your shares would still be considered present for quorum purpose. This is generally referred to as a “broker non-vote."
Whether a proposal is considered routine or non-routine is ultimately subject to stock exchange rules and final determination by the stock exchange. Even with respect to routine matters, some brokers choose not to exercise discretionary voting authority. As a result, we urge you to direct your broker, fiduciary or custodian how to vote your shares on all proposals to ensure that your vote is counted.
6.Q: What may I vote on at the meeting?
A.You may vote to elect 11 nominees to serve on our Board of Directors for terms expiring at the next annual meeting, on an advisory proposal concerning our executive compensation and to ratify the selection of Moss Adams LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2025.
7.Q: How are votes counted?
A.In the election of directors, you may vote FOR all of the director nominees or your vote may be WITHHELD with respect to one or more nominees. In addition, under California law and our Bylaws, shareholders are entitled to cumulate votes in the election of the directors by following the procedures described at “Corporate Governance, Board Nomination and Board Committees--Nomination and Election of Directors.” If the proxy is marked FOR all of the director nominees or not marked with respect to election of directors, authority will be granted to the persons named in the proxy to cumulate votes if they so choose and to allocate votes among the nominees in such a manner as they determine is necessary in order to elect all or as many of the nominees as possible. The 11 nominees receiving the most affirmative votes cast at the meeting will be elected as
Annual Proxy Statement 69

Table of Contents
directors assuming a quorum is present. However, under the Company’s majority vote withhold policy, if a director receives more “withhold” votes than “for” votes, the director is required to submit a resignation to the nominating and corporate governance committee for its consideration. See “Corporate Governance, Board Nomination and Board Committees—Majority Election of Directors.
You may vote FOR or AGAINST or ABSTAIN when voting on the advisory proposal concerning the approval of our executive compensation. The proposal will be adopted if a majority of the shareholders present and voting on the proposal vote in favor of the proposal, assuming a quorum is present and voting on the matter.
You may vote FOR or AGAINST or ABSTAIN from voting on the ratification of Moss Adams LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2025. The proposal will be adopted if a majority of the shareholders present and voting on the proposal vote in favor of the proposal, assuming a quorum is present and voting on the matter.
8.Q: How are abstentions and broker non-votes treated?
A.Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will not impact the election of directors. Abstentions and broker non-votes will not have any effect on the other proposals if the number of affirmative votes cast for the proposal is a majority of the votes cast and such votes constitute a majority of the quorum required to transact business at the meeting. However, if the number of affirmative votes cast for any of the other proposals is a majority of the votes cast, but such votes do not constitute a majority of the quorum required to transact business at the meeting, then abstentions and broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote against the proposal.
9.Q: Can I change my vote?
A.If you are a holder of record, you may revoke your proxy at any time before the meeting by:
•providing written notice to TriCo’s corporate secretary and voting in person at the meeting, or
•appointing a new proxy before the meeting begins.
Attending the meeting will not by itself revoke a proxy unless you specifically revoke your proxy in writing. If you are a beneficial owner, you must follow the instructions provided by your broker, bank or other nominee to change your vote because they will require action prior to the meeting date.
10.Q: What if I own shares through TriCo’s Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust?
A.For present or past employees of TriCo, your proxy includes any shares held in your account under our employee stock ownership plan and trust. If you hold shares of common stock through such plan and do not provide voting instructions to the plans’ trustees or administrators, your shares will be voted in the same proportion as the shares beneficially owned through such plan for which voting instructions are received, unless otherwise required by law.
11.Q: What does it mean if I get more than one proxy card?
A.If your shares are registered differently and are held in more than one account, then you may receive more than one set of proxy materials or proxy card. Be sure to vote all of your accounts so that all of your shares are voted. We encourage you to have all accounts registered in the same name and address. If you are a
70 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
shareholder of record, you can accomplish this by contacting Computershare at PO BOX 43006, Providence, RI, 02940-3006 150 Royall St, Suite 101, Canton, MA, 02021. Phone: (800) 676-0712 or (201) 680-6578.
12.Q: Who may attend the meeting?
A.All shareholders who owned shares of our common stock as of the close of the market on April 2, 2024, may attend the meeting in person. The meeting will begin promptly at 10:30 a.m., Pacific Time, on May 22, 2025, at the Company’s headquarters at 63 Constitution Drive, Chico, CA 95973.
ESOP Participants: If you are a participant of the TriCo Bancshares Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the “Plan”), you will receive a proxy that covers all shares of TriCo Bancshares stock for which you have the right to give voting instructions to the Trustees of the Plan (Cory W. Giese, Michael W. Koehnen, and Richard P. Smith). If a participant does not provide the Trustees with written instructions before 5:00 p.m. Eastern time on May 21, 2025, the Trustees will vote a participant's shares held in the Plan in the same proportion as the shares for which instructions are received from other participants.
Updates: As always, we encourage you to vote your shares prior to the annual meeting; please be prepared to provide the control number from your Notice or proxy card.
13.Q: How will voting on any other business be conducted?
A.We do not know of any business to be considered at the meeting other than election of 11 directors, the advisory vote on executive compensation and the ratification of Moss Adams LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2025. If any other business is properly presented at the meeting, including matters concerning the conduct of the meeting, such as adjourning the meeting to another time or place, your proxy gives the proxy holders the authority to vote on these matters in their best judgment.
14.Q: Where and when will I be able to find the results of the voting?
A.The preliminary results of the voting will be announced at the meeting. We will publish the final results in a report on Form 8-K that we file with the SEC following the meeting.
15.Q: Is my vote confidential?
A.Proxy instructions, ballots and voting tabulations that identify individual shareholders are handled in a manner that protects your voting privacy. Your vote will not be disclosed either within TriCo or to third parties except as necessary to meet applicable legal requirements, to allow for the counting and certification of votes, or to help our Board solicit proxies.
16.Q: When are shareholder proposals for the 2026 annual meeting due?
A.If you intend to submit a shareholder proposal for inclusion in our proxy statement and form of proxy for our 2025 annual meeting under SEC Rule 14a-8, we must receive your proposal at our executive offices, located at 63 Constitution Drive, Chico, CA 95973, no later than December 19, 2025, provided that if we change the date for the 2026 annual meeting by more than 30 days from the anniversary date of the 2025 Annual Meeting (which anniversary will be May 22, 2026), then we must receive your proposal at our executive offices a reasonable time before we begin to print and send the proxy materials for our 2026 annual meeting. Your proposal will be subject to the requirements and conditions of SEC rule 14a-8.
If you intend to (1) present a shareholder proposal at the 2026 annual meeting other that under SEC Rule 14a-8 or (2) nominate a candidate for director at the 2026 annual meeting, our bylaws required that we receive notice of your proposal or nomination not earlier than 120 days before nor later than 90 days before the anniversary date of the 2026 annual meeting, provided that if the 2026 annual meeting is called for a date that is not within 30 days of May 22, 2026 (the anniversary of the 2025 annual meeting), then we must receive notice of your proposal or nomination not later than ten calendar days following the day on which we
Annual Proxy Statement 71

Table of Contents
first publicly announce the date of the 2026 annual meeting. If you intend to present a shareholder proposal at the 2026 annual meeting other than under SEC Rule 14a-8, your notice must include the information about you and your proposal that is set forth in Section 14 of our bylaws. If you intend to nominate a candidate for election as a director at the 2026 annual meeting, your notice must include the information about you and your proposed nominees that is set forth in Section 18 of our bylaws. For a summary of these requirements, see “Shareholder Nominations” on page 23. In addition, if you intend to include your director nominees in our proxy materials and will solicit proxies in accordance with SEC Rule 14a-19, then you must also comply with the requirements of that rule.
The above is only a summary of the requirements. Shareholders who intend to propose business to be acted upon or to nominate a candidate for director at our 2026 annual meeting are urged to read our bylaws, which specify the information and notice requirements in more detail. Our current bylaws were filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 23, 2023.
17. Q: Who will bear the cost of soliciting proxies for the meeting and how will these proxies be solicited?
A.We will pay the cost of preparing, assembling, printing, mailing and distributing these proxy materials, including the charges and expenses of brokers, banks, nominees and other fiduciaries who forward proxy materials to their principals. Proxies may be solicited by mail, in person, by telephone or by electronic communication by our officers and employees who will not receive any additional compensation for these solicitation activities.
18. Q: What is householding?
A.If you and other residents at your mailing address own shares of common stock in street name, your broker, bank or other nominee may have sent you a notice that your household will receive only one Notice of Annual Meeting. This procedure, known as “householding,” is intended to reduce the volume of duplicate information stockholders receive and also reduce our printing and postage costs. Under applicable law, if you consented or were deemed to have consented, your broker, bank or other nominee may send one copy of our Notice of Annual Meeting to your address for all residents that own shares of common stock in street name. If you wish to revoke your consent to householding, you must contact your broker, bank or other nominee. If you are receiving multiple copies of our Notice of Annual Meeting, you may be able to request householding by contacting your broker, bank or other nominee.
72 TriCo Bancshares

Table of Contents
APPENDIX A: Reconciliation of GAAP and Non-GAAP financial measures
The Company reports its financial results in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Management has presented the following non-GAAP financial measures because it believes that they provide useful and comparative information to assess trends in the Company's core operations reflected in the current quarter's results, and facilitate the comparison of our performance with the performance of our peers. However, these non-GAAP financial measures are supplemental and are not a substitute for any analysis based on GAAP.
Below is a reconciliation of GAAP and non-GAAP financial measures found within the Company’s 2024 Executive Incentive Plan Results beginning on page 38 and Pay versus Performance data beginning on page 61.

(in thousands) | December 31, 2024 |  | December 31, 2023 |  | December 31, 2022 |  | December 31, 2021 |  | December 31, 2020
Return on tangible common equity |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
Average total shareholders' equity | $1,200,140 |  | $1,102,436 |  | $1,074,437 |  | $972,214 |  | $902,110
Exclude average goodwill | 304,442 |  | 304,442 |  | 287,904 |  | 220,872 |  | 220,872
Exclude average other intangibles | 8,592 |  | 13,611 |  | 15,901 |  | 15,131 |  | 20,695
Average tangible common equity (Non-GAAP) | $887,106 |  | $784,383 |  | $770,632 |  | $736,211 |  | $660,543
Net income (GAAP) | $114,868 |  | $117,390 |  | $125,419 |  | $117,655 |  | $64,814
Exclude amortization of intangible assets, net of tax effect | 2,900 |  | 4,309 |  | 4,461 |  | 3,849 |  | 4,032
Tangible net income available to common shareholders (Non-GAAP) | $117,768 |  | $121,699 |  | $129,880 |  | $121,504 |  | $68,846
Return on average equity | 9.57 | % |  | 10.65 | % |  | 11.67 | % |  | 12.10 | % |  | 7.18 | %
Return on average tangible common equity (Non-GAAP) | 13.28 | % |  | 15.52 | % |  | 16.85 | % |  | 16.50 | % |  | 10.42 | %

(in thousands) | December 31, 2024 |  | December 31, 2023 |  | December 31, 2022 |  | December 31, 2021 |  | December 31, 2020
Pre-tax pre-provision return on average assets |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
Net income (GAAP) | $114,868 |  | $117,390 |  | $125,419 |  | $117,655 |  | $64,814
Exclude provision for income taxes | 40,236 |  | 43,515 |  | 48,488 |  | 46,048 |  | 22,536
Exclude provision for credit losses | 6,632 |  | 23,990 |  | 18,470 |  | (6,775) |  | 42,813
Net income before income tax and provision expense (Non-GAAP) | $161,736 |  | $184,895 |  | $192,377 |  | $156,928 |  | $130,163
Average assets (GAAP) | $9,757,326 |  | $9,870,189 |  | $9,771,601 |  | $8,209,673 |  | $7,123,431
Return on average assets (GAAP) (annualized) | 1.18 | % |  | 1.19 | % |  | 1.28 | % |  | 1.43 | % |  | 0.91 | %
Pre-tax pre-provision return on average assets (Non-GAAP) (annualized) | 1.66 | % |  | 1.87 | % |  | 1.97 | % |  | 1.91 | % |  | 1.83 | %

Annual Proxy Statement 73